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PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA
Tuesday, August 8, 2023
9:00 a.m. or shortly thereafter
Lthu‘e Civic Center, Office of Boards and Commissions
4444 Rice Street, Suite 300, Lithu‘e, Kaua‘i, Hawai‘i

‘23 M5 -2 AT756

A. CALLTO ORDER
B. ROLLCALL

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

D. MINUTES of the meeting(s) of the Planning Commission

1. May?9, 2023.

E. RECEIPT OF ITEMS FOR THE RECORD

1. None for this Meeting.

F. HEARINGS ANDPUBLICCOMMENT

1. Continued Agency Hearing

a. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-9) to allow construction of a 5
feet high entry gate, water feature, and associated improvements within the private road
right-of-way serving the Makahuena Estates Subdivision in Po‘ipd, situated along the
makai side of Pe‘e Road and approximately 60 feet south of its intersection with Pe‘e
Road, further identified as Tax Map Key: (4) 2-8-021:078, containing a total area of
approximately 0.946 acres = Makahuena-Preferred A LLC et al. [Director’'s Report
Received and hearing deferred on 4/11/2023).

1. Stipulation Regarding SMA Use Permit SMA(U)-2023-9 and Construction of a 5
Feet High Entry Gate and to Vacate Contested Case Hearing.

2. New Agency Hearing

a. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-12) to allow construction of a
new single family residential structure on a parcel situated along the makai side of Kuhio
Highway in Kapa‘a Town, situated directly across the formerly Kojima Store,
approximately 200 feet south of the Kapa‘a Neighborhood Center and further identified
as 4-1542 Kuhio Highway, Tax Map Key: (4) 4-5-012:048, containing a total area of
approximately 2,520 square feet = BENSON C. & ARCELIE A. PERALTA.

1. Director’s Report Pertaining to this Matter.
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b. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-13), CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT
(2-1Iv-2023-11) and USE PERMIT (U-2023-8) to allow construction of a viewing platform
and associated site improvements within the Pa‘ula‘ula State Historical Park in Waimea,
along the makai side of Kaumuali‘i Highway, approximately 800 feet east of Waimea
Town, further identified as Tax Map Key: (4) 1-7-005:003 and containing a total area of
17.26 acres = STATE OF HAWAII, DEPARTMENT OF LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES
(DLNR) . [Director’s Report Received July 25, 2023.]

1. Director’sReport Pertaining to this Matter.

c. CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT (Z-1V-2023-12) and USE PERMIT (U-2023-9) to construct a new
gymnasium on the Waimea High School campus in Waimea Town, and VARIANCE PERMIT
(V-2023-3) to deviate from the height requirement within the Residential zoning district,
situated approximately 550 feet mauka of the Ola Road/Kaumuali‘i Highway intersection,
further identified as 9707 Tsuchiya Road, Tax Map Keys: 1-6-010:004 and 1-6-009:023,
and containing a total area of 11.11 acres = STATE OF HAWAII, DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION. [Director’s Report Received July 25, 2023].

1. Director’s Report Pertaining to this Matter.

3. Continued Public Hearing

a. None for this Meeting.

4. New Public Hearing

a. None for this Meeting.

G. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Status Reports

a. 2023 Annual Report on the progress and status of compliance and conditions of the
subject permits for Hokuala Resort (formerly Kauai Lagoons LLC & MORI Golf (Kauai) LLC)
in accordance with Condition No. 28 Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-
2006-5, Project Development Use Permit PDU-2005-26, Use Permit U-2005-25, and Class
IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2005-30, Tax Map Key: (4)3-5-001:027 (Por.), 168, 169, 171 (Por.),
172 (Por.), 175, and 176.

1. Director’s Report pertaining to this matter.

2. Director’s Report for Project(s) Scheduled for Agency Hearing

a. None for this Meeting.

3. Class il Zoning Permits

a. None for this Meeting.
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H. GENERAL BUSINESS MATTERS

1. Pursuant to Chapter 9, Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Kauai County Planning Commission
and Chapter 8, Article 27.13 Appeal of the Director's Determination, Kauai County Code, 1987 as
amended; Appellants Malama Kua aina and Caren Diamond, Executive Director, and in my
individual capacity file this Petition for Appeal regarding Try Slow, LLC Shoreline Setback
Determination Exemptions, File No. SSD 2023-45, SSD 2023-46, SSD 2023-47 and SSD-2023- 48
dated 5/23/2023, TMK 5-8-8:034 noticed on the Planning Commission Agenda June 27, 2023.

I. COMMUNICATION

1. None for this meeting.

J. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. Subdivision Committee

a. None for this meeting.

K. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (For Action)

1. None for this meeting.

L. NEW BUSINESS (For Action)

1. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-9) to allow construction of a 5 feet high
entry gate, water feature, and associated improvements within the private road right-of-way
serving the Makahuena Estates Subdivision in Po‘ipQ, situated along the makai side of Pe‘e Road
and approximately 60 feet south of its intersection with Pe‘e Road, further identified as Tax Map
Key: (4) 2-8-021:078, containing a total area of approximately 0.946 acres = Makahuena-
Preferred A LLC et al. [Director’s Report Received and hearing deferred on 4/11/2023].

2. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-12) to allow construction of a new
single family residential structure on a parcel situated along the makai side of Kuhio Highway in
Kapa‘a Town, situated directly across the formerly Kojima Store, approximately 200 feet south
of the Kapa‘a Neighborhood Center and further identified as 4-1542 Kuhio Highway, Tax Map
Key: (4) 4-5-012:048, containing a total area of approximately 2,520 square feet = BENSON C. &
ARCELIE A. PERALTA.

3. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-13), CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT (2-IV-
2023-11) and USE PERMIT (U-2023-8) to allow construction of a viewing platform and associated
site improvements within the Pa‘ula‘ula State Historical Park in Waimea, along the makai side of
Kaumuali‘i Highway, approximately 800 feet east of Waimea Town, further identified as Tax Map
Key: (4) 1-7-005:003 and containing a total area of 17.26 acres = STATE OF HAWAII,
DEPARTMENT OF LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES (DLNR). [Director’s Report Received July 25,
2023].
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4.

CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT (Z-1V-2023-12) and USE PERMIT (U-2023-9) to construct a new
gymnasium on the Waimea High School campus in Waimea Town, and VARIANCE PERMIT (V-
2023-3) to deviate from the height requirement within the Residential zoning district, situated
approximately 550 feet mauka of the Ola Road/Kaumualii Highway intersection, further
identified as 9707 Tsuchiya Road, Tax Map Keys: 1-6-010:004 and 1-6-009:023, and containing a
total area of 11.11 acres = STATE OF HAWAII, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION. [Director’s Report

Received July 25, 2023].

M. EXECUTIVE SESSION

Pursuant to Hawaii Revised Statutes Sections 92-4 and 92-5(a)(4), the purpose of this executive session
is to consult with the County's legal counsel on questions, issues, status, and procedural matters. This
consultation involves consideration of the powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and/or liabilities of the
Commission and the County as they relate to the following matters:

1.

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-9) to allow construction ofa 5 feet high
entry gate, water feature, and associated improvements within the private road right-of-way
serving the Makahuena Estates Subdivision in Po‘ipu, situated along the makai side of Pe‘e Road
and approximately 60 feet south of its intersection with Pe‘e Road, further identified as Tax Map
Key: (4) 2-8-021:078, containing a total area of approximately 0.946 acres = Makahuena-
Preferred A LLC et al. [Director’s Report Received and hearing deferred on 4/11/2023].

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-12) to allow construction of a new
single family residential structure on a parcel situated along the makai side of Kuhio Highway in
Kapa‘a Town, situated directly across the formerly Kojima Store, approximately 200 feet south
of the Kapa‘a Neighborhood Center and further identified as 4-1542 Kuhio Highway, Tax Map
Key: (4) 4-5-012:048, containing a total area of approximately 2,520 square feet = BENSON C. &
ARCELIE A. PERALTA.

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-13), CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT (Z-IV-
2023-11) and USE PERMIT (U-2023-8) to allow construction of a viewing platform and associated
site improvements within the Pa‘ula‘ula State Historical Park in Waimea, along the makai side of
Kaumuali‘i Highway, approximately 800 feet east of Waimea Town, further identified as Tax Map
Key: (4) 1-7-005:003 and containing a total area of 17.26 acres = STATE OF HAWAII,
DEPARTMENT OF LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES (DLNR) [Director’s Report Received July 25,
2023].

CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT (Z-IV-2023-12) and USE PERMIT (U-2023-9) to construct a new
gymnasium on the Waimea High School campus in Waimea Town, and VARIANCE PERMIT (V-
2023-3) to deviate from the height requirement within the Residential zoning district, situated
approximately 550 feet mauka of the Ola Road/Kaumuali‘i Highway intersection, further
identified as 9707 Tsuchiya Road, Tax Map Keys: 1-6-010:004 and 1-6-009:023, and containing a
total area of 11.11 acres = STATE OF HAWAII, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION. [Director’s Report
Received July 25, 2023].

2023 Annual Report on the progress and status of compliance and conditions of the subject
permits for Hokuala Resort (formerly Kauai Lagoons LLC & MORI Golf (Kauai) LLC) in accordance
with Condition No. 28 Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-2006-5, Project
Development Use Permit PDU-2005-26, Use Permit U-2005-25, and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-1V-
2005-30, Tax Map Key: (4)3-5-001:027 (Por.), 168, 169, 171 (Por.), 172 (Por.), 175, and 176.
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6. Pursuant to Chapter9, Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Kauai County Planning Commission
and Chapter 8, Article 27.13 Appeal of the Director's Determination, Kauai County Code, 1987 as
amended; Appellants Malama Kua aina and Caren Diamond, Executive Director, and in my
individual capacity file this Petition for Appeal regarding Try Slow, LLC Shoreline Setback
Determination Exemptions, File No. SSD 2023-45, SSD 2023-46, SSD 2023-47 and SSD-2023- 48
dated 5/23/2023, TMK 5-8-8:034 noticed on the Planning Commission Agenda June 27, 2023.

N. ANNOUNCEMENTS

1. Topics for Future Meetings.

The following regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., or
shortly thereafter, on August 22, 2023. The Planning Commission anticipates this meeting to be
held in-person at the Lihu‘e Civic Center, Office of Boards and Commissions, 4444 Rice Street,
Suite 300, Lihu‘e, Kaua‘i, Hawai‘i. The Commission will announce its intended meeting method
via an agenda electronically posted at least six days prior to the meeting date.

O. ADJOURNMENT
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DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING

KA’AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAVEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR F RE
— DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR
MICHAEL A. DAHILIG, MANAGING DIRECTOR

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA (SMA) MINOR DETERMINATIONS

Date (Action) ~ SMA Minor Permit ~ Location (TMK_) ' Activity/ structure
number
Approved SMA(M)-2023-20 Waimea (1-6-006:001) To comply with levee
(06.29.2023) requirements as outlined by the

U.S. Army Corp of Engineers/
Designated tree removal.

Approv;.d _ SMA(M)-20§3-21 Lihu‘e (3-5-002:002) Construction and placement/_ -
| (07.03.2023) Three (3) 12X12 feet (144 s.f.)

beach cabanas.

Approved SMA(M)-2023-22 Koloa (2-6-012:004 Unit 2) | Construction/ Second story

(7.10.23) addition on existing detached
garage.

Approved SMA(M)-2022-5 Hanalei (5-5-010:055) Construction/ Six (6) foot high

(7.14.23) redwood fence and gate.
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Pursuant to Section 8-27.8 (6) of the Kaua‘i County Code (1987), as amended, the following shoreline
setback determinations by the Director are disclosed for purposes of public notification.

August 8, 2023

SHORELINE SETBACK DETERMINATIONS

Application No.

Name of Applicant(s)

Property I.D.
(Tax Map Key)

Location

Development/Reasons

SSD-2024-1

Kauai Federal Credit Union

(4) 4-5-012;021
and (4) 4-5-
012:043

Kapa‘a

shoreline.

Renovations of Existing
Structure. / Stable-accreting
shoreline. Required setback
60 feet from shoreline.
Development approximately
90 to 180 feet from
vegetation/ evidenced

SSD-2024-2

Steven Pappas

(4) 1-8-019:016

Hanapépé

New sitting room, study
room, and bathroom
addition to existing
residence. / Rocky shoreline
required setback 60 feet.
Development approximately
181 feet away from
evidenced shoreline.

SSD-2024-3

Stewart Neil Husband

(4) 1-6-006:011
Unit 1

Waimea

New single-family dwelling. /
Accreting shoreline required
100-foot setback.
Development approximately
226 feet from evidenced
shoreline.

SSD-2024-4

Stanley and Donna Alongi
Family TR

(4) 2-8-015:007
Unit 7

Koloa

Repair and Renovations/
Kitchen work and repairs
deemed unsubstantial.

SSD-2024-5

Try Slow LLC

(4) 5-8-008:039

Hanalei

Repair to existing cottage
#5./Repair work deemed
unsubstantial.
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KAUA'I PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
May 09, 2023
DRAFT

The regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the County of Kaua'i was called to order by Chair
DeGracia at 9:07 a.m. - Webcast Link: https://www.kauai.gcov/Webcast-Meetings

The following Commissioners were present:

Mr. Gerald Ako
Ms. Helen Cox
Mr. Francis DeGracia
Ms. Glenda Nogami Streufert
Mr. Jerry Ornellas
Ms. Lori Otsuka

Excused or Absent

Ms. Donna Apisa

The following staff members were present: Planning Department — Director Ka'aina Hull, Deputy
Director Jodi Higuchi Sayegusa, Staff Planner Dale Cua, Romio Idica, Kenny Estes, and Planning
Commission Support Clerk Duke Nakamatsu; Office of the County Attorney — Deputy County Attorney
Chris Donahoe, Office of Boards and Commissions — Support Clerk Lisa Oyama.

Discussion of the meeting, in effect, ensued:

CALL TO ORDER

Chair Francis DeGracia: The time is 9:07, I’d like to call to order the Planning Commission meeting for
Tuesday, May 09, 2023. Could I get a roll call please, Mr. Clerk?

Planning Director Ka'aina Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Ako?

Commissioner Ako: Here.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Apisa is excused. Commissioner Cox?
Commissioner Cox: Here.
Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas?

Commissioner Ornellas: Here.

Mr. Hull: Commissioners Otsuka?

Commissioner Otsuka: Here.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Streufert?

1 D.1.
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Commissioner Streufert: Here.

Mr. Hull: Chair DeGracia?

Chair DeGracia: Here.

Mr. Hull: You have a quorum, Mr. Chair. Next would be the approval of the agenda.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mr. Hull: The Department doesn’t have any recommended changes to the agenda.

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Could I get a motion to approve the agenda?

Ms. Streufert: I move to approve the agenda.
Ms. Otsuka: Second.

Chair DeGracia: Let’s take a voice vote. All in favor say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). Oppose?
Hearing none, motion carries. 6:0.

MINUTES of the meeting(s) of the Planning Commission

Mr. Hull: We have no minutes for review in this meeting.

RECEIPT OF ITEMS FOR THE RECORD

Mr. Hull: We move on to Receipt of Items for the Record. We did not receive any additional items prior
to publication of the agenda on May 3, 2023. However, we did receive some testimony, as well as agency
comments, and a submittal from a party that is on the agenda, after the May 3™ publication of the agenda,
as such these documents have been made only available only to you folks this morning. You have not
reviewed them, it also has been made available for the public, here in the Planning Commission room as
well as at the Planning Department. Chair, I don’t know if you want to take a recess to afford the
Commissioners time to review these documents.

Chair DeGracia: Yes, the Commission would like to take a 15-minute recess to review this current item,
so we’ll reconvene in about 15-minutes, at 9:25.

Commission went into recess at 9:09 a.m.
Commission reconvened from recess at 9:25 a.m.

Chair DeGracia: The time is 9:25, I’d like to call back to order the Planning Commission meeting.

HEARINGS AND PUBLIC COMMENT
Mr. Hull: Next on the agenda we have Hearings and Public Comment.

New Agency Hearing

Mr. Hull: We have a New Agency Hearing. For members of the public viewing virtually, we’re back in
session. We are on New Agency Hearing.



SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-10), CLASS IV ZONING
PERMIT (Z-1V-2023-10), USE PERMIT (U-2023-7) to allow construction of public shared use
path extending from Nawiliwili Park to Ahukini Landing and associated improvements involving
a new comfort station, drainage ways, protective fencing and paved parking area, and
SHORELINE SETBACK VARIANCE PERMIT (SSV-2023-1) to deviate from the shoreline
setback requirement involving properties along makai side of the Lihu'e Airport, further identified
as Tax Map Keys: 3-5-001:004, 005, 008, 009, 085, 092, 102, 128, 158 & 160; 3-7-002:001

(Por.) and affecting a total area of approx. 9.2 acres = County of Kaua'i, Department of Public
Works.

Mr. Hull: We don’t have any members of the public signed up to testify. Is there anyone in the audience
that has shown up that would like to testify as a member of the public, if so, please approach the
microphone. Seeing none, the Department would recommend closing the agency hearing.

Unknown Male: Sorry, I (inaudible) represent the County, I’m the consultant.

Mr. Hull: We’re going to go...sorry, Sir. This is just the agency hearing portion, so this is for public
testimony, but we’ll move into your portion very shortly here.

Unknown Male: Sorry. Okay. Thank you.

Ms. Streufert: I move to close the New Agency Hearing on SMA 2023-10, Class IV Zoning Permit Z-I'V-
2023-10 and Use Permit U-2023-7.

Ms. Cox: Second.
Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, motion on the floor is to close the new agency hearing for this agenda

item. We’ll take a voice vote on this one. All in favor say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). Oppose?
Hearing none, motion carries. 6:0.

Mr. Hull: Moving on, we have no further items on Consent Calendar or General Business, so, we move
into the Subdivision Committee.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Subdivision Committee

Final Subdivision Map Approval

Subdivision Application No. 5-2005-41
Visionary LLC. DBA Lihu'e Land Company
Ahukini Makai Subdivision

Proposed 49-lot Subdivision

TMK: (4) 3-7-002: 001 (por.)

Hanama'ulu, Lihu'e, Kaua'i

Mr. Hull: Before going into the report on this, it is a separate agenda item on the full Planning
Commission Agenda. We don’t have anybody signed up to testify but is there any member of the public



here that would like to testify on this agenda item? You may approach. Please approach, you have three-
minutes for testimony. Can you state your name for the record, and you have three-minutes for testimony.

Mr. Kaniela Matsushima: Aloha, my name is Kaniela Kaleikaumaka Matsushima, o' Hanama'ulu mai au,
I’m from Hanama'ulu Valley. I spent my entire life in this valley with my kiipuna, swimming in the
streams, planting kalo, and fishing in the bay. Today I cannot swim in that river because of the pollution.
A little of my history and my ties to this valley, my dad is Kimo, who has been leasing these lands from
Hanama'ulu for over 30-years, why because we come from Roslyn Kaimi, we come from Maui Keo, we
come from Benjamin Wahinealoha Keo, and Keo himself. Keo Konohiki of the entire Hanama'ulu Valley,
and our ohana bloodline has been there carrying on the Konohiki kuleana since the time of Kaikio'ewa,
regardless of the plantation history, and with multiple land commission awards throughout this valley that
are ohana to me, and the entire Puna District being under great-great grandaunt, Princess Kamamalu, I’'m
here to stand to oppose these proposed developments. While most of our ohana was kicked off their lands,
I stand here in gratitude today, to say that we, the descendants of Keo lineage are still here. Once again, |
do not approve, I oppose these developments of coming, the Ahukini Makai, the Wailani, and the Ahukini
Mauka. The only way my dad saw fitting was to keep our family in this lands, was through a lease and
over the years, due to changes of the land from ag to development, we’ve seen the drainage, we’ve seen
the 3 culverts that come down into Hanama'ulu Valley, the rubbish that you see, if you guys ever saw the
culvert and what comes down that valley, you would think that is the Lihu'e Refuse Station, which is the
Kaua'i Dump. Questions we ask is, water, where the water going come from? From my understanding, the
farmers that are on that land, that Grove Farm wants to develop, those farmers don’t even have water,
enough water to water their crops, so how are they going to supply water for that development, that’s a
question I ask. Sewage, the Hanama'ulu sewage is one of the worst on the island, that sewage is already
maxed out, it has been maxed out prior to Ho'oluana, the development if you’re not familiar with it, on
the Wailua side of Hanama'ulu Valley, and that pump station down in Kapaia, that pump station supplies
all Hanama'ulu, down that Kapaia Hill, and that pump has malfunctioned so many times and thousands of
gallons of raw sewage has spilled into that stream where we get kalo growing, we get animals that drink
that water, and Hanama'ulu Stream and the bay, is the dirtiest, most bacteria filled on this island. You can
look on the Surfrider Foundation for the reports. Traffic and evacuation, these developments, the Ahukini
Makai, and the Ahukini Mauka, and the Wailani will create the worse traffic Kaua'i will ever see in its
lifetime, worse than the Kapa'a traffic, I don’t know about you guys, but I don’t like sitting in that traffic.

Mr. Hull: Three minutes, sir. If you could wrap up your testimony.

Mr. Matsushima: Okay, I’'ll wrap it up. Thank you. And then drainage, I talked about the drainage
already, so I ask you, to please rethink these developments. Keep Hanama'ulu agricultural, the way
supposed to be, and let’s all work together to restore the damages done over the last hundred years, and a
place where we all, all of us in this room can proudly say, this is Hanama'ulu Valley and we helped
restore this place for our kids and our future because the choices that we make today affects not only me,
but your kids and your keiki, your mo'opunas, your grandkids forever, and this three developments that is
coming up we cannot go back on it. Mahalo. Thank you.

Chair DeGracia: Thank you for your testimony.

Mr. Hull: Is there anyone else who would like to testify on this agenda item? Please approach. If you
could state your name for the record and you have three minutes for testimony.

Ms. Kayla Matsushima: Aloha, my name is Kayla Matsushima, on the record I’m speaking today to
oppose the three upcoming developments, the subdivisions most, especially. I oppose all three projects
being opposed by Visionary LLC, and Hailimoi LLC, also known as Grove Farm. Why are we still
considering more subdivisions on Kaua'i? Have we all not come to the conclusion yet, that we don’t have
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a housing crisis, we have a failure and lack of regulations on housing. Have we not learned from other
subdivision proposals that we cannot add any more housing like this, if we are first able to address the
problems that already exist. It wasn’t that long ago that the Kapa'a subdivision project got stopped and
now this...all the issues that were brought forward with that project remain the same here, if not worse.
Whether you come at it from the angle of wastewater treatment, drainage, traffic, emergency evacuation,
lack of housing regulations, paving over ag land, I see problems from every angle. And when I zoom out
further and deeper into the kanaka maoli lands, I feel into wai, water usage, how this process will require
a lot of water which lead to more water diversions. I feel into all the land commission awards and royal
patents that remain in these areas and the ohana that will be affected by a project like this. I feel into iwi
ktipuna, native Hawaiian ancestral burials, the cemeteries, and ancestral bones of my husbands’ ohana
and many ohana laid to rest in the valley, and even how this project could potentially affect cultural
gathering practices downstream, all of it matters and all of it from the way I see it will be negatively
impacted by additional development, there’s no way around that. Hanama'ulu River is inundated with the
negative effects of over development from every angle and to add an additional burden by permitting
subdivisions in the surrounding areas is a burden the families of Hanama'ulu Valley do not deserve to
carry any longer, they’ve dealt with enough. It is your department that truly can make or break the future
of Kaua'i and in the last two years alone many of the decisions, not all but many, had been made by the
Planning Department that will have lasting negative impacts for generations to come. Our generation and
the seven to twenty-one generations that come after ours do not approve of projects like this that add
burden. We don’t want to have to clean up the mess that’s being because the people that have the
opportunity to protect Kaua'i are not. We are coming forward to provide the foresight that is sometimes
lacking, and we all have the opportunity to say enough is enough. If we continue down this path of over
development, I’'m afraid Kaua'i will never be the same. Please don’t add to the list of mistakes that we
can’t go back on, and they cannot be undone. Mahalo for your time and aloha.

Chair DeGracia: Thank you.

Mr. Hull: Is there anyone else that would like to testify on this agenda item? If you could state your name
for the record and you have three minutes for testimony.

Ms. Nakai'elua Villatora: Aloha mai kakou, o’ Nakai'elua Villatora, ko’u inoa on the record. (Speaking
Hawaiian). So, I wanted you folks, I wanted to address my testimony on the Special Management Area
Use Permit for the zoning of the Nawiliwili area to Hanama'ulu area, and I wanted to talk on behalf of my
ancestors that are from the ahupua‘a of Kalapaki and the ‘ili ‘aina of ki‘o lepo, so I wanted to just give
you a back story about my ancestry and my ohana that have struggled through the idea of development
and progress here in Hawai'i on Kaua‘i, so my ohana, the (inaudible) ohana that originated in Kalapaki
and was there prior to the hotel being built lived on the "aina and thrived for many generations before the
coming of the kanaka ke‘oke‘o, the missionaries who have been there, who had decided to change that
landscape to become one of the many places to inhabit this island style, this tourist attraction, and it was
my family who had the last house, last building there when the hotel was constructed. And I wasn’t really
going to speak on this but my kiipunas really urging me for you guys to understand the decisions that this
Department makes affects everyone and I wanted you folks to see, look at my children’s face, that this is
the lives that you will be affecting for the future and decisions that you make today and the days coming
will continuously, either benefit you folks or disadvantage us, and that’s how we see it as kanaka, is that
we are not able to practice our culture and traditional rites of fishing, and my family, especially in
Kalapak area and the Hanama'ulu ahupua‘a were keen fisherman and fisherwomen, and we would collect
it and gather it from many places in the streams and the mountains there and it was such a diverse area in
those ahupua‘as, and it was so bountiful in the ages of my kiipuna and there’s many, many records in
newspaper articles about that stories and nowadays, how many times you seen people fish in the waters of
Kalapaksi, fish or swam in the waters of Hanama'ulu, we all know it’s polluted. There’s no gathering there,
if you want to stay healthy, and that’s what I’m trying to understand and make other people understand
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that development doesn’t always mean progress and thank you so much for your time and I hope that you
folks really make a good decision on whether or to continue development in these particular areas that are
heavily affected by that. Mahalo nui.

Chair DeGracia: Thank you.

Ms. Villatora: Would you like to say something? What would you like to say? Bubs, come up. A prayer?
Well, my son would like to...for us to have a prayer, and our prayer coming here was for us to really have
folks be convicted by 'lo our supreme god to have you folks understand and realize, let the truth be
spoken and continue to make good decisions for the benefit of everyone not just a select few. Mahalo.

Chair DeGracia: Thank you.

Mr. Hull: Is there anyone else that would like to testify on this agenda item?

Ms. Kanani Kagawa Fu: Aloha and good morning, Commissioners and Chair DeGracia. Kanani Kagawa
Fu, those that weren’t in the previous testimony, excuse me, in the previous Subdivision Committee. Born
and raised in Anahola, grew up there and then located to Hanama'ulu, where my family home is, raised
my children, and now working between Hanama'ulu and Koloa area. Today I provide my testimony in the
capacity of a resident, in the capacity of a kanaka maoli, as a resident, both of Anahola and of
Hanama'ulu. The concern that I have with this subdivision before you and this process, is just that it
lacked one criteria, which is a completion and analysis of the Ka Pa’akai Analysis, which as you’ve seen
today in the (inaudible) hour we’ve had testimony come forward that is significant to this area. I too, have
received information of my ohana and our ties here, which then created this nexus into this meeting today.
It is always okay. My father had this saying, when in doubt, just say no, and if there’s any doubt in your
guys’ capacity to do your fiduciary duty to grant this subdivision with the lack of the Ka Pa‘akai Analysis
completed and before you, I would ask that you take that into consideration today. The analysis does
provide the framework for the Commission to do the right thing. It does provide you guys with the
framework to hear in a written way. All developers before us had to do it, I wear both hats (inaudible) do
it, so that’s what I believe for me as a resident would satisfy and put that at ease. I sit here representing
myself, but also other family members who did not want to come forward to testify on this matter. Before
I leave, again I reiterate to the Planning Commission and to the Commissioners that we defer this until we
can really, really, if you have any doubt, you should defer it, and I leave you with that. Thank you.

Chair DeGracia: Thank you.

Mr. Hull: Calling, is there anyone in the audience that would like to testify on this agenda item as a
member of the public? Seeing none.

Mr. Ako: Mr. Chair, before we get into the Committee Reports, regarding the subdivisions, is it possible
for us to enter into executive session on this issue?

Chair DeGracia: Sure. I’ll entertain a motion to go into executive session.
Ms. Streufert: I move to go into executive session.
Ms. Cox: I second.

EXECUTIVE SESSION




Chair DeGracia: Pursuant to Hawaii Revised Statutes Sections 92-4 and 92-5(a)(4), the purpose of this
executive session is to consult with the County's legal counsel on questions, issues, status, and procedural
matters. This consultation involves consideration of the powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and/or
liabilities of the Commission and the County as they relate to the following matters:

Subdivision Application No. S-2005-41
Visionary LLC. DBA Lihu'e Land Company
Ahukini Makai Subdivision

Proposed 49-lot Subdivision

TMK: (4) 3-7-002: 001 (por.)

Hanama'ulu, Lihu'e, Kaua'i

Chair DeGracia: Motion on the floor is to go into executive session. We’ll take a voice vote. All in favor
say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). Oppose? Hearing none, before we go in, how much time? 15
minutes?

Mr. Hull: Probably.

Chair DeGracia: Okay, so we’ll go into executive session to reconvene in approximately 15 minutes.

Commission went into Executive Session at 9:45 a.m.
Commission returned to Open Session at 10:36 a.m.

Chair DeGracia: Okay, time is 10:36, I’d like to call the commission meeting back to order, and to the
public, thank you very much for your patience, there’s a lot to discuss. At this time, Commissioners,
before we take any actions and motions on accepting this Subdivision Committee Report, do we have any
discussions? Or would you like to have any discussion on this agenda item? Being that there’s been a
whole bunch of information and testimonies from...

Mr. Ako: If I can, Mr. Chair. Sitting in as the Chair for the Subdivision Committee meeting, we did go
ahead and have discussions regarding the permit, in the Ahukini area regarding the industrial area, and we
think we had some discussion on that and yet as we come to this portion of the meeting here, where it
referred to the entire Commission itself having had new testimony on it, I think there’s been new
information that has been passed on to hear that I think we’d like to consider. I know a lot of times going
back into some of the testimonies that come out, I know part of the criticism has always been, we come
up here for what, and it’s a matter of, we come up here, we spill our guts out and then come 30 seconds
later it’s done like that without any real major consideration on it, so I think this one because of what has
been testified to the entire Commission here, new information, I think I will have a different view and
approach on this issue at this time.

Chair DeGracia: Thank you, Commissioner Ako, and then for myself, in addition to new information and
testimony, there’s also, I personally felt that there’s some requirements in this application concerning the
Ka Pa‘akai O Ka'Aina Analysis that I’d feel a lot more comfortable if it was completed before taking
action on it.

Ms. Cox: I think it was also helpful to have the executive session, so we had learned from the attorney
what our job as a full commission at this point is, what our options were, so that was helpful to know
since we heard additional testimony.

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, before I move forward, I’d like to invite the applicant back up.




Mr. David Hinazumi: Good morning, David Hinazumi on behalf of Visionary.

Chair DeGracia: Good morning, David. Commissioners, any questions? I have, I’d like to reserve it,
unless you guys have any at the moment. Just to clear the air, I believe I sat in the Subdivision
Committee, and I overheard, I guess a commitment towards completing a Ka Pa‘akai O Ka'Aina Analysis
moving forward. Just a question, you guys have a time frame or has that been set in motion already?

Mr. Hinazumi: Yes, so just a little bit of history, again, this is an old subdivision, unfortunately from
2005, at the time of subdivision there was no requirement to do the Ka Pa’akai, of course recently there’s
a much larger focus on finishing the Ka Pa'akai, so even though it wasn’t a requirement we still went
ahead and ordered a Ka Pa’akai to be done, so it’s in progress right now, there’s been two rounds of
outreach, there has been some input coming in, I believe some of the input is kind of been in relation to
some of the testimony that you’ve heard today. Throughout today, yes, we’ve been given new information
as well and our commitment is to finish that Ka Pa’akai Analysis. We’ve got additional people that we’ve
been made aware of that should also be consulted throughout the process. The consultant did have a fairly
lengthy list of people that they already did the outreach to and as we get more information there’s
outreach that we will do, so we are committed to finish the Ka Pa‘akai Analysis for this project.

Chair DeGracia: Okay, thank you. Commissioners, any questions, comments for the applicant, anything
further?

Ms. Streufert: If this is already in progress, when do you anticipate that this would be completed?

Mr. Hinazumi: Unfortunately, we’re not quite sure yet, of course, what I mentioned as for new
information of additional people to speak to, we’ll get that process going as soon as possible, (inaudible)
right after this meeting or by tomorrow, start working on getting those additional contacts, hopefully we
can get the input in a reasonable time, I couldn’t tell you what that is but as soon as can, yes we want to
complete it because this analysis we’re doing it for other subdivisions as well, that we want to get them
finished.

Ms. Streufert: One final question from me, if we were to approve this subdivision application, and you’re
continuing this Ka Pa'akai Analysis, during the time between now and when you complete it, what kind
of work would you do on the land? Would all work stop until it’s been completed?

Mr. Hinazumi: There’s no work to be done immediately after subdivision approval is granted, it will take
some time before any construction could occur as there’s steps that need to be taken, and yes, we want to
complete this Ka Pa’akai to make sure there’s, within the industrial area where construction will occur
and there will be disturbances to the ground, we want to make sure we’re going to be clear. We’ve gone
through SHPD, there was an inventory study done, we want to get the additional information from this Ka
Pa’akai Analysis in those areas. There is a remainder parcel that is created out of this subdivision, that is
the cliff side, overlooking Hanama'ulu Bay, and that area we know, we’ve been aware that that is an area
of definite interest, we want to make sure that we take a look at that area and see what can be done to
preserve that.

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, anything further for the applicant? Okay, David any last comments for
this Commission?

Mr. Hinazumi: No.

Chair DeGracia: Okay, thank you.




Ms. Streufert: Okay, I think then that ’'m ready to propose a motion.
Ms. Otsuka: Thank you.

Ms. Streufert: Based on the information that we have received today and the testimonies that we have
received, I move that we refer this application back to the Subdivision Committee until there is a
completed Ka Pa’akai Analysis and based upon what I heard just now it may have any impact upon the
time frame because they were not going to do anything until it was completed anyway.

Ms. Cox: I will the second the motion.

Chair DeGracia: Okay, Commissioners, motion we have on the floor is to refer it back to the Subdivision
Committee to address the Ka Pa’akai O Ka'Aina Analysis. Could we get a roll call vote, Mr. Clerk?
Actually, any further discussion before we take a vote?

Ms. Cox: Is it important that we put in the motion that they are waiting for a completed Ka Pa’akai
Analysis? You said that...

Chair DeGracia: Yeah, I believe...

Ms. Cox: ...but Francis (inaudible) restated it, so I just wanted to make sure that it is, that the sub
committee going to waiting for a completed Ka Pa’akai Analysis and then...

Mr. Hull: It will be reflected by the motion maker.

Ms. Cox: Okay, thank you.

Mr. Ako: If anything, Mr. Chair, I’d just like to thank those that came out to testify on this issue over here
and hopefully it makes a difference in terms of why people come out and hopefully this will encourage

other people to come out also.

Chair DeGracia: Good point, Commissioner. Nothing further. Mr. Clerk?

Mr. Hull: Roll call. Commissioner Ako?
Mr. Ako: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Cox?

Ms. Cox: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas?

Mr. Ornellas: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioners Otsuka?

Ms. Otsuka: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Streufert?

Ms. Streufert: Aye.



Mr. Hull: Chair DeGracia?

Chair DeGracia: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Motion passes, Mr. Chair. 6:0.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS (For Action)

In the Matter of Planning Director Kaaina S. Hull's Petition to revoke Applicant Bula Tree House
LLC Use Permit U-90-38 and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-90-51 (former Mark Daniells art

gallery approved in 1990), and Use Permit U-19-78 and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-1V-78-28
(former Diane Daniells pre-school approved in 1978) for failure to comply with conditions of
approval by the Planning Commission and Issue an Order to Show Cause and Set Hearing;

Memorandum in Support of Petition; Declaration of Kaaina S. Hull; Notice of Meeting;
Certificate of Service, TMK (4) 5-5-004: 23, Hanalei, Kaua'i. [Deferred 2/14/2023, Deferred

4/11/2023.

Mr. Hull: This is petition for revocation that you folks received from myself several months ago. It was
not received in time to place it on the agenda and transmit it to you ahead of time of the meeting, but you
folks are all in possession of a stipulated revocation of the subject permits from the applicant’s
representative, lan Jung. The Department has reviewed the stipulated agreement and are fine with the
stipulated agreement. Being that you folks have just received it, I know you folks read it, ultimately the
Department is asking for a deferral until the next Planning Commission meeting for you folks to review it
if necessary and if there’s any proposed amendments, if not, I’'m getting quizzical looks, that some of you
folks are maybe willing to take action today, I have no problem taking action today, we are in agreement
with the stipulated agreement draft. You may want to ask the attorney representing the applicant if he’s
okay with action today, otherwise if any individual wants deferral on this item, to further review, the
Department has no objections to that as well.

Mr. lan Jung: Good morning, Commission, Ian Jung on behalf of Bula Tree LLC. I actually drafted the
proposed stipulation, so if you want to sign it today that’s fine with us, and I’ve been in contact with the,
one of the complainants and I gave them an opportunity to review it and I got an email saying that they’re
fine with the approach and the terminology. Essentially there’s two older entitlements that were
associated with this property, one with a regard to a pre-school operation that is no longer in use and there
other one for a small 288 square foot little commercial space that’s been used for an art gallery, which we
worked with the Planning Department and the complainant to try and cease the use by December 31% of
year, 2023, and based on those terms of the stipulated revocation, the operation would cease by that date,
on or before that date, so they had a new tenant come in and they want to just give them time to wrap up
operations. So, I did speak with the Deputy County Attorney if they want time, it’s fine with us but if you
guys are fine with the draft now, once it’s signed by the Planning Director, we will sign it and the
Commission, I believe signs it thereafter. And it basically functions like a stipulated finding of fact,
conclusions of law, decision and order, so just a formal mechanism to terminate the permit on the records.

Mr. Hull: Just a little further background, if you recall, this is an art studio that was supposed to be
temporary in nature has been operating for years, and without the associated school use that was
occurring there previously that was considered an accessory too, so the Department did finally make a
move this past year to look at revocation of those permits, and quite honestly, in a contested case hearing,
revocation proceedings would take a minimum of a year and a half to possibly two years, with the
applicants right, should they choose to do so to appeal on up to the further court system, so Mr. Jung
coming in here with a proposed stipulated agreement to end that within this calendar year is a much
quicker resolution than what could get to contested case, which is why the Departments amendable to it.
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Ms. Otsuka: It’s nice for me to be able to see, so on page 5, it does state, tenant to cease the art gallery use
on or before December 31%. 2023. So, it’s nice for me to see, visually.

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, any questions? Comments?

Ms. Streufert: So, the Department is in agreement with the stipulated?

Mr. Hull: Yes. I guess if there are no further questions for the owner’s representative or the Department, it
is an agenda item, we should ask for public testimony.

Chair DeGracia: Thank you, Ian.

Mr. Jung: Thank you.

Chair DeGracia: Is there anybody in the public who wishes to testify on this agenda item?

Mr. Hull: Sorry, we’ve been dinged enough by OIP.

Chair DeGracia: Hearing none. Commissioners, I’m willing to receive a motion for this agenda item,
whether to defer it or to approve the stipulated revocation of use permit.

Ms. Otsuka: So, it’s approve not accept? Approve?

Mr. Hull: Approve.

Ms. Cox: I’ll make a motion to approve the stipulated revocation of Use Permit U-90-38 and Class IV
Zoning Permit Z-IV-90-51 and Use Permit U-19-78 and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-1V-78-28, that was
brought to us today.

Ms. Otsuka: Second.

Ms. Cox: Or do I have to say something else?

Deputy County Attorney Chris Donahoe: Just also the findings and facts.

Ms. Cox: Findings that support conclusions of law and decision and order Exhibits A through D.
Ms. Otsuka: Second.

Chair DeGracia: Okay, Commissioners motion is on the floor to approve the stipulated revocation of Use
Permit and other stuff. We’ll take a roll call vote, Mr. Clerk.

Mr. Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Ako?
Mr. Ako: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Cox?

Ms. Cox: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas?
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Mr. Ornellas: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioners Otsuka?
Ms. Otsuka: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Streufert?
Ms. Streufert: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Chair DeGracia?

Chair DeGracia: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Motion passes, Mr. Chair. 6:0.

NEW BUSINESS (For Action)

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-10), CLASS IV ZONING
PERMIT (Z-1V-2023-10), USE PERMIT (U-2023-7) to allow construction of public shared use
path extending from Nawiliwili Park to Ahukini Landing and associated improvements involving
a new comfort station, drainage ways, protective fencing and paved parking area, and
SHORELINE SETBACK VARIANCE PERMIT (SSV-2023-1) to deviate from the shoreline
setback requirement involving properties along makai side of the Lihue Airport, further identified
as Tax Map Keys: 3-5-001:004, 005, 008, 009, 085, 092, 102, 128, 158 & 160; 3-7-002:001
(Por.) and affecting a total area of approx. 9.2 acres = County of Kaua'i, Department of Public
Works. [Director's Report Received 4/25/2023.]

Mr. Hull: Before turning it over to Romio. We don’t have anybody signed up; we closed the agency
hearing but it is a separate agenda item. Is there any member of the public that would like to testify on this
agenda item? Seeing none, I’ll turn it over to Romio for the Directors Report pertaining to this matter.

Staff Planner Romio Idica: Aloha, Chair and Commissioners.

Mr. Idica read the Summary, Project Data, Project Description and Use, Additional Findings,
Preliminary Evaluation, and Preliminary Conclusion sections of the Director’s Report for the
record (on file with the Planning Department).

Mr. Idica: That concludes my brief summary of the Director’s Report. Before I read the recommendations
are there any questions from the Chair or Commissioners?

Ms. Streufert: I do have a couple of questions. This bike path which is something that we all would like to
see completed, goes over very sensitive areas, pass very close to the airport, pass a radar surveillance,
there’s radar ESR, it’s on page 24, and they have worked with the DOT, the FAA, as well as the TSA and
air traffic control but is there any specific written document that says that all of these entities have agreed
to this and that have agreed that this is not a safety issue.

Mr. Idica: We have not received any formal documentation from Dot Airports, TSA, or FAA. We haven’t
received any formal letters or comments. The applicant did however complete some meeting with DOT
Airports and TSA, and they have some written comments from those agencies, but nothing formally
written to the Department or the applicant.
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Ms. Streufert: Because the radar station is apparently outside the perimeter of the airport, so it’s not
protected in any way, but the pull boxes are, or they will be modified so that they can be locked against
vandalism and theft but there’s nothing about the radar station that’s out there, which I think is a pretty
important piece of our safety, and while I don’t think that...this is one of those issues where there’s, 1
think a low risk right now, but a high consequence if something were to happen, but once this goes on to
the internet and it will, once it becomes a bike path, there will be lots of people out there and there’s no, I
think protection right now for that radar station which is outside of that. Who has control of that when it is
outside of the perimeter of the airport?

Mr. Idica: That I’'m not sure. [ would have to do some research and probably get back to you and the
Commissioners.

Mr. Hull: We can also ask the applicant, if they can provide any further insight into that particular
concern.

Ms. Cox: I have two questions. One of them is because we just got the Department of Waters comments
this morning. I haven’t seen them before and they did mention that there is no water out to the parcel and
isn’t going to be a comfort station at Ninini Point, can you just speak to that.

Mr. Idica: I would like to defer to the applicant regarding that and what source of infrastructure there is
out there right now.

Ms. Cox: Okay, and then this one I think you can answer but I’m not sure, and that is the drainage 3 that’s
going to have the long bridge that is 25-feet deviation from what it should be. Is there any danger...I can’t
picture exactly where it is, but could you speak to the danger of coastal erosion.

Mr. Idica: Right now, the existing shoreline is a rocky shore, it’s about a 50-foot-high cliff bluff, so, there
is erosion, rocky shores are not indestructible. There is erosion but it’s very, very minimum, unless there
is a catastrophic event that would pull the whole cliff down to the ocean the Department feels because this
is a public access area and yes, we do not take a deviation from our shoreline setbacks to kindly or easily,
but we feel that it is necessary to place that bridge in that particular area because of the topography and
the existing landscape to avoid any extra grating or excavation.

Ms. Cox: Okay, thank you, Romio.

Mr. Hull: I’11 just add to that too because it’s a good question, Commissioner and as the path gets
expanded it’s continuously one of our points of concern. When the original paths in Wailua and Kapa‘a
were built or even designed, the State of Hawai'i and definitely (inaudible) the County of Kaua‘i did not
have the studies concerning coastal erosion and sea-level rise at that time. Now having those studies, that
path has been put in places that are extremely susceptible to coastal hazards, and there’s definitely a good
discussion and debate and dialogue that needs to occur around public facilities, proximity to the coastline
versus private structures. Private structures close proximity to erodible shoreline that’s just bad idea
because they’re going to have to seawall it and that will make a coastal beach access gone, but from a
public facilities park aspect, the park itself, park facilities are intended to create close proximity access to
what are sometimes, hazardous areas. Having said that though, your general park, you need to get those
restrooms and park facilities close to the beach because that’s why the people are going to go to that park,
that’s the purpose of the park. When you’re looking at a bike path or multi-mobile path I should say, I
think we definitely in reviewing these new applications, have learned our lesson from the original path,
saying, yes, the path can serve a very wonderful public purpose, but having a path next to an erodible
shoreline, a sandy erodible shoreline, you need to consider moving that path away so can address and
accommodate that coastal erosion, so pretty much in the past five years that has been one of our key
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focus. Luckily for this proposal there are not many sandy areas, really it’s mostly all rocky shorelines, and
like I said, those areas that the path is being proposed, like the previous one you folks reviewed last year
as well as this one, our position has been, if it’s going to be near a sandy shoreline, you need to be located
at a distance that can accommaodate for erosion without having to necessarily either remove the path and
certainly not create a seawall to erase that beach.

Ms. Cox: Thank you.

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, any further questions for the Department? No?

Mr. Hull: I’'m not sure if you guys wanted to bring the applicant up for...

Chair DeGracia: Yes. We can have the applicant’s representative.

Mr. Jim Niermann: Good morning, Commissioners. I’'m Jim Niermann with R.M. Towill Corporation on
behalf of the Department of Public Works. Should I launch in?

Chair DeGracia: Yes, please.

Mr. Niermann: Okay, didn’t know if you wanted me to (inaudible) questions. Okay, see if | can share
screen here and get this going. Fortunately, I get to spare you a lot of the presentation because Romio
covered it. Here we go. So, as he mentioned, 1’1l kind of go through quickly through the first half of this
then we can get to the need of the questions that we’ve been discussing. As he mentioned, we’re Segment
6 of Ke Ala Hele Makalae and these are all of the segments, we’re down here and our original scope of
work, so we’re focused in right now on Phase A of Segment 6. The original scope of work for Segment 6
is Ahukini to Nawiliwili Harbor to Lihu'e and the project purpose, obviously there are multi-fold to
develop a multimodal path system to connect both regionally as well locally alternatives to internal
combustion of automobile transportation, create a nice recreation amenity for both the residents and the
visitors to Kaua‘i to promote healthy lifestyles, to build island resiliency by providing this alternative
mode of transportation or a infrastructure to support alternative modes of transportation and this speaks to
the, right now as far as connecting these communities the highway doesn’t have facility other than for
internal combustion vehicle other than automobiles, so if you want to get from point A to point B, you’re
taking your chances or you’re either brave, stupid, or skilled or a little combination of all three to navigate
the highway to get through this particular 16-mile area. Then in addition on the subject of resiliency this
may sound far fetched in some circles but in the potential future where we may have a more volatile
energy markets where gas prices may compel more and more people who have already seen it quite a bit
to get out of their cars or to make hard choices about transportation and having an alternative mode of
transportation would support the resiliency to be able get from point A to point B without having to rely
on an automobile or a gas powered automobile. This is our overall Segment 6, kind of our initial
objectives. I’ll kind of go through this. As you can see all the dash lines in there, that was a total scope of
Segment 6 and we're focused in on Phase A, which this we might need to clarify a little bit because
Segment E and F, I think, are not part of this application. That's why you don't see them on the screen
here, I think, E and F we were initially considering including them, but those would have connected the
back of the Kaua‘i Marriott down to Nawiliwili Park, two separate sections here. So, everything in yellow
here is what's being proposed to be developed by the county. The blue, that’s Segment B and D, those
will be developed by Timbers Resorts, so separate. And (inaudible) should be looking down here,
hopefully the colors are coming through, but the blue highlight is the SMA area of the 17,000 linear feet
of path that's within the SMA, about 8,000 of that is within the conservation district as well, and that's
essentially stretching from right here at this point, which is the drainageway 3, where the new bridge is
proposed, that prefabricated bridge. You can see the cursor here, so right here all the way to right here this
is all the conservation segment. There are few places like in drainageway 4, it dips out a little bit, and I
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think there’s one or two others where the conservation line and the SMA line don’t exactly align. Zoning,
I know Romio mentioned, but we have a little bit of the blue down here is the Ag, Conservation is the
yellow, we're actually all on the makai of Ahukini Road, down at Ahukini Point. We go into the IG STP
zoning in the gray around the airport, conservation when we drop, dip back down into this parcel, which
is county owned, and then once we leave the SMA, here, we're into open zoning. The SMA does not
include, I just want to point out, doesn't include the very end of Ninini Point. That is outside of the SMA,
and that's where it's the comfort station is proposed, but we will speak of that, we’ll provide some more
description of that. State Land Use Districts, so we're in urban, industrial, and Ag, there’s a little bit of Ag
down here, in the red, urban is the orange, I'm sorry red is conservation, urban orange, and then the green
is Ag. Okay, back to this but we're gonna come back and rephrase this, I can come back to this if the
Commission is interested. This is basically a timeline of the project, but I don't wanna get lost in the
weeds of this, it's been a long process, we started in 2007. We have quite a few delays that we're mostly
related waiting for the Federal (inaudible) agencies and State to work through the NHPA 106 process.
Okay, moving down, so path improvements as you mentioned, we're proposing a 10-to-12-foot path
wherever feasible and 8 feet where we're constrained, including across that prefabricated bridge. Some of
the statistics up there that 17,000 linear feet within the SMA for Segment A, so the only two segments,
I’ll go back to this drawing, that are in the SMA, is Segment A, from Ahukini Point or Ahukini Landing
up to Ninini Point and then a short portion, about 1200 linear feet is Ahukini Road, Segment G. The rest
of Segment C, and the others are outside of the SMA. These are just some examples from the Lydgate
Project of the type of improvements that are being proposed. The most substantial, probably
improvements between Ahukini Landing and Ninini Point, setting aside the comfort station, would be
interpretive signage, you know, the more kiosk type of signage, otherwise it's all either just path or more
informational signage on poles, kind of like more utility signage. Bollards, so at four locations, actually, I
think, might’ve had five locations, I apologize, confusing with drainageways. One of the issues that came
up from day 1 of the project was access to the fishing sites along the shoreline, which are currently
accessed by the dirt road, that public access dirt road that circles the airport, they’re numerous roads, or
just little turn offs that provide vehicle access almost down to the shoreline where people fish, so we're
preserving five of those access points for motor vehicle access. All segments to the shoreline would
remain open, and for the most part the path will be or actually entirely would be on the side of the makai
side of that existing dirt road providing access so where are the driveways have to come across, we’re
proposing some type of bollard just to protect, prevent vehicles from getting onto the paved pathway, and
just to protect the users of the path from motor vehicle traffic across the pathway and these are just some
examples we understand those had to be designed to prevent easy (inaudible) I know those could get
moved pretty. These are just a focus on the four drainageways, two of which are outside of the SMA,
that’s drainageway 1 and 2, starting on the north end. What we're proposing is to come up to the existing
airport perimeter road and use the existing culverts. We've only done the preliminary alignment and the
basis of design, right now we don't anticipate needing to widen those two culverts, but that's still a
possibility that they would have to be widened to accommodate the path, looks like there’s enough room
in those two, and then once we're across them, we're diving up and down, basically getting right back to
the shoreline as quickly as we can, and I'll come back to drainageway 2 and runway 21 in a sec.
Drainageway 3 is where the bridge is proposed, a 140 foot bridge, so a couple of things that we’re setting
the location of that bridge, one, as Romio said, the primary reason is, where the topography, where the
path wants to go or should go to minimizing the amount of grating, we are also aligning the path, one to
get it as close to the shoreline as we could, so part of that was to move it as far away from the airport as
we could, and this was in response to the comments from both the Federal Airport or Federal Aviation
Authorities, as well as the State, and then also to, it kind of push down by the shoreline and then we
pushed it back outside of the shoreline setback. Initially we had an alignment that was even closer to the
shorelines, we moved that out of the setback. I think that the bridge was in the same place just because of
the topography, but that's what you're seeing in the approximate location here. Of the bridge crossing, the
existing dirt road access, there's another access road right here that's also used, so we're trying to stay
away from that road as well, and then drainageway 4, we come up again outside of the 60-foot shoreline
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setback and intersect with the existing dirt road, and the plan at this location, which is within the SMA, is
to expand that road on the mauka side, either through a retaining wall or through embankment and then
shift the road mauka and keep the pathway along the existing road alignment, and then drop back down
closer to the shoreline as we proceed. These are just photos of drainageway 1 and 2, the crossings there,
so it looks like there's plenty of room to accommodate both the path as well as the roadway. Just a
preliminary schematic of the bridge abutments just showing a 140-foot range across, so as Romio said,
about 75 feet setback from the certified shoreline, and we're at an elevation of about 55 feet above sea
level with the abutments, so we're staying outside of the VE inundation and set pretty far back in terms of
potential for effect from erosion. And drainageway crossing 4, this is what it looks like. This is the closest
we get to the sand, and probably the biggest concern for erosion along this stretch of coastline. In the
analysis that we did, and in talking to the folks at (inaudible) Chip Fletchers crew, they didn't do an
analysis of this segment of shoreline, it’s generally considered to be stable as stable as shorelines come in
the State. And then the sketch below in that drawing makai is on the top, mauka is on the bottom. The
gray one here is the path, and that's following the edge of...so right at this point you can see the cursor
there, that's where the existing culvert comes out, so be holding that line, not going any further makai of
the exiting improvements and then shifting everything on the mauka side. And then just wanted to point
out at Ninini Point, the lighthouse was proposed out there, this again, is a concept drawing, the design
might look something different, but the comfort station is proposed to be located on a former site of the
caretaker's house, where that existing foundation was, and then having some type of pave or gravel
parking area and a turnaround. Everything in the light green there, is outside of the SMA, so most of that
those improvements would be outside of the SMA, but that's what's conceived. The sketch below I think
has been used in a couple of other segments. We know that this is one of the conditions, it was part of the
NHPA 106 and the (inaudible) mitigation commitments by the county, was when it comes time to design
a comfort station and develop the interpretative programming for that area, additional consultation will
have to occur both with SHPD, Historic Kaua‘i Foundation, Kaua‘i Historic Preservation Review
Committee, as well as the native Hawaiian organizations who expressed interest in participating, so that
will be the outcome of another consultation process. And just for the record, also the mitigation
commitments, both on that particular part of the development as well as an overall interpretive
programming also require a consultation with those groups. Let's see, environment, I’1l kind of go through
this more quickly than it deserves, but we have, this is just an example of some of the fishing access that I
mentioned here on the left. We do have the path crossing the stabilized slope, that portion that used to be
a dump, that was then stabilized with geofiber/geotextile, and the path that’s crossing that stabilized
portion in this area, and then just an image of the rocky shoreline, this is pretty characteristic of the
shoreline there. From this vantage, the path would be up above the top of the bluff here, this is more of a
kind of a visual of the environment. Flora and fauna in the area there are numerous protected species,
primarily (inaudible) fauna, but others as well. So, there are four that are in danger, the Néng, Koloa,
'Alae 'ula, 'Alae ke'oke'o, 'ua'u kani, oh no, I'm sorry, the 'ua'u kani is not. Those are all listed species, or
they're not endangered, but they are listed and protected, and that’s the wedge-tailed shearwater, the
petrel, Newell Shearwater, also the Hawaiian hoary bat as possible, monk seals, we know pull up on the
sand pocket beaches, green sea turtles and hawksbill turtles as well. There was no endangered flora found
in the area and there's no critical habitat identified according to both DLNR and Fish and Wildlife Service
and no (inaudible). So, the mitigation, though, is essentially for the Nén€ and the shearwater nesting that's
at the south end of the runway, kind of between Ninini Point and the Timbers Resort, is to fence that area
off to prevent dogs on the trail from accessing the ground nests, and then also there would be no lighting
other than at the comfort station and any lighting would be shiclded and angled downwards, so the normal
mitigation for shielding, lighting, and other than that, it's limited to informational and interpretive signage
for the echo environmental resources and ecosystem function there. Historic and cultural resources,
there's quite a bit on this coastline. So, there are approximately, depending on how you break them up,
from the clusters, but there are approximately 25 total in the area. Within our Phase A area. Nine of those
were considered significant and five were recommended for particular mitigation, the remainder where it
was mostly the significance was for data recovery, but the highlighted ones here, which are identified
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here, consisted of a (inaudible) in placement, there were two terraces, habitation, identified as habitation
areas, there are rock terraces, and there was one potential burial site, and the background in the burial site
was it was a mounds of stones, "ili‘ili stones, the initial interpretation by the field archaeologists was
either a push pile or potential burial, and it was treated as potential burial and the mitigation commitments
follow through on that. The subsequent interpretation right now is that that might have been an
overzealous interpretation, but nobody knows, but the recommendation was to pull the recommendation
for a burial treatment plan and preservation, not make it a requirement, and to avoid that site altogether,
but these are specifically identified in the mitigation commitments to avoid these by some distance
between 20 and 50 feet, and that's what's showing in the path of alignment here. Let's see, Maintenance a
Monitoring, probably well known to you, but Public Works and Parks and Rec would be responsible for
maintenance of the path and then security the DPR Park Rangers, and then HPD would be called in if
necessary, and then DLNR in and around the airport, the Federal agencies as necessary, and then overall
construction costs within the SMA it’s about, I'm gonna say, 6 million. I'm squinting, yes, and just shy of
13 million outside of the SMA, for a total just of 19 million is the estimated construction costs for this
Phase A. I already talked about path benefits. So, I want to go back and just talk quickly, well not quickly,
but speak about the airport, the airport concerns. Okay, so early in the process, we had, we did have
meetings with TSA, FAA, Air Traffic Control, DOT Airports, Homeland Security, they were all part of
the consultation for this is as we were preparing EA. The concern that they had was, of course, proximity
to the airport and proximity to the navigational aids. Their request was to stay as far away from those as
possible, for the navigational aids, he said, 200 feet if you can, which is what we tried to do by moving
the pathway in certain locations. There was also, I think, DOT Air initially the state DOT Airports,
initially said, avoid using the airport perimeter road, and it was avoid it, if you can, stay away from it, if
you can. They prefer that, for us to stay off of it. They subsequently, just recently, the alignment you see
here, they approved in the form of a right of entry agreement, so that is an executed document that has
this path alignment where we touch on those two drainageways, 1 and 2. Come back up, so they’re good
with this alignment. Generally, those agencies, not just generally, but specifically and generally they were
supportive of the project, TSA in particular, their opinion was, if you put the path there, you're gonna
have more good people in the area with smartphones, keeping an eye on things, so that was the response
that they had. We have the meetings notes documented in our correspondence back to them we did get a
response from FAA and the ATC, the Air Traffic Control saying no further comment. We didn't receive
any final comment from the TSA Homeland Security or, actually DOT we've been working with them
continuously through this, so as far as the impact, I think the main concern was out at Ninini Point, here I
think the...sorry it’s not showing too well on here but this is actually the path, so somewhere back up in
here, I think we're closer, we maybe a little closer than 200 feet to the radar at the end of Ninini Point, but
that was also part of the discussions with the DOT Air and with Air Traffic Control, and FAA, that this is
where the path has to go because we have a pinch point in this location, and they understood that, they
just said, stay as far away from those features as you can. With that I'll just save a breath, pause and
happy to answer any questions.

Ms. Cox: What about the water at the comfort station?

Mr. Niermann: Oh, yeah, you’re correct, there is no water system out to the comfort station, so the
comfort station, the furthest we got in concept was either, it would at least be composting toilets, or a new
water line would have to be brought in from Ninini Point Street, so that would be determined during

design.

Ms. Streufert: I have a question about security, you were saying, with the ASR. You have a security that’s
around the pull-boxes.

Mr. Niermann: Yeah.
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Ms. Streufert: But nothing around the ASR, which is the Airport Surveillance Radar, and you said you’re
about 200 feet away from it, is that correct?

Mr. Niermann: Yes, that was the distance that they were desiring that we be from that.

Ms. Streufert: You've talked to all of these agencies in consultation, but do you have anything in writing
from them that says that they agree with this, or they approve of it?

Mr. Niermann: We don’t have a...only from the FAA and ATT and ATC, so from the Federal...DOT Air
only...let’s see...we don't have something that says like, we agreed with this precise alignment. We do
have the letter from them that was in their comments on the EA, and then we have the executed right of
entry for this path alignment.

Ms. Streufert: How long would it take to get a written agreement from them or a written approval?
Mr. Niermann: From DOT Air?

Ms. Streufert: From all of these people and to include Homeland Security and KEMA, for instance, |
would think would have an impact on this too, and the reason for saying is because in the State of Hawai'i
there are very few airports that are above sea level, Kaua‘i is one of the only ones in the whole state, so if
anything were to happen, Kaua‘i would be the entry point, and yet we're not securing this to the point
where the surveillance radar is protected. I understand that more eyes in this area are good, I kind of get
that, but the problem with it, is that once this is identified on the internet, and it will be because it's very
beautiful and you have done a really good job of presenting all of the good points about or the scenic
points about it, it will be on the internet, and there will be a lot more people there who we would not
know, who they are or anything like that. Right now, it's primarily for locals that go through there, but
when it gets opened up we have no clue, and frankly, I’m a little concerned only because of what I’ve
read about people having all of these TikTok challenges and everything else, and maybe it’s overblown,
I'm not sure because I'm really not on to the social media, but even one, it’s called a low risk. Sorry about
that, but even one, all it takes is one right, when you're on the other side of it, when you’re on the
protective side of it, you have to be vigilant all the time for anyone who wants to create havoc, it only
takes one time. So, it's a low risk, but a high consequence of anything where it happened to that radar
station or anything else. Is there any mitigation plan for that radar station, or even for the lighthouse for
example, has been thought of, like you’ve done it for the pull-boxes, and how long would it take to get a
written approval from all of these agencies to approve the pathway? And the reason for asking this is
because I really don't know enough about this, but I do know that there could be security risks and I
would like to make sure that everyone who is involved in this has approved it before we get to the point
where we are approving it because we're not the experts on this.

Mr. Niermann: So, to answer your question directly about how long, I don’t know because...

Mr. Hull: Sorry, if I could just briefly interrupt...if you wouldn’t mind stopping share screen and we can
turn on our video, sorry. Go ahead, sorry.

Mr. Niermann: [ was gonna say, I don't know how long that would take, because all the agencies, even in
any given season, they have different speeds with which they respond. DOT Airports has been excellent
in this past year in working through the right of entry, and then signing off on the application form which
they have to do as the landowner or the authority with control over those lands. So, we and as far as
getting an official approval letter we kind of assume we have that by the no objection, by the no further
comment from FAA and ATC, as well as the right of entry that the airports approved, that DOT Air
approved because they go through their internal review as well for issues of security and the fact that it's a
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public access now so we were improving the security of that. I know, your point is well taken though, it'll
be on the internet, there's good to be much increased traffic that won't just be, you know, the people who
can access the bumpy dirt road, you know, and handle that, so if yeah, so, that I guess the response is |
don't know how long it would take, it definitely would take some time, it might go very quickly, or it
might get, you know, bogged down. I know when we did the initial consultation with those agencies we
started at the Summer of 2008 and concluded in May of 2009, so it was a little less than, it was about
eight months maybe getting them all together.

Ms. Streufert: 2008 to 2009 is what, 15 years ago.
Mr. Niermann: Yeah.

Ms. Streufert: Conditions have changed since then in terms of the internet and what kinds of risks that we
take. Is there any plan to get the approval from these agencies? It's different to have a consultation,
because you have different kinds of people at table, and then when you have to have approval and a
written document, you've got an official seal that says we have seen this and we approve it, and that’s
very different from saying in a meeting, yeah, sounds like a good idea.

Mr. Hull: I'll just interject real quickly to Commissioner. I definitely hear the concerns being raised, but
also to raise that, they may not legally be able to get approval from some of these agencies in that, say the
Department is consulted on an array of different issues, if it's not an actual application and it’s a property
owner, the Planning Department could never say, we hereby approve of this project, and so, some of these
agencies that are being listed may have internal mechanisms that say they can't use the phrase approval,
but I think to your point, though, that if there's a desire to specifically list this concern about public access
or proximity to sensitive assets that that could possibly be highlighted and transmitted to these agencies.
But I just wanted to raise that, he may not be able to get an actual approval letter.

Mr. Niermann: I also just wanted to add on to make the point, that it wasn't just a simple, informal
consultation sounds good, and nobody disagreed, and the donuts were delicious. It was more formal than
that, and those consultations, this was the consult early and often. That was a very diligent effort to, as a
foundation for our EA, our 343 EA, so as we went through that process, it was long time ago, 2008, 2009,
the final EA didn't get published till 2017, and I hope I'm not digging myself a hole about these timelines,
we can go back to that to that one. When the final EA was published, it was also, of course, distributed to
those agencies specifically because of their involvement in the development of the plans and the plans
responded to their comments and their input by shifting the path by adding certain features, so there's a lot
of diligence involved in that through the final EA. The final EA didn’t document any objections or
concerns, and it was consistent with the concerns that they initially raised, and our responses to those
concerns.

Ms. Streufert: So, who owns the ASR?

Mr. Niermann: Actually, I don't know. It's either FAA or ATC, but I think the land it's on, it's under
DOT’s jurisdiction.

Ms. Streufert: I’'m not really concerned about the land so much as I’'m concerned the safety and security
because it is a radar station for the airport.

Mr. Niermann: Yeah, then it’s FAA and Air Traffic Control are the two that...

Ms. Streufert: If we were to defer this until you had some, at least a written either agreement, doesn’t
have to be approval, but agreement or something like that, would that set you back?
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Mr. Niermann: It would, yes. Right now, the project is Federally funded, and the Federal Highways
Administration is carefully watching the schedule. The project was delayed for quite a while as, and I can
go back to that, to that timeline slide, if anybody wants to, and a lot of that had to do with just the
coordination among the agencies to get through, the first hold up was NHP issues, back in 2012, related to
Wailua and other areas that required Federal level guidance to trickle down to Federal Highways to then
to come down to the State and the County, and then there were other delays that related to that same
process they were procedural, at any rate because of those delays Federal Highways was very concerned
about further delays to the project. I know DPW was concerned about Federal Highways saying this
project is gonna forever be stuck and they would then ask for the funds that they've contributed to the
project back and the County would on the hook for reimbursing the Federal government, Federal
Highways Administration. I know that's not a sound basis for doing planning to say we're just a we're not
gonna fulfill something, if we were to delay by six months or eight months, I know it would be a
tremendous concern, and would cause ripples back to the Federal Highway folks that are overseeing this,
and the State folks that are overseeing the, that their funds are being channeled through, so I don't know if
there's a way to crafted it as a condition that would be my first, you know, hope or plea, that is was a
condition of the SMA, but then that goes back to the Director's concern that what is it that we can expect
to get from those agencies, is it just, no objection? You know kind of...is something more formal of a no
objection versus a, we approve or some type of design review. Ordinarily projects around the airports, if
you have vertical structures, there's a preconstruction evaluation form that you have to submit to the FAA,
and then they take into account all of the aspects of impacts and navigation. It's mostly on navigation, I'm
not so sure about security actually (inaudible). Anyways, so that'd be, my plea would be to try to advance
it and maybe craft a condition if that’s at all possible.

Ms. Streufert: If one were to voice this concern would that, would the Departments preference be for a
condition or a deferral. Until there’s not approval necessarily but at least an agreement from these
different agencies.

Mr. Hull: You know the Department would have no problem with, say a deferral for, say, a month or two,
I’'m not sure that addresses the applicant’s timeline. I know, 6 to 8 months is very concerning to them.
The other option that I just quickly jotted it down, a possible condition, of course I'm not sure if it gets to
Commissioner Streufert’s concerns or might be overly burdensome to the applicant’s process, but I can
read it out for discussion purposes.

Ms. Cox: Let’s hear it.

Mr. Hull: Prior to building permit approval, the applicants shall secure affirmation from the FAA and the
ATC, otherwise Air Traffic Control, that security of the radar site will not become compromised by the
proposed project.

Ms. Streufert: Could we include DOT as well as Homeland Security? And whatever, I think those are the
only agencies, correct? DOT, TSA, FAA, Air Traffic Control those are the ones that were listed in your
application. This is not to say that I disagree with this, I do agree with this whole concept, I like the idea
of a bike path, just not really sure about security and for me that’s one of the primary concerns because
we are part of public safety as well as building and zoning permits.

Mr. Niermann: I don't mean to treat your comments lightly at all, either or to, of course I've got a
(inaudible) that's wishing things for, of course, but also, you know, our ethic on this has been diligence all
the way. One of the things we're trying to good to hear to, and I know that’s been a little bit, I won't say
tattered, but the amount of time it's taken to get through is, you know, time marches on, so we do want to
do the right thing to do this correctly. While you were in the executive session, | was speaking to the
young family from Hanama'ulu, who testified earlier, about well, are you here to oppose the bike path, or
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the subdivision, and they raised their concerns about bike paths, in general, you know it’s all kind of part
of the same parcel, and I was like, okay, how do I soothe my conscience tonight, this particular project, at
least we're somewhat fortunate in that location, and that we don't have the same level, there's a lot of
history there's a lot of archaeology, but we don't have the same level of sensitivity as other segments of
the path. The land that the path goes through is either State owned or it's County owned, and that County
parcel along the shoreline was fortunately the county saw the value of that when we started the project
that was owned by product developer and the county was able to trade, and transfer that land and acquire
it to keep it as undeveloped park land, so we don’t have that kind of development pressure. The concern
that they raised was, first come the paths, then come the hotels, and that comes all the stuff that builds up
alongside of it, and then pretty soon you don't recognize your neighbor anymore, so there's still concerns
that they raised about the path, some of which we heard through the process about access to fishing, over
burdening of resource in the area. Security didn't come up for the airport, but that was one that it’s most
definitely a valid concern. So, that's balanced against the opportunity to create, you know, a beneficial
public infrastructure, public resource, and that, you know those decisions are always fraught (inaudible).

Ms. Streufert: There's no perfect decision on this thing. It’s just, but there are alternate paths I think that
could be taken, that would be going through that area behind the Marriott or Sonesta or whatever it’s
called now, (inaudible) that way, so I’'m not sure it has to stop, it’s just a question of, from my
perspective, it’s just a question of security.

Mr. Niermann: Okay.

Ms. Cox: Was that condition that Ka'aina just read. Was that something that you would be able to live
with or not?

Mr. Niermann: As far as getting affirmation from those agencies, I think we can go back and see what
they're able. Yeah, my only concern would be, can we over promise something that they can deliver, but
as far as going back and getting confirmation of those agency (inaudible).

Mr. Hull: Yeah, I jotted down a few more and I’m not sure if it’s amenable to Commissioner Streufert’s
concerns, but I jotted a little bit more down, so I can read it further. And the only reason I jotted down
when we were going through this, no objection interpretation is as a county agency, our Department gets
queried a far amount to make determinations above and beyond what we legally or even policy wise are
comfortable affirming and so, we do get requests ad nauseam to go beyond no objection and my statement
in a lot of these projects to the staff is, that’s all this applicant is getting, we’re aware of the project, if we
had objections we would object, they’re not getting a letter of support from us, they’re not getting a letter
of robust recommendations or acceptance of it, we have to take in to aspect, among other things, various
liabilities that our statements can make, and so sometimes I’m just trying to put myself in, can he get
what’s being asked of, there are many times our Department is like, no all you’re getting is no objection,
sorry, take it or leave it, and so anyways, I’ve crafted up what may be amenable, I'm not saying that it is
necessarily what we're recommending, but as a possible path forward. Prior to building permit approval,
the applicant shall secure affirmations from the FAA, the ATC, DOT Airports, TSA, and Homeland
Security that security of the radar will not be compromised by the proposed project. Followed up with, no
communication received from any of these agencies within 60 days, shall be consider a no objection, and
the permit may proceed, and the applicant may proceed to building permit review.

Ms. Streufert: Could we include in that not just the ARS, but the airport security? In there, that they are...
Mr. Hull: DOT Airports. So, [ have FAA, ATC, DOT Airports, TSA, and Homeland Security.

Ms. Streufert: No, I meant to...you’re talking about protecting the ASR.
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Mr. Hull: Oh, sorry.
Ms. Streufert: ASR and airport security.
Mr. Hull: The security of the radar and the ASR?

Ms. Streufert: Yes, and also could this be a written affirmation as opposed to a telephonic affirmation or
email whatever...

Mr. Niermann: Email is...

Ms. Streufert: Whatever is written, there’s a signature on that that says, we have seen this, and we’ve
approved it.

Mr. Niermann: Okay.
Ms. Streufert: We've noticed it, we've looked at it, and on the basis of the security.

Mr. Hull: Prior to building permit approval, the applicants shall secure written affirmation from the FAA,
the ATC, the DOT Airports, the TSA, Homeland Security, that security of the radar and ASR will not be
compromised by the proposed project. No communication received by any of these agencies within 60
days, shall be consider no objection, and the applicant may proceed to building permit review.

Mr. Ornellas: Yeah, I think it's encouraging that none of these agencies have objected. They’re well aware
of what's happening.

Mr. Niermann: Yeah.
Mr. Ornellas: I think, and I think in a climate of heightened security, they would simply close the path.
Ms. Cox: Yes.

Mr. Omellas: That’s my own opinion. I mean, that whole coastline, I recall when they were lined with
pillboxes, left over from World War 11, that entire stretch, so, it is a sensitive area, no question about it.
But I think the fact that none of these agencies objected is indicative of their level of concern.

Mr. Niermann: They certainly wanted to make sure that in the event of an incident and then in just case
they were talking about a malicious incident, that we have the ability to lock down the path or to gate the
path, and so at those points of connection with the roadway, that was where they identified the gates to be
placed, so that was part of it. But yeah, that's reactive. I know you're suggesting proactive.

Ms. Streufert: Proactive.

Mr. Niermann: But yeah, they're aware of it. We may have had just half leverage that, you know
represented on the folks, it's a pretty extensive number of people that were in those meetings, and there
was that general sense, I don't know overstate it, but it was a real general sense that pretty more good
people in the area was the benefit, the security.

Mr. Ornellas: My concern when the stretch from Kapa‘a heading out to Kuna Bay, my concern was one
of security, see you gonna have people walking on this path there’s no where around it, there’s some
lonely stretches, which I use the path, and I was presently surprised that there were no incidences. I think
the good drives out the bad in this case.
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Mr. Niermann: I will say, outside of Phase A, sorry to prolong the meeting, initially when we were
looking at the entirety of Segment 6, we were looking at an alternative to go up Nawiliwili Stream all the
way to here, and so we basically trespassed our way up the stream and then we have one meeting, we had
a public meeting where we heard a little bit of feedback, that we contacted all the owners on that stream,
and we tried the idea of, well you're worried about bad things happening, you know, more good people on
the path, they weren’t buying it in that case, and we abandoned that approach, but I'm a believer that
probably in certain contexts, maybe going through jungle and forest not as much security benefit, but I
think in these wide open spaces there's stuff that [ know TSA wasn't happy that was happening down
there right (inaudible) time we were meeting with them anyways around the airport. So yeah, that
condition would be acceptable. I mean, I’m sure that would be alright.

Mr. Hull: Without any (inaudible), I know Romio has proposed conditions of approval, it’s been a long
day, if you’d like him to read each and every single one of them or have them accept it as part of the
report, I think we have just for the record the last condition of approval be added as I read on to the
record, as a recommendation to this body.

Ms. Streufert: (Inaudible, microphone not on). I move that we accept the planning Department's
recommendations, with the additional condition.

Chair DeGracia: Before I move forward, is there anybody in the audience that would like to testify on this
agenda item before we make a motion?

Mr. Ako: Mr. Chair, can I ask one question of the applicant? I’'m so sorry. This is not a sensitive topic at
all, and not technical in anything, but the vision is to create this to connect with the existing path that’s
there right now.

Mr. Niermann: Yes, yes, and it's also like each of the segments, I think, and this one probably more so
than the others are also envisioned as stand-alone segments, if that makes sense. But yes, the envision was
that it creates regional corridor all the way up to Anahola.

Mr. Ako: So, this will eventually connect up to, down by Lydgate Park, that walkway there.
Mr. Niermann: Yeah, exactly.

Mr. Ako: My question is, what is that theory about starting from, I don’t want to tell you my age and all
of that but (inaudible) the Honolulu viaduct, as they’re doing. They’re starting from two different ends
and then they meet six feet apart at the top. What is the theory about starting, effect rather than expanding
from what we have, that's starting from one end and trying to eventually connect up at the other end.

Mr. Niermann: Various series, but sorry, there's a really good book called The Power Broker, that it's like
all the dirty tricks of planning, but this is not necessarily a dirty trick, I shouldn’t characterize it that way.
It's a great book, not to learn dirty tricks, but just to see how things get, anyways I’1l shut-up. The theory
is that you start with the least critical segment, and then you work towards the most critical, because as
the project goes it builds momentum, and then you can't but built that last segment because you needed it
to make all the rest of it activated. That's the theory. The stock gap on that, a lot of it has to do with
Federal Highways and DOT and the concept of segmentation, and that's embedded also in the 343 block
you know, you can't segment a project to seek it through, you have to look at the totality of environmental
impact. But if that project has the kind of language we use, is it has its own utility, has its standalone
function, it has a logical terminus, so if you build it in isolation of all the other stuff, it still has value, it
still has, it still has its own utility and that's essentially how these larger regional kind of projects are, they
have to be conceptualized or conceptualized both for funding for both (inaudible) getting through the
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(inaudible) getting through the 343, but from the from the dirty tricks perspective, it’s okay, you start with
the one that is going to the least controversial, that it kind of builds a...

Ms. Streufert: Least resistance.
Mr. Niermann: Yeah.

Mr. Ako: So, that window you talk about the six-to-eight-month period regarding the putting the Federal
funds in jeopardy at that point.

Mr. Niermann: So, I don't want that to be considered a hard, fast date. The concern has been so, we were
delayed in getting the EA published, and that was held up that for the NHPA 106, getting through that. It
wasn't that the conditions changed, it wasn't that the consultations, you know, were controversial and
mired in any issue, it was just the bureaucratic process of going between State agency, the Federal
agency, and every time we get to a point where one of the agencies is ready to move on the action, there
were personnel changes, and so a new set of eyes wanted to revisit it and so that was just dragged out ad
nauseum, and Federal Highways even though they were a party to some extent, they were also looking at
it saying, hey we’re funding this thing, you had a schedule, could the county commits in the schedule and
in the contract. You said it was going to be done here then it gets delayed, and there's good rationale, and
so they improve that they approve it, so, it's just that, since when you look at that timeline from 2007 to
now, and what are the things that are holding it up? What can we control to move forward? We know that
just in general, not on this particular subject of six to eight months, but they really been holding the
DPWs feet to the fire on the schedule and we're living and dying by the schedule now, so there are
monthly reports, back to Federal Highways, how’s it going? How are we moving forward? And that the
concern like right now the county is requesting an extension of that schedule, and every time that, you
can't take it for granted that there's gonna be another extension, at any time they could, you know the
forces that be at the Federal level, in Washington, or wherever could pull the plug on the project so, we're
just being very sensitive to the amount of time, you know, we're up against right now to complete the
project, to commit the funds under the current commitment that the County has to Federal Highways, so
six to eight months because I was just fine tuning the schedule, and they're saying, we want you to try to
squeeze another three months out of it, we want you to shorten it, try to finish this and get the
commitment by the end of 2024. They're still trying to squeeze blood from a stone, so to speak, in
compressing processes that I just from experience, I know they take a lot of time, and on paper, yes you
could compress it, but your practice doesn't always work that way right, so if they're asking me to
compress four months and now, if I say it's gonna be another eight months or we're gonna push out six
months or eight months then I know that that's going to translate up to with some concern from the
County, and I'm not the one communicating directly with Federal Highways, this is the County, the
County reps and the State reps. I hope that answers, [ hope I didn’t say too much to get myself in trouble.

Chair DeGracia: Any further questions for the applicant? Thank you. Please state your name and you
have three minutes.

Mr. Kaniela Matsushima: Aloha, my name is Kaniela Kaleikaumaka Matsushima. Thank you for having
me to speak on this issue. I didn't know in depth to what this bike path was until, and I'm just hearing his
side of it, and what's gonna to come about it, and his. I have a few concerns, I think we should just make
aware of, is I grew up on that coastline, I fished my entire life on that coastline. That's probably one of the
most dangerous coastlines, I think, on the island, beside the Napali, just mainly because that's eastside
always catch that, it’s always rough and we always like pick opihi on that side and there’s a lot of opihi
because, I just gave away the spot, but a lot of opihi because only the experienced people that know the
area or can go there, because it's very dangerous and I think just having that bike path there would access,
the public have access to now would have access to, and majority of the people that use that bike path are

24



visitors, tourists that come here, and they may not know how dangerous it is, and then you know they
might go down there to some selfies at the last rock on the bottom and they get swept away and that’s just
a liability and more, just dangerous to people in general. So, it is open to fishing and gathering rights, but
there's only a select few people that actually go there because it's dangerous, but this bike path would
actually change the subsequent part of the traditional, native Hawaiian practices if this bike path does go
through there is also a lot of houses and people that live there that actually some of them are my ohana
and they were displaced from other areas that they were from and they just kept moving around, and |
think, just kicking them out of some place, and then they having to find somewhere else not really a
solution to it, so I think you have to take that into account. I'm not sure if any of you ever been on that
coastline before, but it's like it's really dangerous, and there's like maybe two beaches there and those
beaches are rarely open like, sandy area, they're normally underwater. There's a lot of big boulders that
are loose and I just foreseeing this, I can just imagine people like tourists come here and want to come
and enjoy that place, or just local people that never in the area want to go out on the rocks and get hurt, or
worse. There's a lot of iwi kupuna in the area, regardless of the plantation area, they’re a little deeper. So,
that is a main concern. There’s the beach line that he's talking about, Nukoli'i area, there's like numerous
articles and research on it, that there’s burials all throughout that area. I've been on burial sites of
desecration, I just don't want to see anymore, so I think there, kind of need to thread lightly on it, but at
the same time, know what's at play before we actually make decisions on going forward with this, so 1
think just the demographic of who you (inaudible) actually use the bike path. I know he mentioned that he
used the bike path, but I never used the bike path in my life.

Mr. Hull: Three minutes.

Mr. Matsushima: And I don’t see myself using it. Oh, three minutes, okay. But I think we just need a look
at the demographic of who uses the bike path, and we'll see, I'm just gonna put out there, probably about
80% is not from here and we can see all the tourists that go to the companies that rent those bicycles out,
so they will actually make their way to those spots which is actually dangerous. Mahalo for your time and
thank you.

Mr. Hull: Thank you.

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. Any further testimony? Hearing none, recommendation?

Mr. Hull: Well, we gave the recommendation, and we stand by it, I’'m not sure if you wanted to bring the
applicant up to address any issues that was raised by testimony (inaudible).

Chair DeGracia: Okay.

Mr. Niermann: As far as response is known, (inaudible) I didn't wanna speak for you up here with the
other concerns that you raised, and I don't have a probably satisfactory answers that will satisfy the main
concern. Our approach then for issues of danger along the shoreline would be essentially information,
signage, warning signs, but we wouldn't seek to block people from accessing off of the bike path, it would
make it more accessible, certainly, so I think the, there's no curing stupid and it's that, sorry that was
really glit making it glib an issue, but I'm just thinking about the blowhole on Oahu, and the guy from
California who though it’d be great to straddle it and get a picture and he ended up inside of it, and dead
and then the family wanted to put a grade over it, you know, so there's a certain amount of personal
responsibility that’s required and certainly signage the only tool in our toolbox along the shoreline there,
possibly with the addition of (inaudible) there was, and this is outside of what we're proposing, but
(inaudible) or konohiki system of lining people on the path and their behaviors on the path, so that's one
thing. The houseless in the area, that is, that is a concern. It was a concern from day one of the project that
was brought up and I recall, saying, in the first public meeting is, that's an issue that's much larger than
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the bike path to solve, and then just an encouragement to solve it with compassion, and not just treat it as
what it is in our process is an nonconformed land use, and when we get to the conservation district use
permit process which would be the next step after this, it's going to be an issue right? So, they're looking
at it as nonconforming use, clean it up. What are you going to do to take care of that? And then all the
other agencies that have a role in that, from DOH, HPD, Health and Human Services, take a part in that
that's outside of DPW's kind of mandate, so, I don't have an answer for that other than the use down there
is one of things that puts more of a face on it is, the idea that if these families are displaced from
Hanama'ulu and now they're getting pushed over there it's not just an assemblage of the homeless kind of
faceless down there family members, so there really needs to be a community response, and I don't mean
to wash my hands with it's lighter than this project, because this project is going to shine a light on it, and
I think that the resolution of that will, it will have to come up or it will come up at some point before
project construction and ground breaking. It will probably be, or maybe continued, as a condition of
some, or a way to address it as a condition in the CDUP, but that’s something that we’ll have to
collectively look at. Iwi kupuna in the area, very good point, and there’s the stuff we know and there's the
things that we don't know, you know we've done the AIS, we did find that one rock mound that appeared
to be, or potentially could be, a burial, and so we avoided it. There was some view by the archaeological
consultants, that that rocky shoreline is not, certainly not, as it's nice as the (inaudible) sands or |
shouldn’t say as nice but as typical of burial sites, as the (inaudible) sand deposits that are really prevalent
along other segments, so we have the usual conditions of, if anything is discovered, if any artifacts, or iwi
kupuna are encountered during construction then everything stops and the perfect consultations take
place. What we do know about through that area, were mitigating through avoidance and through signage
or through and interpretive program. I think one of the other differences is all of these mitigation
measures, are evolving from a planning perspective, from a community perspective, generationally
becoming more aware of the language I was using when we were discussing a little bit of this earlier was
treating historic properties and sites as something of an artifact or more than artifact, and the way that you
do that then is you bring in the community, that knows that the practice is as part of the program, in that
conversation that we were having there’s (inaudible), yeah there’s a whole lot of models, there's a whole
lot of personality driven ideas about it, but there isn't a simple solution on how to make it more than the
interpretive programming that and are familiar with, signage maybe (inaudible), and then encouraging
more practices in those locations. And then on the demographics, as a planner, kind of, I think,
professionally obligated to like every bike path I see, and that's true to some extent, so in this case it is.
I'm not from Kaua‘i and I would use it as a visitor, but I also view it as for those issues of resiliency of
providing an alternative to the automobile for people who either can't afford it or in the future may not be
able to afford it or in the event that there is destruction to the roadways from natural or manmade events,
there’s redundancy, I think those are all valid reasons from that broader planning horizon or planning
perspective, so the demographics it's probably very true that it’s mostly visitors coming right now, for
people recreating on it, locals recreating in there. But, going back to, if you build it, they will come, and
you know, hopefully, it will become the beneficial infrastructure that the community, to the community
that it was originally to be. My sermons over.

Ms. Cox: I have a question, but I think I already know the answer to it, and I guess for both of you,
Romio as well. So, no one's ever done a study on who's using that bike path because from my...I use it,
and I see an awful lot of local families using it. I'm not saying there aren’t tourists out there, too, but I see
a lot of local people using it, so your statement of yeah, it’s probably mostly tourist, I don't know if that's
true, and I don't know if we're not keeping track of it, we don’t know that.

Mr. Niermann: Thank you for challenging me on that because I don’t know what I’m talking about on
that.

Mr. Hull: Yeah, I would say, I agree with this team as well. Once that connection is made, and it is
primarily a recreation (inaudible) right now, it is, hands down. One of the concerns, when we were
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watching it and understand that Public Works and Parks are going to have to figure out is once that
connection is made to Lihu'e, there is no cure to the Kapa‘a crawl coming. There isn't. It is anticipated
that, either slightly or drastically the amount of traffic that will not be commuter traffic on that asset will
change. How you navigate that with the advent of ebikes, and the speeds that they can go, and co-existing
with recreational purposes is something that's gonna to have to be navigated. But yeah, that is something
that’s being anticipated with the connection between essentially two residential/work areas.

Mr. Niermann: Just want to say, Kaua‘i it seems more than most places to have the ability to integrate that
infrastructure, integrate that facility with the community more, and what I mean by that is these concerns
that were raised, there's no perfect project, there's no satisfying everybody, but some of the concerns
could be mitigated, certainly with, and I was thinking about Lydgate when we started this, that segment of
Lydgate with the park and everything that was grassroots all the way, that was taking ownership of the
project in that area, and the vision was very much alive, is we can do this rather than this is being imposed
from the outside and this is something disrupt what we've, what's familiar and the things we cherish, so
making it an asset through not just building it, and then, you know, letting it go, but trying to program it
in addition to building it and programming with, you know, the voices of the residents in guiding the
programming. Words are cheap, words are easy, I can sit up here and (inaudible), but that’s just more of
a, there's an extra need to make a facility like that function for a community by...I’ll just use the word
programming it again, there’s whether it's adopting a segment, whether it's, you know, having, yeah, I
mean, I like the idea of a konohiki system in there. My only concern was, when we had that discussion, I
don't know if you could get the folks in that particular moment to agree on who would be at the top of the
heap.

Ms. Streufert: There is a condition in this application, recommendation no.2, which is about
archaeological findings and, so I think hopefully that will mitigate some of the concerns that have been
expressed because you may other things, you may not.

Mr. Niermann: Sure.
Ms. Streufert: If something is found then it will be protected.

Mr. Niermann: And to the other point that was raised earlier outside the hearing here, was that there are
two heiau now along that segment, there’s Ninini Point and there’s Ahukini. I don't think anybody's even
sure where Ahukini Heiau is, some people maybe sure but I know on the archeological inventory survey it
was either somewhere in the middle between Ahukini Landing and Ninini Point or it was up above
Ahukini Landing where the refinery and the train rails were in. So, but the absence of the material
remains of those sites doesn't diminish the significance of the site to the kanaka maoli community and
people understand it, so again, going back to how do you create something that's not just an artifact and a
sign saying, here once stood “X” and it's like, wow try to envision it, that's valuable in its own right, but,
I'm getting into some kind of...the people that know and having a voice in the programming of the use of
the facility. Gotta get creative. I don't have any answers. We're processing permits and coming up with
designs and things, but I think, speaking of those values, we have not (inaudible) to use is important.

Chair DeGracia: Thank you, Commissioners. Anything further? Any questions for the Department or
applicant? If not, I’ll entertain a motion.

Ms. Streufert: I put a motion; I think on the table (inaudible).

Chair DeGracia: Oh okay. Motions on the floor.
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Ms. Streufert: To approve, or to accept the proposal recommendations of the Department. To include as
amended with the additional condition.

Chair DeGracia: Okay.

Ms. Cox: And it was seconded.

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Motion on the floor is to approve with the amended conditions. We’ll take a roll
call vote, Mr. Clerk.

Mr. Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Ako?
Mr. Ako: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Cox?

Ms. Cox: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas?
Mr. Ornellas: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioners Otsuka?
Ms. Otsuka: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Streufert?
Ms. Streufert: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Chair DeGracia?

Chair DeGracia: Aye.

Mr. Hull: Motion passes, Mr. Chair. 6:0. Moving on into, we have no further executive session. Agenda
Item N.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Mr. Hull: Topics for Future Meetings. We are anticipating the next meeting actually not being as listed
June 13", but actually on June 27". We actually have a fairly light, I really shouldn’t use that phrase. We
have a limited number of agenda items, I think, one of them, which is going to be a subdivision, also a
meet the condition of approval of one of the Class IV in south Kaua‘i, Class IV Zoning Permits, and then
today was tentatively scheduled for the Housing Directors briefing before the Planning Commission,
ultimately with the calendars of various State and county officials, including but not the limited to the
Mayor, Governor, the Lima Ola groundbreaking was scheduled for today, so the Housing Director,
wanted to apologize for not being about to make that briefing but he is set tentatively to appear before us
on June 27" to give his housing briefing. And that’s what we got a nutshell coming up, if anything you
folks want to schedule, by all means let us know or the Chair, or the attorney’s office.

Ms. Otsuka: So, confirming, no meeting on June 13%,
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Mr. Hull: Right now, we say tentatively, unless we receive something in the next week or two that
necessitates from a timeline standpoint, we have to schedule that meeting. Right now, tentatively there’s
not anticipated to be a meeting.

Ms. Otsuka: Okay, how will we be informed? Shan will email.

Mr. Hull: We’ll let you know within a week whether or not (inaudible). I don’t want to say the likelihood
given the way todays meeting went, so just...but that’s all we have.

Chair DeGracia: With that, I’ll entertain a motion to adjourn.

Mr. Ornellas: So, moved.
Ms. Streufert: Second.

Chair DeGracia: We’ll take a voice vote. All in favor say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). Oppose?
Hearing none, motion carries. 6:0.

Chair DeGracia adjourned the meeting at 12:22 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by:

Lisa Oyoimer

Lisa Oyama,
Commission Support Clerk

( ) Approved as circulated (add date of meeting approval).

() Approved as amended. See minutes of meeting.
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STIPULATION REGARDING SMA USE PERMIT SMA(U)-2023-9 AND
CONSTRUCTION OF A 5 FEET HIGH ENTRY GATE AND TO VACATE

CONTESTED CASE HEARING

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED by and between Petitioners MAKAHUENA-
PREFERRED A, LLC et al. (“Petitioners™) and Respondent PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF
THE COUNTY OF KAUAI (“Department”) (collectively the “Parties™) that:

1) This Stipulation addresses Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-2023-9

2)

3)

7973419.v2

and Petitioners request for construction of a 36°4” wide x 5’ high automated entry
gate, associated water feature, and attendant 5’high x 5°4” wide pedestrian entry
serving the Makahuena Estates Subdivision in Po‘ipd, situated along the makai side
of Pe’e Road and approximately 60 feet south of its intersection with Pe’e Road,
further identified as Tax Map Key: (4) 2-8-021:078, containing a total area of
approximately 0.946 acres (*‘Proposed Makahuena Gates and Water Feature”).
The parties wish to settle the pending Contested Case hearing concerning the
Proposed Makahuena Gate.

Subject to the following provisions, the Department agrees to recommend approval of
SMA(U)-2023-9:

a. The Proposed Makahuena Gates and Water Feature shall be transparent and not
opaque to minimize the potential visual impact as detailed in the Director’s report;
b. The Proposed Makahuena Gates and Water Feature shall remain open daily from
sunrise to sunset. Also, signs shall be posted noting that the gate shall remain open
from sunrise to sunset;

c. Signs shall be posted warning the public regarding the potential impacts of having
dogs off leash in the Makahuena Estates Subdivision;

d. The Proposed Makahuena Gates and Water Feature shall not be higher than the
surrounding rock wall to minimize the potential visual impact as detailed in the
Director’s report;

e. The Petitioners shall work with the Kauai Fire Department to reconcile and address
any potential negative impact on access by Emergency Services caused by the

Proposed Makahuena Gates and Water Feature; and



f. The Petitioners shall submit to the Kauai Planning Department for approval the
architectural renderings for the Proposed Makahuena Gate attached herein as Exhibit
“A",

4) The Parties respectfully request that the Contested Case Hearing in this matter be
vacated.

5) The Parties agree and understand that the terms and conditions of this Stipulation are

subject to approval by the Planning Commission.

SO STIPULATED: ] 6 / \ /_L
DATED: %( ] ] }% DATED: }
CHRIS DONAHOE

Attomeys for Respondent
PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE
COUNTY OF KAUAI

DATED: Z/M(/M ’ DATED: 7/ 1 2/ 23

( AUNA KEATRASK G AKAHUENA-PREFERRED A,
“TAD UTTE i

E LLC et al.

A Limited Liability Law Partnership
Attomey for Petitioners

MAKAHUENA-PREFERRED A,
LLC et al.

7973419.v2



f. The Petitioners shall submit to the Kauai Planning Department for approval the
architectural renderings for the Proposed Makahuena Gate attached herein as Exhibit
“A”.

4) The Parties respectfully request that the Contested Case Hearing in this matter be
vacated.

5) The Parties agree and understand that the terms and conditions of this Stipulation are

subject to approval by the Planning Commission.

SO STIPULATED:
DATED: . DATED:
CHRIS DONAHOE JODI HIGUCHI SAYEGUSA

Deputy Planning Director
Attorneys for Respondent
PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE

COUNTY OF KAUAI

DATED: : DATED:
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CADES SCHUTTE LLC et al.

A Limited Liability Law Partnership

Attorney for Petitioners
MAKAHUENA-PREFERRED A,
LLC et al.

SO APPROVED:

DATED:

FRANCIS DEGRACIA
Chair of KAUAI PLANNING COMMISSION
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EXHIBIT “A”
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APPLICATION

Comes now, Benson C. Peralta and Arcelie A. Peralta, Fee Owners, Applicants in the
above-captioned proceedings, by and through its architect and authorized representative, hereby
submits the following Application for a single family residence and associated improvements on
the property.

SECTION 1. APPLICANT/SUBJECT PROPERTY/OWNERS.

1.1  Applicant. The Applicant is Benson C. Peralta and Arcelie A. Peralta,
husband and wife. The Applicant has authorized Nalani R. Mahelona, Architect to file this
Application pursuant to the Applicant's Authorization attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.

1.2 Subject Property. The property which is the subject matter of this
Application is a portion of Lot 5-B Kapaa Town Lots, which contains 0.0579 acres (2,520 square
feet), and is identified by Kauai Tax Map Key No. (4) 4-5-012: 048 (“Subject Property”). A
legal description of the Subject Property is contained in the Deed attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.

1.3 Ownership. The Applicant is the owner of the Subject Property, as shown
in the Deed attached as Exhibit “B”.

SECTION2. LOCATION LAND USE DESIGNATIONS OF PROPERTY.

2.1 Location. The Subject Property is located in Kapaa, Kawaihau, Kauai,
Hawaii, and is shown on the Location Map attached hereto as Exhibit “C-1" and on the Tax Map
attached as Exhibit “C-2". Territory Of Hawaii Registered Map No. 2450 of Kapaa Town Lots is

attached as Exhibit “C-3".




2.2 Land Use Desigpations. The respective State Land Use Commission
(“SLUC”), Kauai General Plan; County of Kauai Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (“CZ0O”),

and other relevant land use designations for the Subject Property are described as follows:
a. SLUC. Asshown on the State Land Use District Boundary Map
attached as Exhibit “C-4”, the Subject Property is located in the SLUC Urban District. The

subject Property has been located in the SLUC Urban District since the inception of the SLUC
Districts.

b. Kauai General Plan. As shown on the General Plan Map attached as

Exhi'bit “C-5”, the Subject Property is located in the Kauai General Plan Neighborhood Center.
The Subject Property was recently designated from the Urban Center to the newly created
Neighborhood Center Designation in the Update to the Kauai General Plan (2018).

c. CZO. Asshownonthe CZO Map attached as Exhibit “C-6”, the
Subject Property is located in the CZO General Commercial District. The Subject Property has
been located in the CZO General Commercial District since the adoption of the CZO.

d. Development Plan Area. The Subject Property is located within the
Kapaa-Wailua Special Planning Area “C”, as shown on the CZO Map attached as Exhibit “C-6".
The Subject Property is located in the High Risk Flood Zone and the Extreme Tsunami
Evacuation Zone, as shown on the East Kauai Hazard Map (2018) attached as Exhibit “C-7”. In
the future, the Subject Property will soon be part of the East Kauai Development Plan.

e. Special Management Area. As shown on the Special Management
Area Map attached as Exhibit “C-8”, all of the Subject Property is located within the Special
Management Area (“SMA?”) of the County of Kauai. The Subject Property has been located

within the SMA since the adoption of the SMA Rules (December 17, 1979).




f. Shoreline/Shoreline Setback Area. The Subject Property is not

shoreline property however is located within the 500-foot shoreline setback threshold. The
applicant will apply for a shoreline setback exemption. The subject property will not affect
beach processes, impact public beach access, or be affected by or contribute to coastal erosion or
hazards, excluding natural disasters. There are a total of four properties between the subject
property and the shoreline. At the shoreline, there occurs an existing seawall.

g. Heritage Resources. As shown on the Heritage Resources Map
attached as Exhibit “C-9”, the Subject Property is located within the East Kauai Planning District
Boundary (Updated to the Kauai General Plan, 2018).

h. Violations. There are no known violations on the Subject Property.
There exists two sheds on the Subject Property, one of which a lean-to encroaches the north
neighboring property, as shown on the Topographical Survey Map attached as Exhibit “D-1".

23 Prior Land Use Permits. The Subject Property is not subject to any prior land use

permits and conditions.
SECTION 3. PAST, EXISTING AND PROPOSED USES OF SUBJECT PROPERTY.

3.1 Past Uses. In the past, a service center once occupied the Subject Property.
Owned by Kazu Morita, it is unknown when the service center was built. (See Exhibit “E” for
Real Property Tax Card.) According to a community member, the service center was destroyed
during Hurricane Iniki. In 1992, as shown in Exhibit “G-2”, a letter from the Hawaii Department
of Health refers to an Underground Storage Closure Report prepared by Nexus Environmental
Group, Inc. regarding the removal of two 1,000 gallon gasoline underground storage tanks

(USTs). In 2000, the Solid and Hazardous Waste Branch reviewed the report and concluded that




the closure and site restoration of the former USTs indicated no evidence of petroleum
contamination from the tank or piping system.

3.2  Proposed Use, The proposed new dwelling will serve as a long-term rental and is
being built for Benson and Arcelie Peralta. The owner understands that residences are a valuable
asset to the community.

3.3  Existing Structures. There are two existing portable storage sheds on the Subject
Property. There are no known permits for the existing sheds. The sheds have existed prior to the
owner’s purchase of the property. The owner plans on removing the sheds prior to construction
of the proposed new dwelling. There also occurs an existing 4-foot high wooden fence along the
north and east and southern property lines. (Refer to Exhibit “D-1”, Topographic Survey). The
owner plans on removing the fence prior to construction of the Project.

3.4  Land Coverage. The total allowable land coverage of the Subject Property is
2,268 square feet, which is 90% of 2,520 square feet. Currently, the concrete pad which once
housed the service center covers approximately 900 square feet and asphalt covers approximately
200 square feet, resulting in approximately 1,100 square feet of land coverage. The existing
portable sheds are situated over the existing concrete and will be removed prior to construction.
After completion of the Project, the total land coverage will be approximately 2,206 square feet,
which is 88% lot coverage. (Refer to Exhibit “F-2”, Lot Coverage Calculations). The applicant
will build over the existing land coverage. The proposed 2,206 square foot lot coverage is
allowed pursuant to CZO Sec. 8-6.3(g)(2).

SECTION 4. DESCRIPTION OF SUBJECT PROPERTY AND IDENTIFICATION OF
SURROUNDING LAND

4.1 Location. The Subject Property is located in the northern portion of Kapaa Town

near the Kapaa Neighborhood Center and Ke Ala Hele Makalae bike path. The northem




property line runs along Kuhio Highway. The southemn portion of the Subject Property is
approximately 250 feet from the ocean.

42  Surrounding Uses. Adjacent to the rear property line and south property line of
the Subject Property are existing dwellings. The property adjacent to the north property line of
the Subject Property resides a two-story restaurant. Across the highway is a shopping center
with retail, a veterinarian and a business center. Other uses in the surrounding area include lunch
wagons, office buildings, a community park, a public pool and a hotel. There are no Natural
Area Reserves or Wildlife Refuges or Sanctuaries within or near the Subject Property.
SECTION 5. PERMITS REQUESTED AND REQUIRED.

5.1  SMA Use Permit. The development and construction of the following proposed
improvements on the Subject Property (the “Development”) will take place within the SMA:

a. New Dwelling Unit. The proposed single-family dwelling unit is to be the
first dwelling unit on the Subject Property. (Considered Development for SMA purposes). (See,
attached Exhibit “F-1”).

b. New Concrete Driveway and Driveway Approach (Considered
Development for SMA purposes). (See, attached Exhibit “F-17).

c. New Concrete Sidewalk at front of the property and New Permeable
Gravel at rear of property (Considered Development for SMA purposes). (See, attached Exhibit
“F-17).

d. Related site utilities including County Water service, Electrical and
Telephone service, and County Sewer service.

e. New 8-foot high Privacy Wall at the rear property line. (See, attached

Exhibit “F-17).




Such activity will constitute “Development” as defined by the Special

Management Rules and Regulations of the County of Kauai (“SMA Rules”). The total value of
the Development in the SMA exceeds $500,000. Therefore, the Applicant is requesting the
Planning Commission to issue a SMA Use Permit (as defined in Section 7.3.C. of the SMA
Rules) for the Development. The proposed new single-family dwelling unit (2,206 square feet of
land coverage) will include five (5) bedrooms and eight (8) bathrooms. The new single-family |
dwelling will be three stories with an attic. The first floor will be used as an open parking
garage. With the exception of the required fire walls at the northern and southern property lines,
all other walls perpendicular to the storm surge shall be considered breakaway. The rear privacy
wall shall have flood vents. The Development will comply with all floodway and ocean surge
design requirements.
SECTION 6 IMPACTS OF DEVELOPMENT,

6.1  Botanical Resources and Wildlife. The Subject Property is located in Kapaa
Town amongst multiple land uses and is not far from the ocean. The Subject Property is
relatively flat and currently has a coconut tree, areca palms, papayas, spider lilies, bermuda grass
and non-native shrubs weeds. No impacts to botanical resources and wildlife are anticipated due
to the mixed uses of the surrounding area.

6.2  Historical Resources. The Subject Property is not a “Historic Property” as
defined by HRS Sec.6E-2.

6.3  Air Quality/Noise. The Development will have little or no impact on the air
quality and ambient noise levels in the area. Air quality and ambient noise levels may be
affected at a very minimal level during the Development activities. All vehicles or equipment

used by the Applicants for the construction will be properly muffled, housed and maintained to




reduce noise impacts or emission impacts. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and
State of Hawaii air quality standards will not be exceeded.

6.4  Flooding and Drainage. The proposed Project is within Flood Zone AE, with a
base flood elevation of 8.0 mean sea level (msl), as shown on the County of Kauai’s flood
insurance rate map (Flood Insurance Rate Map 1500020204F) attached as Exhibit “C-10". The
Subject Property is located entirely in the Flood Zone AE and the Project will meet all of the
requirements of the FloodPlain Management Ordinance of the County of Kauai, as contained in
Chapter 15, Article 1, of the Kauai County Code, 1987. All drainage resulting from construction
activities and from the increase in land coverage will be retained on site and subject to best
management practices. No additional drainage is anticipated to significantly or negatively
impact the surrounding properties.

6.5  Utilities.

a. Potable Water. The Applicant will apply for Water Service for the Subject
Property from the County of Kauai, Department of Water. An application for a new
water service request shall be approved and certificate of completion of the new water
meter shall be obtained prior to Building Permit approvals for the Development.

b. Electric/Communications. The Applicant currently obtains temporary
electric service from Kauai Island Utility Cooperative, and the Applicant shall apply for
communication services from either Spectrum or Hawaiian Telcom, Inc. An application
for a new electric meter will be obtained prior to completion of the Development.

6.6  Wastewater Treatment and Disposal. The Applicant will apply to connect to the
public sewer system and will obtain approval from the County of Kauai Wastewater Division

prior to Building Permit approvals for the Development.




6.7  Solid Waste Disposal. Solid waste collection will be provided by the County of
Kauai and by private means. Solid waste will be taken to the County’s Transfer Stations for
disposal in the County Landfill.

6.8  Governmental Services. The Project will have the following impacts on

governmental services.

a. Fire and Police Services. Fire and police services in the vicinity are located
in Kapaa and Kealia each approximately one (1) mile from the Subject Property. The
Project will not significantly increase the need for existing fire and police services.

b. Schools. The closest schools are Kapaa Middle School located near central
Kapaa Town, and Kapaa Elementary School and Kapaa High School, both located at the
north end of Kapaa. The Project will not generate any significant additional enrollment.
6.9 Economics. The Project will have t'he following economic impacts:

a. Jobs. The Project will result in the creation of approximately six (6)

temporary job positions (during construction).
b. Housing. The Project will not result in the need for additional housing, as all
persons working on the Project will be Kauai residents.

c. Property Values. Since the fair market value of real property is based on the

value of the land and physical improvements, the completion of the Project will increase
the value of the Subject Property. This will result in an increase in real property taxes on
the Subject Property, and increase revenues to the County of Kauai.

6.10 Population. The Project will not result in an increase in population.




6.11  Traffic Circulation. The major road which services the Subject Property is Kuhio
Highway. The Project will distribute access to the Subject Property to a single driveway but will
not in and of itself increase traffic on the roads.

6.12 Heritage Resources. The Subject Property is located within the East Kauai
Planning District Boundary (Updated to the Kauai General Plan, 2018). The Heritage Resources
of Kauai include natural, cultural and scenic resources. The proposed Project will not

significantly affect any of these resources.

SECTION 7. SLUC CONSIDERATIONS.

7.1 SLUC Urban Ijistrict. The Subject Property is located within the SLUC Urban
District. Permitted uses in the ;SLUC Urban District include residential uses.

SECTION 8. GENERAL PLAN CONSIDERATIONS,

8.1  Kauai General f’lan Neighborhood Center Land Use Designation. The Subject
Property is located in the Kauai General Plan Neighborhood Center Land Use Designation. As
stated in the Kauai General Plan (2018):

“Neighborhooci- Center is a new designation focused on historic town cores and
corresponds to éxisting or future areas appropriate for accommodating infill
development and growth. Centers consist of a mixed-use core with a cluster of
retail and service activity, civic spaces and primary destinations, along with
residential uses. This core area can support an interconnected network of streets
and blocks that encourage multimodal transportation access. Centers typically
comprise a mix of detached and attached buildings between 1-5 stories in height.”

8.2  Project’s Compliance with Kaua'i General Plan Standards. The proposed use of

the Project is residential, the total height of the building is three (3) stories with an attic and the




project is considered detached, thereby complying with the Kauai General Plan Standards for

Neighborhood Center. The development itself will have no significant impact on the

surrounding environment as the project is compatible with other uses in the area, as well as with

the surrounding environment. As such, the Project complies with the Kauai General Plan (2018)

policy in that it helps to identify existing developed areas and lands appropriate for future

development.

General Plan:

8.3

In addition, the project compliments the following action objectives of the Kauai

“To develop town centers as attractive places to work, live, and play. To develop
compact, walkable communities consistent with the Future Land Use Map. To
increase housing opportunities for low- to moderate-income households. To

support mixed use, higher density, and walkable development in existing towns.”

Project’s Compliance with Kaua'i General Plan’s Goals and Policies. The

proposed Project is in alignment with the following goals and policies of the General Plan, which

emphasize resilient, healthy, and equitable communities:

1) Section 1.3, entitled "Visions and Goals"

(la) Goal #3: "A Healthy and Resilient People" -The General Plan's
Goal #3 seeks to "increase the resilience and vitality of Kauai's communities and
promote better health outcomes through improving the natural, built, and social
environment”. The proposed Project plays a vital role in providing Kauai's
community with a healthier built environrpent through revitalizing towns and
encouraging affordable housing. The proposed project will set precedence in its
adaptability to the Sea Levels Rising and therefore is an integral component in the

community’s resiliency.
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(1b)  Goal#4: "An Equitable Place, With Opportunity for All" -The
General Plan's Goal #4 aims to “foster diverse and equitable communities" which
includes providing "access to jobs and housing, and a high quality of life." The
general plan recognizes that Kaua’i’s high cost of living has pushed local families
away from Kaua’i. Reversing this trend includes “encouraging and celebrating
diverse, mixed income neighborhoods.” The proposed project aims to provide
housing that is adequate through it’s’ proximity to the town center, which directly
provides access to essential services, transportation and opportunities for
recreation and enjoyment of shared spaces. The proposed residence in
maximizing its floor area promotes the General Plan’s policies that will help
Kaua’i provide housing and resource opportunities for all families, including
multi-generational families, and supports opportunity to all of Kauai’s people
from keiki to kupuna.

2) Section 1.4, entitled "Policies to Guide Growth"

(2a)  Policy #1: "Manage Growth to Preserve Rural Character" -
The General Plan's Policy #1 highlights the importance in preserving Kauai's
rural character by appropriately designating "where urban uses belong in order to
better preserve agricultural lands and open space." The proposed project occurs
within the North End of Kapa’a Town and is compact and walkable, therefore the
project promotes the preservation of, and does not negatively affect, the rural

character of the island.
(2b)  Policy #2: "Provide Local Housing" - The General Plan's Policy

#2 aims to provide “affordable housing while facilitating a diversity of

11




privately-developed housing for local families.” The policy also emphasizes the
"extraordinary urgency" to provide affordable housing for local residents. The
proposed residence could help relieve the demand for housing that would bear on
the local housing market and should be considered a key component as one of the
9,000 housing units that the County plans to help facilitate by the year 2035. The
cost of the project per square footage averages to approximately $110 per square
foot, which is substantially lower than the average cost of a typical residence in a
rural community. This key factor provides the opportunity for the owner to
construct an affordable house for rental to a multi-generational family and
therefore fulfills the County’s policy.

(2c) Policy #3: "Recognize the Identity of Kaua'i’s individual
Towns and Districts"- The General Plan's Policy #3 points out that Kauai'i’s
towns are “distinct, each with its own character” and the uniqueness must be
“celebrated” and “protected”. The proposed project is consistent with the unique
character of other structures within the vicinity, and the design standards of the
Kapaa-Wailua Special Planning Area “C” have been implemented to maintain
such character.

(2d) Policy #4: "Design Healthy and Complete Neighborhoods" -
The General Plan's Policy #4 promotes “access to jobs, commerce, transit, and
public services" as a means to support healthy and complete neighborhoods,
amongsts a nation and state that is significantly impacted by health problems
such as obesity and diabetes due to the “increasing levels of sedentary lifestyles".

The subject property is within the Neighborhood Center Designation area and the

12



proposed residence compliments and accentuates Kapa'a Town as a Healthy and
Complete Neighborhood which is “safe and convenient to walk, bike, or take
transit” which allows residents to increase physical activities on a daily basis,
thereby reducing health risks. Walking, biking, and taking public transportation
also protects the environment by reducing emissions and the need for costly
expansion and maintenance of services and roads.

(2e) Policy #5: "Reduce the Cost of Living'- The General Plan's
Policy #5 points out reducing the cost of living through “providing a diversity of
housing types and affordable transportation options”. The proposed project is
directly accessible to the County Bike Path and the Kauai Bus and therefore is
aligned with the General Plan’s promotion of transportation accessibility.

(2f)  Policy #13: "Complete Kauai'i’s Shift to Clean Energy''- The
General Plan's Policy #13 seeks to “Mitigate climate change and reduce carbon
emissions” through “reductions in energy use and by transforming electricity and
transportation systems toward the use of clean energy”. The proposed project
will include an accessible roof deck, which will give the opportunity for the
owner to construct solar panels as an energy altemmative. In addition, the
proposed project’s proximity to biking, walking, and public transportation will
directly assist in the County’s goal of reducing carbon emissions and thus
reducing carbon footprint.

(2g) Policy #14: "Prepare for Climate Change'- The General Plan's
Policy #14 urges the County to “Prepare for impacts to the island economy, food

systems, and infrastructure that will be caused by climate change”. Sea level rise
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SECTION 9.

9.1

(SLR) is considered and mandated in the design of the proposed project through
the General Plan and the Special Management Area. The proposed project has
been designed to accommodate the predicted three feet seal level rise in addition
to complying with the coastal hazards regulations. The ground floor parking area
is elevated to accommodate flood hazards. The upper roof deck will give the
opportunity for the residence to grow food as a supplement, should vegetative
food sources be compromised in the future.

(2h)  Policy #17: "Nurture Our Keiki'- The General Plan's Policy #17
points out the necessity for "actions to promote education, housing, and economic
opportunity" in order to "keep our keiki from permanently moving away from
home." The proposed project will promote multi-generational housing for a local
family, and therefore supports the nurturing of our keiki.

CZ0O GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT CONSIDERATIONS.

CZO General Commercial District. The Project site is located within the CZO

General Commercial District. Uses in the CZO Commercial District are set forth in CZO Article

6, which provides in relevant part as follows:

ARTICLE 6. COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS (C)
Sec. 8-6.1 Purpose.
(a) To designate areas suitable for commercial and public or private
business activities distributed so as to supply goods and services to the public in a
convenient and efficient manner.
(b) To relate commercial and business activities to established or projected
transport, utility and community patterns so that they may contribute to the
general health, safety and welfare of the public.
(c) To assure that commercial and business development and uses will not
detract from the environmental qualities of the surrounding areas.
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9.2 Project’s Compliance with CZO General Commercial District Standards. The

Subject Property zoning of General Commercial allows for residential dwellings, attached,
detached or multifamily via a Use Permit per 8.2.4(1)(12) of the County of Kauai Zoning
Ordinance. The distance of the building from the right-of-way line of the public street is five (5)
feet, which is the minimum in the Commercial District. The distance of the building to the side
property line is zero (0) feet which is the minimum distance for adjacent use districts of
commercial. The distance of the proposed dwelling to the rear property line is six (6) feet and
the minimum distance of the building to the rear property line with adjacent use district of
commercial is zero. The proposed driveway width in the Commercial District is at the minimum
fourteen (14) feet for one-way traffic. The land coverage on the Subject Property will not exceed
the allowed 90% land coverage. All uncovered areas shall be landscaped with living plant
material. Therefore, the project will comply with the CZO General Commercial District
Development Standards per Section 8-6.3.

SECTION 10. KAPAA-WAILUA DEVELOPMENT PLAN CONSIDERATIONS.

10.1 Community Plan Goals and Objectives. The Kapaa-Wailua Development Plan
Ordinance supplements the Comprehensive Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances in regulating use
and development within the area of the Subject Property. Section 10-1.3 (d-e) of the
Kapaa-Wailua Plan Ordinance states the guidelines which are relevant to the Project. The
Project is intended to be a long-term rental property that maximizes the potential of the limited
area of the site. The Project is compatible with the environmental, social and cultural needs of
the Kapaa-Wailua Development Plan area in that it strives to protect the physical and social

characteristics of the surrounding area within the intent of its design.
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10.2  Project’s Compliance with Development Plan Standards. The Project is a

single-family residence which is allowed in the Kapaa-Wailua Special Planning Area “C”, per
the allowed use in the General Commercial District. The total height of the building is three (3)
stories with an attic and will not exceed forty (40) feet, plus fifteen (15) feet at the sloped roof.
The roof colors will not be reflective and the exterior building colors will be submitted to the
Kapaa-Wailua Improvement Advisory Committee and the Planning Commision for approval.
Therefore, the Project will comply with the design standards and guidelines of the Kapaa-Wailua
Special Planning Area “C” as stated in Section 10-1.3(e)(2)(A-C). The Subject Property is
located in the 3.2 foot anticipated sea level rise area and is therefore subject to the new Special
Treatment Coastal Edge overlay within the Kapaa-Wailua Development Plan. The proposed
Project complies with the new Special Treatment Coastal Edge overlay in that the first level is
free of living area, constructed with breakaway walls and stairs, and allows only parking and
limited storage to occur.

SECTION 11. SMA CONSIDERATIONS.

11.1  Recreational Resources. The project will not adversely affect coastal resources
uniquely suited for recreational activities that cannot be provided in other areas. The Project will
rather provide direct access to said resources by allowing the residential use immediate access
via walking distance to such resources as the bike path, fishing, swimming, surfing, and similar.
The project will not replace or obstruct any coastal recreational resources as the Project site is
nested within other sites of similar uses. Such resources of recreational value are not adjacent to
the site itself, though are close in proximity. The proposed dwelling may expand recreational use
of the shoreline lands, as residents of the proposed rental will have easy access to fishing,

éurﬁng, beach-going and swimming. There are a total of three (3) properties between the Kapaa
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Neighborhood Center Park and the Project site. At approximately 150 feet, a total of two
properties away, lies the County of Kauai Bike Path. Further south at approximately 900 feet
away is the Kapaa Beach Park. There is no existing public access to the shoreline near or on the
property, therefore the proposed Project will not affect any public access to recreational -
resources.

11.2  Historic Resources. The project site is not within a Federal, State and/or County
designated historical or cultural district. The Project site is not listed on or nominated to the
Hawaii or National Register of Historic Places. Since an archaeological survey has not been
conducted for the project site, there are no submissions to the State Historic Preservatiox; Office
for review and recommendations for the Project. As shown in Exhibit “D-2", a perimete‘;r survey
was conducted on December 3, 2018. The survey has not revealed any information on historic or
archaeological resources. The Project site is not within or near a Hawaiian fishpond. The
Project is not located within or near an historic settlement area. In addition, the Project is not
located within or near any cemeteries, burials, heiaus or the like.

11.3  Scenic and Open Space Resources. The Project site does not abut or affect a
valued scenic resource or landmark within the Special Management Area. The neighboring
two-story residence towards the south of the property and a single story residence towards the
east of the property towards the ocean already hinder direct views of the coastline. There are no
landmarks adjacent to the Project site. The proposed Project does not affect existing shoreline
open space and scenic resources. The bike path eastward of the property ensures that existing
shoreline open space and scenic resources in the area are preserved now and in the future. The
Project does not involve alteration to natural landforms and existing public views to and along

the shoreline. The Project is compatible with the visual environment. Located within the center
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of the northern part of Kapaa Town, the Project compliments the mix-stories and mix-styled
structures within the area. The Project involves the construction of a structure visible between
Kuhio Highway and the shoreline. However, the shoreline is not currently visible from the
highway. The structure is visible from the highway only and the Project site is approximately
248 feet from the shoreline.

11.4  Coastal Ecosystems. The proposed Development will not generate point or
nonpoint sources of pollution that will affect the coastal ecosystems. The Project site is not a
habitat for endangered species of flora and fauna. Previously a service station site, the site is
currently occupied by a coconut tree, areca palms, papaya, spider lilies, bermuda grass and
non-native shrubs weeds. The construction of the single-family residence and privacy wall will
not adversely affect valuable coastal ecosystems of significant biological or economic
importance. There are no proposed stream diversions, channelization or similar land and water
uses for the project. Therefore, the Project will not disrupt or degrade coastal water ecosystems.

11.5 Economic Uses. The Subject Property will be developed for residential purposes.

The proposed Project will create short term economic benefits associated with the construction
of the improvements. The proposed Project will not have any negative impacts on the economy.
11.6  Coastal Hazards. The Project site is within a potential tsunami inundated area as
depicted on the National Flood Insurance Rate maps (FIRM). The Project site is also within a
potential flood inundation area according to the FIRM. The Project site is within the coastal
floodplain zone AE, with a base flood elevation of 8.0 msl. The proposed elevator shaft will be
designed with Flood Resistant Design and Construction in accordance with ASCE 24-05. The
proposed stairs and lower level walls that are perpendicular to the shoreline shall be constructed

as “breakaway walls”. Therefore, the proposed project will comply with the design and
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construction guidelines set forth by FEMA in accordance with the National Flood Insurance
Program. The Project site and nearby shoreline areas have not experienced shoreline erosion. At
four properties over, at approximately 248 feet eastward, occurs an existing man-made seawall
along the existing shoreline. According to the Hawaii Shoreline Study web map, the annual
shoreline erosion rate is -2.7 ft./year, or 2.7 foot per year accretion. The National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Association Sea Level Rise Viewer predicts sea level rise to inundate the Subject
Property by year 2100 based on a 3.2 foot increase in the sea level. (See, Exhibit “G”). The
average life expectancy of wood-framed residences is seventy (70) years. Therefore, NOAA
does not model any impacts to the proposed Project by sea level inundation.

11.7 Managing Development/Public Participation. The Project activities on the
Subject Property are complementary to, and consistent with, present and future coastal zone
developments in this area of Kauai.

11.8 Beach Protection/Marine Resources. The Project will have no impact on any
shoreline or beach areas given the distance from the shoreline area, or on any open space areas
along the shoreline. The Project will not involve any development within the beach or coastal
area which would have any negative impact on marine or coastal resources. The Applicant is not
aware of any existing fishponds. There are a total of four properties between the Subject site and
an existing man-made seawall along the existing shoreline.

11.9  Value of Development. The Development involves activities with a value more

than $500,000.00. The value of the improvements defined as Development is estimated at
$600,000.00 as shown in the Construction Estimate, attached as Exhibit “H”.
11.10 Compatibility With Surrounding Uses. The Subject Property is surrounded by

properties located within the SLUC Urban District and the CZO General Commercial District
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Kapaa-Wailua Special Planning Area “C”. Uses on the surrounding lands include residential and
commercial uses. The Subject Property is similar in topography, character and nature with
adjacent and surrounding properties and the Project activities are consistent with such
surrounding uses.

11.11 Project’s Impacts Within SMA. The Project on the Subject Property will have no

negative impact on the S‘MA. The Project is and will be compatible with existing uses in areas
on or around the Subject Property. The Project will not negatively impact scenic or o;;en space
resources within the SMA. The Project will not increase runoff or otherwise endanger the
coastal ecosystem. The Project will have no detrimental impact on recreational, historic, or
economic resources. The Project will not have detrimental impacts on beach or marine
resources. Approval of the Project will not result in the foreclosure of future management
options for development in the area. The design, siting, and landscaping of the Project as
proposed will ensure that the proposed Project recognizes, preserves, maintains and contributes
to the characteristics of the surrounding lands which are recognized to be of particular
significance or value to the general public. In particular, the Project will be compatible with, and
will protect the unique natural forms and biologic systems contained within, and aesthetic
characteristic of, the SMA.

11.12 Project’s Compliance with SMA Standards. The Project activities on the Subject

Property within the SMA fulfill the provisions of the SMA Rules in that:

a. The Project will have no effect on public access to publicly owned or used
beaches and recreational areas.

b. The Project will not detrimentally affect any wildlife or endangered plant

or animal species which may be located at the site.
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c. Provisions for solid and liquid waste treatment, disposition and
management will be developed in order to minimize adverse effects on the Special Management
Area.

d. Alteration to existing landforms or vegetation and the construction of
structures will cause minimal adverse effects to water resources and scenic and recreational
amenities, and will minimize danger of floods, wind damage, storm surge, landslides, erosion,
siltation, or failure in the event of an earthquake.

e. The Project will not require dredging, filing, or altering any bay, estuary,
salt marsh, river mouth, slough or lagoon.

f. The Project will not reduce the size of any beach or other area usable for
public recreation.

g. The Project will not reduce or impose restrictions upon public access to
tidal and submerged lands, beaches, portions of rivers or streams within the Special Management
Area and the mean high tide line where there is no beach.

h. The project will not substantially interfere with or detract from the line of
sight toward the sea from the State highway nearest the coast.

i. The Project will not adversely affect water quality in existing areas of
open water free of visible structures, existing and potential fisheries and fishing grounds, wildlife
habitats, or potential or existing agriculture uses of land.

j- The Project will not have any substantial environmental or ecological
effect, except as such adverse effect is minimized to the extent practicable and clearly

outweighed by public health, safety or compelling public interests.
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k. The Project is consistent with the objectives, policies, and guidelines set
forth in HRS Chapter 205A and Sections 3.0 and 4.0 of the SMA Rules.
1. The Project is consistent with permitted uses in the SLUC Urban District,

the Kauai General Plan, and the CZO.

SECTION 12. HRS CHAPTER 343 (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENTS)
CONSIDERATIONS.

12.1 HRS Chapter 343. The Project is not subject to the provisions of Hawaii revised

Statutes Chapter 343. HRS Chapter 343 requires the preparation of an Environmental
Assessment and/or an Environmental Impact Statement for certain activities as specified in HRS
Section 343-5. The proposed Project does not implement any of the trigger points required under
HRS Section 343-5.

SECTION 13. NATIVE HAWAIIAN ISSUES.

13.1  Project’s Impacts on Traditional or Cultural Practices. The Project area is at the

north end of the historic Kapaa Town corridor and has a small footprint for the proposed

residential structure. The Project Site Photagraphs illustrate the current status of the Project Site
(See, Exhibits “I-1” through “I-5”). Based on the Applicant’s research and discussion with
community members who are familiar with the Project site area, past use of the Subject Property
as a service station occurred for many years. The Historic Project Site Photograph (See, Exhibit
“I”) illustrates prior use of the Subject Property as a service station. Based on the research and
discussion with community members, it is believed that the Project will have no impact on any
known traditional or customary practices of native Hawaiians and find that:

a. There are no known traditional or customary practices of native Hawaiians

that are presently occurring within the Project area. Furthermore, no surface or cultural deposits
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were discovered, which would indicate whether any cultural and traditional native Hawaiian
practices on the Subject Property.

b. There are no indications of special gathering practices taking place within
the Subject Property given the primary feature of the existing surrounding area as residential and
commercial uses.

C. There will be no detrimental effect on access to any streams, access to the
shoreline or other adjacent shoreline areas, or gathering along any streams, the shoreline or in the
ocean given public beach access is available near and not adjacent to the Subject Property.

d. There are no indications of religious practices taking place within the
Project area.

€. There are no known cultural or historic sites or resources within the
Project area, nor were any disclosed to the Applicant prior to purchasing the Subject Property.

f. There are no known burials within the Project area. Should any burial site

be identified during construction activities, the Applicant will ensure its contractor will stop

‘construction and immediately contact the State Historic Preservation Division as required by law.

SECTION 14. CONCLUSION.

The Applicant respectfully requests that the Planning Department:

1. Find that the Project will not have any substantial environmental or
ecological effect, except as such adverse effect is minimized to the extent practicable and clearly
outweighed by public health, safety, or compelling public interest.

2. Find that the Project is consistent with the objectives, policies, and

guidelines set forth in Hawaii Revised Statutes Chapter 205A and Sections 3.0 and 4.0 of the

SMA Rules.

23




3. Find that the Project is consistent with permitted uses in the SLUC Urban
District, the Kauai General Plan, and the CZO.

4. Approve the issuance of a SMA Use Permit for the Project on the Subject
Property as described herein, subject to such reasonable conditions as the Planning Department

shall impose.

}
DATE: Anahola, Kauai, Hawaii, D 5 / 2/ 1/ 20272 .

NRM ARCHITECT LLC

sy 20> . 1) lahalerz
NALANI R. MAHELONA
Architect for Applicant,
Benson C. Peralta and Arcelie A. Peralta,
Fee Owners
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ICANT’ J TION

APPLICANT

Names: Benson C. Peralta Fee Owner
Arcelie A. Peralta Fee Owner

Mailing Address: 193 Lulo Rd. Apt. A
Kapaa, Hawaii 96746

Email: bperaltagep@gmail.com

AUTHORIZED AGENT
Name: Nalani R. Mahelona, Architect

Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 30923
Anahola, Kauai, Hawaii 96703

Telephone: (808) 551-9832

Email: nalanirose(@gmail.com
PROPERTY

Lot 5-B

Kapaa Town Lots, Block “D”
Kapaa, Kauat, Hawaii
Kauai Tax Map Key No. (4) 4-5-012: 048

AUTHORIZATION

The Applicants hereby authorize the Authorized Agent to act on the Applicants’ behalf

and to file and process on the Applicants’ behalf any and all applications necessary to

obtain governmental permits relating to the Subject Property, including, but not limited

to, the following:

1. Building permits, grading permits, use permits, variance permits, zoning permits,
shoreline setback determinations, and Special Management Area permits issued

by any department, agency, board or commission of the County of Kauai.

2. Permits issued by the Department of Health of the State of Hawaii.

EXHIBIT “A”




DATED:

Permits issued by the Board of Land and Natural Resources of the State of Hawaii
and/or the Department of Land and Natural Resources of the State of Hawaii,
including shoreline certifications.

Permits issued by the Land Use Commission of the State of Hawaii.

Approval before the United States Department of Aorxculture Natural Rescurces
Conservation Service.

-f\%}@%

Fee\ew/ner

ﬁm{m‘»}

Arcelie A. Peralta Fee Owner
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Overview

Legend
D Parcels
[ ] cPR Units
Roads
Parcel 450120480000 Situs/Physical 4-1542 KUHIO HWY  Total Market Value $210,300 Last2Sales
D Address Total Assessed Value $210,300 Date Price Reason
Acreage 00579 Mailing Address PERALTABENSONC Total Exemptions $0 10/21/2019 $195000 VALID
Class COMMERCIAL 193LULORDAPTA Total Net Taxable $210,300 SALE
KAPAAHI 96746 Value 7/14/2016 $160000 VALID
SALE
Brief

L. LOT 5-B KAPAATOWN LOTS 2520 SF DES
Tax Description

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

The Geographic Information Systems (GIS} maps and data are made available solely for informational purposes. The GIS data is not the official representation of any of the
information included, and do not replace a site survey or legal document descriptions. The County of Kauai {County) makes or extends no daims, representations or warranties of any
kind. either express or implied. inluding, without limitation, the implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose, as to the quality, content. accuracy. currency,
or completeness of the information, text. maps. graphics, links and other items contained in any of the GIS data. In no event shall the County become liable for any errors or amissions
in the GIS, and will not under any circumstances be liable for any direct. indirect, special, incidental. consequential. or other loss. injury or damage caused by its use or otherwise
arising in connection with its use. even if specifically advised of the possibility of such loss, injury or damage. The data and or functionality on this site may change pericdically and
without notice. In using the GIS data. users agree to indemnify, defend. and hold harmless the County for any and all liability of any nature arising out of or resulting from the fack of
accuracy or correctness of the data, or the use of the data.

Date areated: 1/27/2023
Last Data Uploaded: 1/27/2023 6:10:16 AM

Developed bv €39 Schneider
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Figure 5-20 East Kaua‘i Hazard Map
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Flood Hazard Assessment Report

www.hawaiinfip.org

Property Information Notes:
COUNTY: KAUAL
TMK NO: {4) 4-5-012:048
WATERSHED: MOIKEHA
PARCEL ADDRESS:  ADDRESS NOT DETERMINED
HKAPAA, HI 96746
Flood Hazard Information
FIRM INDEX DATE FEBRUARY 26, 2021
LETTER OF MAP CHANGE(S): NONE
FEMA FIRM PANEL: 1500020204F
PANEL EFFECTIVE DATE: NOVEMBER 26, 2010

THIS PROPERTY IS WITHIN A TSUNAMI EVACUTION ZONE: YES
FOR MORE INFO. VISIT: http://www.scd.hawaii.gov/

THIS PROPERTY IS WITHIN A DAM EVACUATION ZONE: NO
FOR MORE INFO, ViSIT: http://dinreng hawaii.gov/dam/

a

formotional purposes

ELIMINARY, please
5 r flood zone determina

g. Contact y

FLOOD HAZARD ASSESSMENT TOOL LA

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs) SUBJECT TO INUNDATION BY
THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - The 1% annual chance flood (100-
year), also know as the base flood, is the flocd that has a 136 chance of
being equaled or exceeded in any given year. SFHAs indlude Zone A, AE,
AH, AQ, V, and VE. The Base Flood Elevation (8FE] is the water surface
elevation of the 1% annual chance flood. Mandatory flood insurance
purchase applies in these zones:

Zone A: No BFE determined.

Zone AE: BFE determined.

Zone AH: Flood depths of 1 to 3 feet {usually areas of ponding);
BFE determined.

Zone AO: Flood depths of 1 to 3 feet [usually sheet flow on
sloping terrain); average depths determined.

Zone V: Coastal flood zone with velocity hazard {wave action);
no BFE determined.

Zone VE: Coasta! flood zone with velocity hazard (wave actioni;
BFE determined.

Zone AEF: Floodway areas in Zone AE. The floodway is the
channel of stream plus any adjacent floodpiain areas that must
be kept free of encroachment so that the 1% annual chance
flood can be carried without increasing the BFE.

NON-SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA - An area in a ‘ow-to-moderate risk
flood zone. No mandatory fiood insurance purchase requirements apply,
but coverage is available in participating communities.

Zone XS (X shaded): Areas of 0.2% annual chance flood; areas of
1% annual chance flood with average depths of less than 1 foot
or with drainage areas less than 1 sgquare mife; and areas
protected by levees from 1% annual chance flood.

Zone X: Areas determined to be outside the 0.2% annual chance
floodpiain.

OTHER FLOOD AREAS

Zone D: Unstudied areas where flood hazards are undeter-

mined, but flooding is No y flood insurance
purchase apply, but coverage is availatle in particpating commes-
mities.
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Lot 5—A

PERIMETER SURVEY

LOT 58
of Kapaa Town Lots, Block D
Being a Portion of Grant 5936
to Alfred Rodrigues

At Kapaa, Kawaihau, Kauai, Hawaii
Tax Map Key: (4) 4—5-012: 048
December 3, 2018

HIRANAKA SURVEYING AND MAPFPING

Lihue, Kauagi, Hawaii EXHIBIT “D_Z”




Counf? 06 Kamu -

Parcel Information
Parcel Number (TAX MAP KEY) 450120480000

This is for tax purposes only. Not to be used for zoning.)

LOT 5-B KAPAA TOWN LOTS 2520 SF DES

Location Address 4-1542 KUHIO HWY
KAPAAHI 96745

Project Name

Tax Classification COMMERCIAL
Note:

Neighborhood Code 4518-3

Legal Information

Zoning CcG

Non Taxable Status

Land Area (acres) 0.0579

Land Area (approximatesqft) 2520

Living Units o]

View Map

Owner Information

Owner Names
PERALTABENSONC Fee Owner
PERALTAARCELIEA Fee Owner
d Addresse

v All Owners and

Assessment Information

Year Property Class
2023 COMMERCIAL
Assessment Notices

Mailing Address

PERALTA.BENSON C
193LULORDAPTA
KAPAA HI 96746 3203

hstoneal A

sessment

Total Total
Market Property Assessed

Value Value
$210,300 $210.300

late real property taxes

I

¢

1l

el

Online Assessment Notices will include one PDF per parcel for each class. For muiti-owner copies please contact ¢

Conveyance Information

Sale Date Price # i Type Date Recorded
10/21/2019 $195,000 19-A-72370281 FEE CONVEYANCE 10/25/2019
07/14/2016 $160,000 16-A-60440207 FEE CONVEYANCE 07/19/2016
08/06/2013 $1 13-A-49730547 FEE CONVEYANCE 08/13/2013
12/18/2000 $325.000 00-183709 FEE CONVEYANCE 12/29/2000
01/09/1998 30 9800010786 FEE CONVEYANCE 01/27/1998
04/11/1990 $450,000 9000056544 FEE CONVEYANCE 04/23/1990
04/09/1990 $450,000 9000056543 FEE CONVEYANCE 04/23/19%0
Current Tax Bill Information
Original
TaxPeriod  Description Due Date
2022-2 Real Property Tax 02/20/2023
Tax Bill with Interest computed through 02/21/2023
Map

EXHIBIT “E”

Document Number ~ Cert #

Taxes

$790.96
$790.96

Property Exemption

Total

30

Book/Page
Net
Tax Penality
$790.96 $0.00
$790.96 3000

passessment@kauai gov.

Total Net
Taxable
Value
$210.300
C e Tax De Type
195 Warranty Deed
160 Warranty Deed
Quitclaim Deed
325 Route Siip
0
225
225
Interest  Other Amount Due
$0.00 3000 $790.96
3000  $000 $790.96




PROJECT INFORMATION SQUARE FOOTAGE: LOT AREA: 2,520 SF.
ADDRESS 4-1542 KUHIO HWY Ez%PaiiEgEleENCE: IJ?.? g:;-:
T.M.K. (4) L-5-012: 048 CONCRETE SIDEWALK: 28 S.F.
ZONING cG CONCRETE DRIVEWAY: 153 S.F.
. LAND USE DESIGNATION URBAN BALCONIES: 222 SF.
District of HANALE FLOOD ZONE AE (B.F.E. 8.0) TOTAL LOT COVERAGE: 2,206 S.F. < 88% (MAX. LOT COV.: 2,268 S.F. = 90%)
QOCCUPANCY/USE RESIDENTIAL-SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED
e FIRE WALLS |-HOUR FIRE RATED @ <5' FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE
District of \ FIRE SPRINKLERS NOT REQUIRED
KAWAIHAU ) PERMIT # #BP 22-1626 COUNTY OF KAUA')
AN BUILDING CODE INFORMATION I PERMIT # 22-1626
District of WAIMEA o INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE 2012 EDITION WITH LOCAL AMENDMENTS | |
o FEMA FLOOD ZONE, SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA |
« COUNTY OF KAUAI SEA LEVEL RISE CONSTRAINT DISTRICT 2
SITE «INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE, 2006 AND NFPA I, 2012 s
LOCATION o SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA RULES AND REGULATIONS, SHORELINE SETBACK ORDINANCE | 3
o STATE LAND USE ORDINANCE, KAUAI COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, KAUAI GENERAL PLAN | | g
o INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE, 20IS EDITION WITH LOCAL AMENDMENTS ) 3 = z é
- 2 H
AREAS: LOT AREA: 2,520 S.F. LOT 5-A 2EES 5
BUILDING AREA: 1,978 S.F. | fgg H
| ® -
l -
ISLAND OF FIRE SPRINKLERS: NOT REQUIRED | £58%
KAUA'I == ==
BUILDING HEIGHT: 3 STORIES 8- H CMU WALL
A /_ 33 SF :
CONTENTS MISC. NOTES : \ 4
o
A 0.0 TITLE SHEET, VICINITY MAP, TMK MAP, SITE PLAN, PROJECT INFO 1. EXTERIOR DIMENSIONS TO QUTSIDE OF FRAMING/FOUNDATION. [ =
2. INTERIOR WALLS COVERED WITH 4 GYPSUM BOARD U.N.0. o REAR YARD (GRAVEL) 207 sF o
A 1.0 FLOOR PLANS (IsT & 2np), DOOR 8 WINDOW SCHEDULE 3. PROTECTION AGAINST DECAY AND TERMITES SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH IBC 2012, SECTION 2303.1.8 ! I
A 2.0 FLOOR PLANS (3rD & LOFT), DOOR & WINDOW SCHEDULE AND 2304.11. ’ © !
4. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS ] BALCONY g
A 3.0 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS, TYPICAL SECTIONS 5. EXTERIOR WINDOW GLAZING SHALL BE IMPACT RESISTANT OR PROTECTED WITH AN IMPACT-RESISTANT [ 155 SF /
s COVERING MEETING THE REGUIREMENTS OF AN APPROVED IMPACT-RESISTANT STANDARD OR ASTM EI996
A 3.1 SECTION AND ASTM EI886. |
A 4.0 FOUNDATION PLAN & DETAILS, 0' SIDE 0’ SIDE | HAWAIAN ARCHTECTURE
A 5.0 FLOOR FRAMING PLANS - SETBACK SETBACK
A 6.0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS FLOOR AREA CALCULATIONS: LIVING AREA FLOOR AREA
IST LEVEL AREAS (CARPORT): N/A 1,660 S.F.
A7.0 PLUMBING 3RD LEVEL AREAS, \03SF. | I78SF !
E 1.0 ELECTRICAL PLAN : . s : e |
MEZZANINE/ATTIC (MAX. I/3 FLOOR AREA): 310 S.F. 310 S.F. LOT L“ LZD
TOTALS: 3,516 S.F. 5,466 S.F. —
| -
o | —
s, o
~ I-HOUR FIRE WALL i
- e N, ASSEMBLY @ P. 124 )I:,)/ ) > m
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o | o
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L2 erag o i i A MACIAS
cHECKED 8Y: NRM- ARCH|
B oy xon : 19-2022
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DIMENSIONS

SHEET NOTES
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I strrace =]
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COUNTY OF KAUAT
PERMIT # 22-1626
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COUNTY OF KAUA'I
PERMIT # 22-1626
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rroc: PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL BUILDING

scale:  AS SHOWN

Do m MACIAS

cHECKED 8Y: NRM- ARCH

DATE:  8-19-2022

REVISED: -

PERMIT SET

SHEET NO:

WINDOW $CHEDULE DOOR SCHEDULE LEGEND SHEET NOTES
# W H |MAT.|GLASS) NOTES #[Q W H |THCK.[MAT. NOTES
O3] T8 | 5-0" | MET. | TMP | 3 FIXED WINDOWS PER SET, @1 [&-0° | 6'-8° | 1-%° | WD_]| 36" GLASS DOOR WITH 9" SIDELITE | 2x4 WALL I. Lx6 POST
SILL HEIGHTS: 18* ABV. STARS @1 [12-0° | 90" | - | MET. | ROLL-UP GARAGE DOOR
@[z 30 | &6° | MET. | - [FIXED @1 [127-0° [ 90" |- [ MET. | ROLL-UP AUTO-CLOSE - FIRE RATED
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®©[ 4 [5-0" | 40" | MET. | 0BSC [I3 BLADE JALOUSIE ©[2[8-0" [ 68" | 2 | MET. | XO SLIDING GLASS DOOR
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TEMP. GLASS
(TYP.)
l u
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LOT COVERAGE CALCULATIONS:

PROPERTY: TMK: (4) 4-5-012: 048
ADDRESS: 4-1542 KUHIO HWY
PROPERTY OWNER: BENSON/ARCELIE PERALTA
TOTAL LOT SIZE: 2,520 S.F.

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS:

PROPOSED RESIDENCE: 1,756 S.F.

CMU WALLS: 47 S.F.
CONCRETE SIDEWALK: 28 S.F.
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY: 153 S.F.
BALCONIES: 2228 F
PROPOSED LOT COVERAGE: 2,206 S.F. = 88%
MAX. LOT COVERAGE: 2,268 S.F. = 90%
SUBMITTED BY: NALANI R. MAHELONA, ARCHITECT

LICENSE NO. AR-15952

Aa AN\ Gl

DATE:  02/08/2023
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RESOLUTE BUILDERS
General Building Contractor
- License # BC-34911
(808) 652-4709

CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT

NEW 3-STOREY BUILDING WITH ROOF TOP
Building permit application # 22-00001626
Property address: 4-1542 Kuhio Highway, Kapaa, HI 96746
Parcel ID Number: (4) 4-5-012-048
Owner's name: Benson & Arcelie Peralta
Owner's address: 193-A Lulo Road, Kapaa HI 96746
Contractor: Resolute Builders LLC
Contractor's License number: BC-34911
Date of Contractor's estimate: 10/30/22
Construction Cost Estimate: $600.000.00
I'have prepared a cost estimate for new building construction work at a minimum cost, see attached
construction estimate dated 10/30/22. I acknowledge that if, during the course of construction, the
scope of work changes or there are modifications of the work described in the building permit

application, that a revised estimate must be provided to the county of Kauai. Such re-evaluation may
require revision of the permit and may subject to additional requirements. .

.

I P A
Brandon Williams . General Contractor

Date: // ~27 -2Z
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RESOLUTE BUILDERS

General Building Contractor

Lic # BC-34911

(808) 6524709
Estimate Date: 10/30/22
For: Construction Materials & Labor
Description Amount
Work to be performed:
1. Foundation, Footings, Slab $100,000.00
2. Framing: I Beams, Metal Stud, Floor Joist 100.000.00
3. Roofing: Architect 80 and Flat Roof 50,000,00
4. Sidings: Stuéco 30,000.00
5. Drywalls: 5/8 Fireproof Drywalls, Insulation 60,000.00
6. Plumbing 30,000.00
7. Electrical 30,000.00
8. Windows/Doors/Sliding Door 10,000.00
9. Sprinkler system 50,000.00
10. Fire Alarm System 10,000.00
11. Painting 50,000.00
12. Sewer 80,000.00
Sub-total $600.000.00
Tax 4.712% 28,272.00
TOTAL $628,272.00

EXHIBIT “H”



Notes:

This estimate is for the above mentioned work. This quote is only valid for 30 calendar days, due to
material cost volatility. Estimates includes all material acquisition and labor.

Acceptance of this proposal requires signature from client, at which time and invoice will be issued,
with payment scheduling details.

Signature denotes that client understands, agrees to, and accepts this proposal's entirety.

Mabhalo for your consideration.

LN 4

s A

Resolute Builders LLC 'ent'j signaffire
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DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING

KA"AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAYEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR

SUMMARY

Action Required by
Planning Commission:

Permit Application Nos.

Name of Applicant(s)

PERMIT INFORMATION

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR
MICHAEL A. DAHILIG, MANAGING DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Consideration of Special Management Use Permit to construct a three
(3) story single-family dwelling.

Special Management Use Permit SMA(U)-2023-12

BENSON C. AND ARCELIE A. PERALTA
NRM Architect LLC, Authorized agent

PERMITS REQUIRED

[ ] Use Permit

[ ] Project Development Use
Permit

[ ] variance Permit

[ ] special Permit

[_] Zoning Permit Class

Cliv

i
[X] special Management Area Pursuant to Section 205a of the Hawai‘i Revised Statues (HRS)
Permit and the Special Management Area (SMA) Rules and Regulations
X use of the County of Kaua’l, a SMA Use Permit is required as defined
[] Minor in Section 7.3(C) of the SMA Rules and Regulations where the

Director finds that the proposal (1) is a “Development” as
defined in Section 1,4f; and (2) is in excess of $500, 000.

AMENDMENTS

[_] Zoning Amendment

[ ] General Plan Amendment

[ ] state Land Use District
Amendment

Date of Receipt of Completed Application: June 21, 2023

Date of Director’s Report: July 21,2023

Fa2.al.

AUG 08 2023




Date of Public Hearing:

Deadline Date for PC to Take Action (60™
Day):

PROJECT DATA

AUGUST 8, 2023

October 6, 2023

PROJECT INFORAMTION

Parcel Location:

Parcel located in Kapa‘a approximately 400 feet northeast of Moikeha
Drainage Canal and approximately 160 feet southwest of the Kapa‘a

Neighborhood Center.
Tax Map Key(s): | (4) 4-5-012:048 Area: | .0579 acres
ZONING & DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS
Zoning: | SPA-C
State Land Use District: | Urban
General Plan Designation: | Neighborhood Center

Height Limit:

New structures shall be no more than three (3) floors
in height but not to exceed forty (40) feet. Additional
height shall be allowed for sloping roofs but not to
exceed fifteen (15) feet above the plate line.

Max. Land Coverage:

90% land coverage

Parking Requirement:

Two (2) parking

Front Setback: | Five (5) feet from right-of-way line of a public or
private street or pavement line of driveway or
parking lot used by public.

Rear Setback: | Zero (0) feet
Side Setback: | Zero (0) feet
Community Plan Area: | Kapa‘a-Wailua Development Plan
Community Plan Land Use Designation: | N/A
Deviations or Variances Requested: | N/A

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

Sections 8.0, 9.0, and 10.0 of the
County of Kaua‘i (CoK) Special
Management Area (SMA) Rules
and Regulations:

This report is being transmitted to the Applicant and
Planning Commission in order to satisfy the requirements of
Sections 8.0, 9.0, and 10.0 of the COK SMA Rules and
Regulations, relating to the scheduling of a public hearing
within sixty (60) days of the filing of a completed
application. The application was received on June 21, 2023
and the Applicant was notified accordingly of the Planning
Department’s intent to commence permit processing.

SMA(U)-2023-12; Director’s Report
Benson C. and Arceliea Peralta

07.21.23
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Public Hearing Date: | August 8, 2023

VI.

VILI.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND USE

The Applicant is proposing a three (3) story single-family dwelling on a parcel consisting of 2,520
square feet. The subject parcel is within the Kapa‘a-Wailua Development Plan, Special Planning
Area “C” (SPA-C) and identified as Tax Map Key: 4-5-012:048.

Previous development on the subject site include a service station that (according to a committee
member) was destroyed by Hurricane Iniki in 1992. In a letter dated June 13, 2000 (see Exhibit “G-
2”), it referenced the removal of two (2) 1,000-gallon fuel tanks. Based on the document entitled
“Underground Storage Closure Report” dated October 20, 1992, prepared by Nexus
Environmental Group, Inc., the State of Hawai‘i, Department of Health Solid and Hazardous Waste
Branch concluded that they was no evidence of petroleum contamination from the tanks or
piping system at that time. The letter also states that if any future information reveals presence of
contamination originating from the subject site, then additional investigation and/or cleanup
actions may be required.

Currently, there are two existing portable storage sheds and a four (4) foot high wooden fence
along the northern and eastern portion of the property. Removal of the storage sheds and fence is
planned prior to construction of the dwelling as represented.

As noted in the application, the proposed three (3) story plus attic, single-family dwelling consists
of five (5) bedrooms, eight (8) bathrooms, and an elevator shaft. The first floor of the dwelling is a
garage and has four (4) parking stalls. The second-floor features three (3) bedrooms, a den, and
four (4) bathrooms. The third floor consists of one (1) bedroom, living room, kitchen, dining, and
three (3) bathrooms. The attic area has a den, office space, one (1) bathroom, and an open
balcony. The proposed dwelling displays gable roof lines at a 3-12 pitch with a metal roof finish.
The exterior siding of the dwelling will be constructed of concrete masonry unit (CMU) with stucco
trims and finish.

APPLICANT’S REASONS/JUSTIFICATION
Please refer to the application.

ADDITIONAL FINDINGS
1. The project site is located in Kapa‘a Town, approximately 400 feet northeast of Moikeha
Drainage Canal and approximately 160 feet southwest of the Kapa‘a Neighborhood Center.

Access to the property is taken from Kihio Highway.

2. The State Land Use District (SLUD) designation for this parcel is “Urban”, which allows for
urban growth in a specified area.

3. The General Plan (GP) designation is “Neighborhood Center”. This designation is focused on
historic town cores and corresponds to existing or future areas appropriate for

3|Page
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accommodating infill development and growth. Neighborhood Centers typically comprise a
mix of detached and attached buildings between 1-5 stories in height.

The subject parcel is located within Zone “AE” of the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). Zone “AE” is susceptible to 1% annual chance of
flooding hazards. The parcel is also with the extreme tsunami evacuation zone. In addition, the
subject site is also within the County of Kaua'’i Sea Level Rise Constraint District.

Four (4) other parcels are situated between the subject site and the shoreline. The subject site
is also within the 500-foot shoreline setback threshold as recognized by Chapter 8, Article 27
of the Kaua’i County Code (1987) as amended. The required shoreline setback for the
proposed dwelling is 249 feet. The setback of the proposed dwelling is approximately 270
feet, 21 feet outside the shoreline setback area. There is also an existing sea wall that is on the
shoreline which was constructed around 1987. The applicant shall submit a Shoreline Setback
Determination form to the Planning Department before Class | Zoning Permit approval.

The topography is relatively flat, and no grading of the project area will occur. Existing
drainage patterns on the property will not be affected.

Special Management Area (SMA)

In addressing the issues of the Special Management Area and it’s objectives and policies, the
following aspects will be considered and evaluated:

a. Recreational Resources
b. Cultural/ Historic Resources
c. Scenic Resources
d. Coastal Ecosystems
e. Coastal Hazards
Furthermore, the proposal DOES NOT:

¢ involve dredging, filling, or otherwise altering any bay, estuary, salt march, river
mouth, slough or lagoon;

o reduce the size of any beach or other area usable for public recreation;

e reduce or impose restrictions upon public access to tidal and submerged lands,
beaches, rivers or streams within the special management area; and

4|Page
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e adversely affect water quality, existing areas of open water free of visible structures,
existing and potential fisheries and fishing grounds, wildlife habitats, estuarine
sanctuaries or existing agricultural uses of land.

8. Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (CZ0) Development Standards

The proposed development is subjected to the standards prescribed in Sections 8-4.5, 8-6.3,
Article 12, Section 8-12.5, and Chapter 10, Article 1, Section 10.1.3.

A. Special Planning Area: The subject parcel is in Special Planning Area “C” (SPA-C) with an
underlaying County Zoning designation of General-Commercial (CG). Areas designated
General-Commercial in SPA-C shall be subject to the CZO standards as to permitted uses
but shall follow the design standards and guidelines of Chapter 10, Article 1 Kapa‘a-Wailua
Development Plan.

B. Setback Requirements: The minimum distance of any building from the right-of-way line
of a public or private street or the pavement line of a driveway or parking lot used by the
public shall be five (5) feet unless the building is entered from that side by motor vehicles
in which case the minimum distance shall be fifteen (15) feet. The minimum distance of
any building to the side property line when the adjacent use district is commercial shall be
zero (0). Rear property line setback when the adjacent use district is commercial shall be
zero (0).

C. Setback between buildings: The minimum distance between detached buildings on the
same parcel shall be fifteen (15) feet for each story over two (2), or one-half (1/2) the total
-height of the highest building, whichever is greater.

D. Parking requirements: A minimum of two (2) off-street parking spaces per dwelling unit
shall be provided.

E. Lot coverage: The amount of land coverage created, including buildings and pavement,
shall not exceed ninety percent {30%) of the lot or parcel area within a General
Commercial District.

F. Sea Level Rise Constraint (S-SLR): The subject parcel is located within the County of
Kauai’s Sea Level Rise Constraint District which requires the residential structure’s lowest
horizontal structural member be elevated at least two (2) feet above the Sea Level Rise
Flood Elevation (SLRFE) of one (1) foot. The first floor of the proposed dwelling will be
used for parking only. The lowest horizontal structural member for the dwelling will be 8'-
8" above grade.

G. Building Height: All new structures shall be no more than three (3) floors in height but not
to exceed forty (40) feet. Additional height shall be allowed for sloping roofs but not to
exceed fifteen (15) feet above the plate line.

VIIl. AGENCY COMMENTS

5|Page
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Attached as Exhibit ‘A’.

PRELIMINARY EVALUATION

In evaluating the applicant’s request to construct a three (3) story single family dwelling the
following should be considered:

1. General Plan

The proposed development satisfies the following policies of the General Plan, as taken from
Section 1.3 and 1.4:

A. Section 1.3, entitled “VISIONS AND GOALS”

1)

2)

3)

4)

Goal #1 “Sustainable Island” — The proposed site is within the Kapa‘a- Wailua
Development Plan and situated in the Kapa‘a Town core. The dwelling will utilize
existing County sewer and water infrastructure.

Goal #2 “Unique and Beautiful Place” — The subject site’s northern property line is
located along Kahid Highway. There is an existing residence, an empty parcel, and the
Ke Ala Hele Makalae Bike Path to the south of the subject site. The proposed dwelling
will have minimal visual impacts to the shoreline from the highway and views from the
bike path.

Goal #3 “A Healthy and Resilient People” — The subject site is within walkable distance
to various shopping centers, restaurants, and food trucks. A community park, public
swimming pool, and other recreational opportunities such as the use of the bike path
and fishing are easily accessible without the use of a motorized vehicle. Public
transportation to the north and south lines are located directly across Kithio Highway
from the subject site and in front of the Kapa‘a Neighborhood Center.

Goal #4 “An Equitable Place, with Opportunity For All” — The subject site will have
access to business services, employment opportunities, recreational activities, and
public transportation all within walkable or biking distance.

B. Section 1.4, entitled “POLICIES AND GROWTH”

1)

2)

Policy #1 “Manage Growth to Preserve Rural Character” — The subject site is within
the Kapa‘a Town Core and is within the growth boundaries of a compact and walkable
community. Existing infrastructure such as water and sewer are readily available for
the proposed dwelling.

Policy #3 “Recognize the Identity of Kauai’s Individual Towns and Districts” — The
subject site is in the County of Kauai’s, Kapa‘a-Wailua Development Plan Special
Planning Area “SPA-C” which is subjected to the CZO for permitted uses but shall also
follow the design standards and guidelines setforth in Article 1, Chapter 10 of the
Kaua‘i County Code.

6|Page
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3) Policy #4 “Design Healthy and Complete Neighborhoods” — The proposed dwelling is
compatible with it’s surrounding areas and have easy access to shopping centers,
restaurants/ food trucks, and public transportation. The proposed dwelling is also
close to existing open spaces and the Ke Ala Hele Makalae Bike Path.

4) Policy #6 “Reduce the Cost of Living” — The proposed dwelling will serve as a long term
rental and is accessible to the Ke Ala Makalae Bike Path and public transportation lines
provided by The Kaua‘i Bus.

5) Policy #14 “Prepare for Climate Change” — The proposed dwelling is designed in
accordance to the County of Kaua‘i’s Sea Level Rise Constraint District and to mitigate

the flood hazards by allowing the entry and exit of flood waters.

2. Native Hawaiian Traditional and Cultural Rights

The subject site has been previously developed as a service station for many years. As
represented, the applicant reached out to community members who are familiar with the
project site area.

Based on the applicant’s research and discussions with community members, it is believed
that the project would have no impact to any known traditional or customary practices of

native Hawaiians.

The project involving a previously developed parcel should have no impact on any known
Hawaiian traditional or customary practices for the following reasons:

a. There are no known traditional or customary practices of native Hawaiian that are
presently occurring within the project site.

b. There are special gathering practices taking place within any portion of the project
site.

c. The project will not detrimentally affect access to any streams; access to the shoreline
or other adjacent shoreline areas; or gathering along any streams, the shoreline or in
the ocean.

d. There are no known religious practices taking place within the project site.

e. There are no known pre-contact cultural or historic sites of resources located within
the project site.

f. There are no known burials within the petition area.

3. SMA Rules and Regulations

7|Page
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The CoK SMA Rules and Regulations contain objectives, policies, and guidelines designed to
protect coastal resources. Within the SMA, special consideration is given to recreational
opportunities, cultural and historic resources, scenic qualities and open space, coastal
ecosystems, and coastal hazards. In evaluating the proposed development relative to the
goals and objectives of the SMA Rules and Regulations, the following aspects are taken into
consideration:

A. Public Access and Coastal Recreation — The project development would have minimal
negative impacts to existing public access and coastal recreation. The proposed dwelling
has easy access to the nearby bike path, open spaces, fishing, swimming, and surfing
recreational opportunities all in walking or biking distance.

B. Cultural/ Historical Resources — As represented, there has not been any archaeological
survey conducted for the project site. Exhibit “D-2”, a perimeter survey was conducted
on December 3, 2018. The survey has not revealed any information on historic or
archaeological resources. It is noted that the previous use of the subject property was a
service station.

C. Scenic and Open Space Resources — The project site is not an abutting shoreline
property. The proposed dwelling should have minimal negative impacts to any coastal
views from Kahid Highway and the shoreline. Existing open space and scenic resources
are preserved through the Kapa‘a Swimming Pool parcel and the Ke Ala Hele Makalae
Bike Path.

D. Coastal Ecosystems — The subject site size is .0579 acres or 2,520 square feet. Previous
use of the subject site was a service station. Based on its previous use, the subject site
should not have any influence as a habitat for any endangered species of flora or fauna.

E. Coastal Hazards — The subject site is located within Zone “AE” of the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and with the County of
Kaua‘i’s Sea Level Rise Constraint District (S-SLR). Based on the County of Kaua‘i's Sea
Level Rise Constraint Viewer, the subject site would be impacted by an annual wave run
up of one (1) foot. In order to comply with the County of Kaua‘i development standards
within the S-SLR district, the lowest horizontal member will be a minimum of two (2)
feet above the Sea Level Rise Flood Elevation. However, it is noted that the first floor of
the proposed dwelling would be used solely for parking purposes and that the lowest
horizontal structural member placed at 8’-8” above existing/finish grade.

CZ0 Development Standards

As proposed, the project complies with the setback, off-street parking, and building height
requirements for within the SPA-C and CG zoning districts, as well as the permissible density
within Residential (R-20) zoning district, as specified in Sections 8-4.3 and 8-4.5 of the
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (CZO).
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X. PRELIMINARY CONCLUSION

Bases on the foregoing, it is concluded that through proper mitigative measures, the proposed
development can be considered, and it complies with the policies and guidelines of the Special
Management Area Rules and Regulations in that:

1. The development should not have any substantial adverse environmental or ecological effect.

2. The development would be consistent with the objectives/goals/ policies of the County
General Plan, the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, and other applicable ordinances.

3. The proposed development should not have any detrimental impact to the environment or
the surrounding area and be in compliance with the criteria outlined for the granting of a
Special Management Area Use Permit. The Applicant should institute the “Best Management
Practices” to ensure that the operation of this facility does not generate impacts that may
affect the health, safety, and welfare of those in the surrounding area of the proposal.

Furthermore, the proposal DOES NOT:

e involve dredging, filling, or otherwise altering any bay, estuary, salt march, river
mouth, slough or lagoon;

e reduce the size of any beach or other area usable for public recreation;

e reduce or impose restrictions upon public access to tidal and submerged lands,
beaches, rivers or streams within the special management area; and

e adversely affect water quality, existing areas of open water free of visible structures,
existing and potential fisheries and fishing grounds, wildlife habitats, estuarine
sanctuaries or existing agricultural uses of land.

Xi.  PRELMINARY RECOMMENDATION

Based on the foregoing evaluation and conclusion, it is hereby recommended that construction of
a three (3) story single family residence under Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-
2023-12 be approved with the following conditions:

1. The proposed development shall be constructed as represented. Any changes to the
operation of the respective structure shall be reviewed by the County of Kaua’i, Department
of Planning to determine whether Planning Commission review and approval is required.

2. Pursuant to the comments from the State of Hawai‘i, Department of Health Solid and
Hazardous Waste Branch (letter dated June 13, 2000), if any future information reveals
presence of contamination originating from the subject site from the Underground Storage
Tank Removal, then additional investigation and/or cleanup actions may be required.
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10.

In order to ensure that the project is compatible with its surroundings and to minimize the
visual impact of the structures, the external color of the proposed dwelling shall be of
moderate to dark earth-tone color. The proposed color and landscape plan should be
submitted to the County of Kaua‘i, Department of Planning for review and acceptance prior
to building permit submittal.

The applicant is advised that should any archaeological or historical resources be discovered
during ground disturbing/ construction work, all work in the area of the archaeological/
historical findings shall immediately cease and the applicant shall contact the State
Department of Land and Natural Resources, Historic Preservation Division and the County of
Kaua‘i, Department of Planning to determine mitigation measures.

In order to minimize adverse impacts on the Federally Listed Threatened Species, Newell’s
Shearwater and other seabirds, if external lighting is to be used in connection with the
proposed project, all external lighting shall be only of the following types: downward facing,
shielded lights, spotlights aimed upward or spotlighting of structures shall be prohibited.

The applicant shall develop and utilize Best Management Practices (B.M.P’s) during all
phases of development in order to minimize erosion, dust, and sedimentation impacts of
the project to abutting properties.

The applicant shall resolve and comply with the applicable standards and requirements set
forth by the State Health Department, State Historic Preservation Division-DLNR, Office of
Hawaiian Affairs, and County Department of Public Works, Fire, Transportation, and Water.

To the extent possible within the confines of union requirements and applicable legal
prohibitions against discrimination in employment, the Applicant shall seek to hire Kauai
contractors as long as they are qualified and reasonably competitive with other contractors
and shall seek to employ residents of Kauai in temporary construction and permanent
resort-related jobs. It is recognized that the Applicant may have to employ non-Kauai
residents for particular skilled jobs where no qualified Kauai residents possesses such skills.
For the purposes of this condition, the Commission shall relieve the Applicant of this
requirement if the Applicant is subjected to anti-competitive restraints on trade or other
monopolistic practices.

The Applicant shall implement to the extent possible sustainable building techniques
and operational methods for the project, such as Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (L.E.E.D.) standards or another comparable state-approved,
nationally recognized, and consensus-based guideline, standard, or system, and
strategies, which may include but is not limited to recycling, natural lighting, extensive
landscaping, solar panels, low-energy fixtures, low-energy lighting and other similar
methods and techniques. All such proposals shall be reflected on the plans submitted
for building permit review.

The Planning Commission reserves the right to revise, add or delete conditions of approval
in order to address or mitigate unforeseen impacts the project may create, or to revoke the
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permits through the proper procedures should conditions of approval not be complied with
or be violated.

11. Unless otherwise stated in the permit, once permit is issued, the applicant must make
substantial progress, as determined by the Director, regrading the development or activity
within two (2) years, or the permit shall be deemed to have lapsed and be no longer in
effect.

The Planning Commission is further advised that this report does not represent the Planning
Department’s final recommendation in view of the forthcoming public hearing process
scheduled for August 8, 2023 whereby the entire record should be considered prior to decision
making. The entire record should include but not be limited to:

a. Pending government agency comments;

b. Testimony from the general public and interested others; and

c. The Applicant’s response to staff’s report and recommendation as provided herein.

By@m@ 2O,

ROMIO IDICA
Planner

Approved & Recommended to Commission:

Alpals. HULL
Director of Planning

Date: 4//% ,/?/b'L‘}
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EXHIBIT “A”

(Agency comments)



County of Kaua'i
Planning Department
4444 Rice St., Suite A473 Lihue, HI 96766
(808) 241-4050

FROM: Kaaina S. Hull, Director Planner: Romio Idica 6/21/2023

SUBIJECT: Special Mgt Area Permit SMA(U)-2023-12
Tax Map Key: 450120480000
Applicant: Benson C. & Arcelie A. Peralta
3-Story Single Family Residence/8' CMA Wall
TO:

13Uk Bej H3§>2’iransponation - STP
@ﬂsﬁ [}l@ HlEgﬁIvays, Kauai (info only)
[]State DOT - Airports, Kauai (info only)
[_IState DOT - Harbors, Kauai (info only)
[v|State Department of Health

[|State Department of Agriculture

[]state Office of Planning

[IState Dept. of Bus. & Econ. Dev. Tourism
[_|State Land Use Commission

[v|State Historic Preservation Division

[ ]State DLNR - Land Management

[]State DLNR - Forestry & Wildlife
[_|State DLNR - Aquatic Resources

[ ]State DLNR - Conservation & Coastal Lands
(]Office of Hawaiian Affairs

FOR YOUR COMMENTS (pertaining to your department)

1 l b [2022

RECEIVED

JUN 22 2023

County of Kauai
Transportation Agency

[w]County DPW - Engineering
[“]County DPW - Wastewater
[]County DPW - Building
[“JCounty DPW - Solid Waste

[ JCounty Department of Parks & Recreation
[V]County Fire Department
[v]County Housing Agency
[_]County Economic Development
[v]County Water Department
[]County Civil Defense

County Transportation Agency 4
[JKHPRC

[T]U.S. Postal Department

[JUH Sea Grant

[v]Other: Office of Hawaiian Affairs

e ke no e Gammensy oN TV Passsar.

M Agyeo |

This matter is scheduled for a public hearing before the County of Kauai Planning Commission on 8/8/2023 at the Lihue Civic Center,
Moikeha Building, Meeting Room 2A-2B, 4444 Rice Street, Lihue, Kauai, at 9:00 am or soon thereafter. If we do not receive your
agency comments within one (1) month from the date of this request, we will assume that there are no objections to this permit request.

Mabhalo!
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WAIMEA HIGH SCHOOL
GYMNASIUM COMPLEX

USE, CLASS IV AND VARIANCE PERMITS APPLICATION
DOE PRroJECT No. Q43201-18

TMK (4) 1-6-010: 004 AND (4) 1-6-009: 023

9707 TSUCHIYA ROAD

WAIMEA, KAUAI, HAWAII

PROPOSING AGENCY:
STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

JUNE 2023

F.2.b.
August 8, 2023
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DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING

DEPARTMENT USE ONLY

STANDARD ZONING PERMIT APPLICATION

Ore (1) engnat ¥ prowding plans, five {5) sets, inthuling ongnal. required.
Fees vary based on permuts required and range frem $30 to ever $1000

Proot of 00% fee swnersinp rghts or suthoriced agent must be atached.

Check D Paper D Electronic

One: Plans Plans

This application shall be filled out by all seeking Zoning. Use, Additional Fees:
Varnance, SMA Use or PDU permits pursuant to the Kauai Receipt Number
County Code, Hawai't Revised Statutes Chapter 205A and all Building Permit No.

relevant rules and regulations of the Planning Commssion and

Associated Permits (e.g. SSD)

Department. Supplemental information may be attached to

form. SMA applications may also require additional SMA
assessment forms.

Permitting fees may be made wvia cash or check. All checks
shall be made out to: "Director of Finance"

Complete Information Below

Tax Map Key Number Condominium Number
Applicant Name(s)
Property Address
Mailing Address
Parcel Area Contact Phone
Zoning Designation Contact Email
(if applicable)

Applicant Declarations (incorrect responses may slow yvour permit review)

Please place an X" under Yes or No under the following:

YES | NO Staff
Verification
1 Is this property located in the Special Management Area (SMA)?
2 Is this property part of a Condominium Property Regime (CPR)?
3 Is this property within 500 feet of the shoreline?
4 Is this property within the Agriculture Zoning District? X
5 Is there a structure on the property that is 50 years old or older?
6 Do you have an Additional Dwelling Unit Certificate? X
7 Is this a permit for an after-the-fact construction or activity?
8 | Ihold at least a 100% property interest m the property. X
9 | Are you an agent for the property owner? X
10 | Has a similar application been previously denied? y
11 | Is this an application for an agriculture structure under 200 square feet X
12 | Are there known bunals on the site? 3
13 | Are you using water not provided by a domestic water system?
14 | Does existing grade under building footprint change by 2’ or more in any direction? 5
15 | The proposed residential unit 1s a Multi-Famly Dwelling Unit? ¥
16 | Is this a conversion of a legally existing single-family dwelling unit into a multi-
family two dwelling unit?
17 | Is this structure a guest house? *
18 | Does guest house contain a kitchen? X
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GENERAL USE AND CLASS 1V REQUIREMENTS

Project Name: Waimea High School Gymnasium Complex

TMK: (4) 1-6-010: 004 (gymnasium) and (4) 1-6-009: 023 (parking)
Applicant: County of Kauai Department of Water

REQUIRED INFORMATION

Applicant and Property Information

1. The project property is identified as TMKs (4) 1-6-010: 004 and (4) 1-6-009: 023. The
lot sizes are 8.08 and 3.027 acres respectively. The site is identified as Urban on the State
Land Use Map and is designated as Urban Center on the Kauai General Plan. Zoning for

the project site is Residential District (R-1)/Special Treatment District (ST-P).

2. Ownership of the project parcels are with the State of Hawaii and the County of Kauai.
3. The authorized agent for this project is:

Mr. Taeyong Kim
Environmental Communications, Inc.

All correspondence should be directed to the planning consultant for distribution to the
Applicant and Authorized Agent:

Mr. Taeyong Kim

Environmental Communications, Inc.
P.O. Box 236097

Honolulu, HI 96823

Phone: 808-528-4661
Email: tkim@environcom.com

GRAPHIC AND SCHEMATIC REQUIREMENTS
In addition to this statement, the required project graphics are also located in the attached
Final Environmental Assessment for the project and in the attached architectural

drawings set.

Consistency with Existing Plans

The site is located in the State Urban District. The Kauai General Plan Land Use Map,
shows that the site is located in the Residential Community District.
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State Land Use Boundary Map: Urban Designation
Source: Office of State Planning
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Flood Zone

The project site is identified as being in Zone X on the Flood Insurance Map. This is an
area determined to be outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain. See Figure 11 of
Environmental Assessment.

Lot Coverage

The proposed improvements will consist of 20,861 sf for the gymnasium, 8,719 sf for
sidewalks, and 3,3353 sf for new parking area. In addition to the existing covered areas,
the total lot coverage will be approximately 51% of the total site.

« TMK 1-6-010:004: 352,226 sf

o Existing Building Area: 87,758 sf

« Existing Sidewalks: 25,428 sf

¢ Existing Roadways: 34,316 sf

e New Gymnasium Area: 20,861 sf

e New Sidewalks: 8,719 sf

e New Parking Lot: 3,353 sf

e Total: 180,255 sf

©352,226 / 180,255 = approximately 51%

6g. Off-street parking layouts are shown in the site plan included in the Environmental
Assessment Figure 7 and attached plans.

6h. The gymnasium project area is located on relatively flat land with a gentle slope in
the makai direction. A minimal amount of fill will be required to level the area for the
gymnasium with the finish grade approximately two feet above the lowest point of the
existing site.

6i. The project is not within an environmentally sensitive area. No graphic is required.
6j. A landscaping plan is under preparation and will be available before the Planning
Commission hearing. The plan will include significant additions in landscape streets
throughout the campus.

6k. Existing and proposed roadways are shown in the attached Site Plan.

61. The project site is not located near a shoreline or stream. No graphic is required.

7. Conceptual Building Plan information is attached in the plans attached to this
document .
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7a. Elevations and finishes are shown in Figures 5 and 6 of the Environmental
Assessment.

7b. Building heights and sections are shown in Figures 5 and 6 of the Environmental
Assessment. The proposed project height will require a Zoning Variance for height. The

variance request is addressed in the second portion of this document.

7c. Floor plans are shown in Figure 4 of the Environmental Assessment.
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WRITTEN REQUIREMENTS

8.a. The proposed project consists of the construction of a new 20,861 square foot Title
IX compliant gymnasium building to support the athletic activities of the Waimea High
School. A detailed description of the project can be found in the project’s Final
Environmental Assessment (FEA), which is included in its entirety within the Zoning
Petition attachment. This structure and its appurtenant support facilities will be
constructed on an open space near the entry of the campus. This new gymnasium will be
used for all athletic activities. The existing gymnasium will not be used for athletic events
and the disposition of this structure has not yet been determined. The structure is part of
the Waimea High School campus and is under the management of the Department of
Education while the site is owned by the County of Kauai. Discussion regarding the
disposition of the old gymnasium has been initiated and notes from these preliminary
discussions are attached. Continuing dialog between all parties are expected but this
remains outside the proposed scope of work for the new gymnasium.

8.b. The project site is classified as Residential (R-1)/STP. The project will require a Use
Permit as well as a Class IV Zoning permit which are the scope of the subject application.
A variance for height will also be required.

As stated in Sec. 8-11.3 of the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, a Use Permit will be
required as the proposed gymnasium structure and appurtenant improvements will alter
the form and apprearance fo the school campus.

A Variance approval for exceeding the residential height limit will be required for the
gymnasium structure. As stated in Sec. 8-3.3 of the Zoning Ordinance, a Variance will be
granted only if it is found that special circumstances are applicable. In the case of the
proposed gymnasium, exceeding the residential height limit of 30-feet is required by the
functional requirements of a multi-function gymnasium. A roof height at the 25-foot
height would not be in compliance with standards of a functional gymnasium. It is also
expected that gymnasium structures are typically the largest structures on any school
campus therefore the proposed structure in not exceptional in this regard. Additional
height is also required to allow the gymnasium to incorporate a pitched roof rather than a
flat roof. This additional height is requested to allow the building to present a form that is
visually attractive and in consonance with the surrounding community.

When viewed for consistency with the General Plan, the proposed improvements are
supportive of the key elements of the Plan. The project supports a sustainable island in
that the structure will be permanent and is expected to have a long useful lifespan. This
supports the intent to keep Kauai a sustainable island. It is not foreseen that additional or
an expanded gymnasium will be required in the near future. By its very nature, the
gymnasium will support the second value of keeping residents health and resilient. The
gymnasium’s primary purpose is supporting health and sporting activities. The
gymnasium is expected to be an important gathering place for the community as the High
School is a centerpiece of the community and will likely be visited by residents of all
ages. The third goal of maintaining a unique and beautiful place is supported by the
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proposed gymnasium by the incorporation of a sensitive design that pays homage to the
rural and historic character of Waimea Town. Architectural elements like the double
pitched roof, wall siding, and use of mixed materials reflect the sites rural heritage while
the purpose driven contemporary proportions also work with the more modern existing
campus forms. Lastly, the school remains under public domain and is open to all
residents but the addition of this new building will promote equity and opportunity for the
school’s students by providing them with a gymnasium that is on par with the facilities at
other school campuses. This is an important consideration not only in the regard of Title
IX entitlements but also as a source of community pride within this close knit
community.

The West Kaua’i Community Plan’s Waimea Town Plan prescribes design considerations
that are generally consistent with the proposed project. No specific design considerations
directly applicable to the proposed gymnasium are referenced in the plan however the
proposed project meets the objectives of the Plan in retaining a rural character, and
remaining within an walkable environment. Creating an equitable place is also a
prominent characteristic in that the Waimea High School Gymnasium is a public facility
that will be a community gathering place as well as a fully compliant athletic facility on
par with other State schools.

It should also be noted that the proposed gymnasium will be designed in accordance with
Hawaii State Building Code, Section 430, "State- and County-Owned Public High
Occupancy Buildings - Design Criteria for Enhanced Hurricane Protection Areas" to
serve as a community shelter. This furthers the sustainability values of the General Plan
and Waimea Town Plan and adds value to this important community facility.

The project will also require ministerial permits for building construction which are
typical of any new development. As these permits are not discretionary, no other
outstanding issues remain.

8.c. Kauai General Plan: Urban Center

Section 5.4.1.1, Policy of the Kauai General Plan, Kauai Kakou relating to the project site
are discussed on page 41 of the Environmental Assessment.

8.d. History of Project Parcel

The project area, which is located within the Waimea High School Campus has been
open since the development of the current school. No exceptional significance to this
open space has been identified from a recorded historical perspective however the open
space is well noted for a large monkey pod tree which remains a campus landmark. This
tree will need to be removed in favor of the new gymnasium however significant new
shade and ornamental trees will be added throughout the campus to create a
comprehensive and cohesive landscape plan.

8.¢. Status of Zoning Amendments
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No existing or outstanding zoning amendments are pending regarding this site. This
project will require a Use and Class IV Zoning Permit as well as a height variance.

8.f. Secondary Impacts

Secondary impacts of the proposed action consist primarily of the loss of open space on
the campus. While this loss will be visually notable, it is offset by the significant benefit
that it will provide students of the school. This offsetting benefit is also significant in that
it will provide Title IX equity and will allow the school to more easily host athletic
intramural activities. Non-action is not considered an acceptable alternative and
alternative sites are not readily available on-site. Replacement of the existing gym was
considered however this would not be readily or easily available due to the very limited
space it would provide, the dual ownership of the facility, and possible community
sentiment associated with this building.

The proposed project is not a residential use and increase in demand for additional police,
fire, school, or parks use will be non-existent or minimal, therefore it can be assumed that
no impacts on public services will result from completion of the project.

8.g. Water Source

The project site is presently vacant and can readily be connected to a potable water
supply. Water supply capacity to the site is presently available.

8.h. Sewage Disposal

No sewer line is presently serving the project location. The proposed plan proposes the
installation of gravity feed sewer line to the existing sewer line located adjacent to the
site. Capacity for this additional demand is available.

8.i. Solid Waste Disposal

Solid waste disposal will be collected either by private refuse collection on a contract
basis or by municipal refuse collection services. As a general management practice,

recycling is encouraged by the Department of Water.

9. Housing Division Evaluation. Not applicable.

10
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USE PERMIT DESCRIPTION

The proposed gymnasium project is consistent with the Comprehensive Zoning
Ordinance. The gymnasium is located on the Waimea High School grounds where it will
most effectively serve the students of the school. Programmatically, a gymnasium is a
standard facility in the Department of Education’s High School Standards.

The proposed use is not detrimental to persons or property in the area. The use has
already been established on the campus in an older structure which no longer conforms
with current athletic facility standards. The location of the proposed gymnasium is
currently in open space and use of this space will not adversely affect the functions of the
school.

The new building will permanently replace this open space with a large structure that has
been designed to meet the needs of the students and school with as little adverse impact
to the site as possible. No significant impact to the environment is anticipated however
short-term construction related activities will create some inconveniences during the
construction period. The Department of Education has deemed the project with a Finding
of No Significant Impact through the environmental review process.

The proposed gymnasium is not inconsistent with the CZO and General Plan. The school
use is already recognized and the addition of a new facility will be within the boundaries
of the existing campus. The school use is presently identified on the County of Kauai
planning maps.

VARIANCE PERMIT DESCRIPTION

Project Name: Waimea High School Gymnasium Complex

TMK: (4) 1-6-010: 004 (gymnasium) and (4) 1-6-009: 023 (parking)
Applicant: County of Kauai Department of Water

REQUIRED INFORMATION

Required information for the Variance Permit are include in the preceding information of
this document. Additional information can be referenced in the attached Final
Environmental Assessment prepared for the project.

The proposed gymnasium is located within a Special Treatment Area however the
underlying heigh for this residential district is 30 feet from ground to peak of roof. The
proposed facility will require a variance for height to exceed the underlying heigh limit
by 15 feet. This additional height is required specifically for the purpose and nature of a
gymnasium. This height exceedance is necessary for the activities that will take place
within the gym including basketball and volleyball. A detailed breakdown of the height
requirements of the structure are as follows:

11
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. Proposed Height: 45-feet
. Required Height Clearance over Main Court: 24-feet

. Bottom of Truss (over Main Court): 28-feet above the finish floor - the 4-
foot height difference between required height clearance and bottom of
truss is needed to accommodate overhead ceiling fans and other
gymnasium appurtenances such as the gymnasium divider curtain while
maintaining required height clearance

. Structure Supporting Roof: Approximately 16-feet high - we currently
have concrete headers which are 3 to 4-feet high and trusses supporting
the 2.5 slope roof

It should be noted that original gymnasium also exceeds the 30 height. This variance
request is predicated by function and loss of this height increase would hamper activities
or severely affect the esthetic character of the structure and the overall visual character of
the school.

Design considerations eliminated a lower flat roof design as a large flat roofed structure
at the front face of the campus would be inappropriate in regard to the overall community
design character. Viewed from an overall existing community character perspective and
also in view of the West Kauai Community Plan recommendations, the applicant feels
that the proposed design reflects the general values of the Plan and existing community.
A sloped roof, materials and design details were thoughtfully incorporated to be
consistent with the overall rural character of Waimea. The gymnasium is thought to
incorporate rural elements of the surrounding community as well as some contemporary
forms that are complementary to the existing school campus buildings.

12
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DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING

KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAYEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR

SUMMARY
Action Required by

Planning Commission:

Permit Application Nos.

Name of Applicant(s)

PERMIT INFORMATION

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR
MICHAEL A. DAHILIG, MANAGING DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Consideration of Class IV Zoning Permit, Use Permit and Variance
Permit to allow construction of a new gymnasium facility with
associated site improvements at the Waimea High School campus.

Class IV Zoning Permit Z-1V-2023-12
Use Permit U-2023-9
Variance Permit V-2023-4

STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (DOE), APPLICANT
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMUNICATIONS, INC., AUTHORIZED AGENT

PERMITS REQUIRED

X] Use Permit

Pursuant to Article 11, Section 8-11.3 of the KCC, 1987, as
amended, a Use Permit is required to allow any development,
structures or uses within the Special Treatment Public Facilities
(ST-P) District.

E] Project Development Use
Permit

[X] variance Permit

A Variance Permit is required to deviate from the maximum
building height requirement, per Section 8-4.5(b)(1) of the KCC,
within the Residential zoning district.

[:| Special Permit

[X] Zoning Permit Class

Pursuant to Section 8-3.1 of the KCC, 1987, as amended, a Class

& v IV Zoning Permit is a procedural requirement in applying for a
D " Use Permit in the Special Treatment Public Facilities (ST-P)
District.
[ ] Special Management Area
Permit
D Use
D Minor
AMENDMENTS

[ ]zoning Amendment

[ ] General Plan Amendment

F.2.b.I.
August 8, 2023




[_] state Land Use District
Amendment

June 22, 2023
July 24, 2023
August 8, 2023

Date of Receipt of Completed Application:
Date of Director’s Report:

Date of Public Hearing:

Deadline Date for PC to Take Action (60™

Day): August 21, 2023

PROJECT DATA

PROJECT INFORAMTION

Parcel Location:

The project site is located on the Waimea High School Campus that is situated
approximately 550 feet mauka of the Ola Road/Kaumuali‘i Highway
intersection, further identified as 9707 Tsuchiya Road, Waimea HI 96796.

Tax Map Key(s):

(4) 1-6-009: 023

(4) 1-6-010: 004, 005 and 010;

Area: | 23 Acres

ZONING & DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

Zoning:

Special Treatment Public Facilities (ST-P) /
Residential (R-1)

State Land Use District:

Urban

General Plan Designation:

Neighborhood General / Neighborhood Center

Height Limit:

30 feet OR as Authorized by the Planning Commission

Max. Land Coverage:

60%

Parking Requirement: | N/A
Front Setback: | 10 feet
Rear Setback: | 5 feet or % the wall plate height whichever is greater

Side Setback:

5 feet or % the wall plate height whichever is greater

Community Plan Area:

West Kaua‘i Community Plan

Community Plan Land Use Designation:

Public Facilities / Park

Deviations or Variances Requested:

Section 8-4.5 (b)(1) relating to building height.

“No single family detached or single family attached
dwelling, or accessory structure shall be more than two
(2) stories above and one (1) story below from the
finished grade at the main entry, over twenty (20} feet
measured from the finished grade at the main entry to
the highest exterior wall plate line, and over thirty (30)
feet to the highest point of the roof measured at each
point along the building from the finished grade at the
main entry. The finished grade at the main entry shall
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not be elevated more than a maximum of four (4) feet
from the existing grade.”

IV. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

Section 8-3.1(f), KCC: | This report is being transmitted to the Applicant and
Planning Commission in order to satisfy the requirements of
Section 8-3.1 (f), relating to the provision of the Planning
Director’s report and recommendation on the subject
proposal within sixty (60) days of the filing of a completed
application. The application was received on June 22, 2023,
and the Applicant, through its authorized agent, was notified
accordingly of the Planning Department’s intent to
commence permit processing.

Public Hearing Date: | August 8, 2023

V. PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND USE

The State of Hawai‘i, Department of Education (DOE) is proposing to construct a 23,394 sq. ft. new
one-story gymnasium complex, two (2) new parking areas totaling 3,353 sq. ft., new sidewalks and
associated site improvements on the Waimea High School campus to serve the students of
Waimea High School. The subject property is located at 9707 Tsuchiya Road and identified by Tax
Map Key Nos. (4) 1-6-010: 004, 005 and 010, and 1-6-009: 023. The campus is approximately 23
acres in size and is situated within the Residential (R-1) zoning district and Special Treatment
Public (ST-P) District and is within the State Land Use Urban District. The Waimea High School ¢
ampus is bordered by Haina Road on the North, Kaumuali‘i Highway on the South, Ola Road on the
East and Makeke Road on the West. It should be noted that Tsuchiya Road runs through the
campus boundaries and Waimea High School is located on both the mauka and makai sides of
Tsuchiya Road. Mauka of Tsuchiya Road is the main campus consisting of the school’s
Administration Building, Music Building, various classroom buildings and a library. Makai of
Tsuchiya Road consists of the school’s existing Athletic Complex including the existing gymnasium,
general classrooms and the Captain Cooks Memorial Park baseball field and tennis courts.

As previously noted above, the Waimea High School campus consists of four Tax Map Key (TMK)
parcels. The new gymnasium complex and a new parking area will be located on TMK: (4) 1-6-
010:004 which is owned by the State of Hawai‘i and it encompasses the lower portion of the main
campus. A second parking area will be located on TMK: (4) 1-6-009:023 which is owned by the
County of Kaua‘i and it encompasses the existing gymnasium, existing Athletic Complex, the
Waimea Swimming Pool and the Waimea Neighborhood Center. TMK: (4) 1-6-010:005
encompasses the Captain Cooks Memorial Park baseball field and it is owned by the County of
Kaua‘i. TMK: (4) 1-6-010:010 encompasses the northern portion of the main campus and it is also
owned by the County of Kaua‘i. The total combined area of TMKs: (4) 1-6-010:004 and 1-6-
009:023 is approximately 11.11 acres as noted in the application.
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New Gymnasium Complex

The newly proposed gymnasium will be located on the main campus, mauka of Tsuchiya Road on
what is considered the school’s front lawn. The location is a grassed and maintained area that is
vacant and primarily serves as open space with walkways connecting Tsuchiya Road to the
classroom buildings. The new gymnasium will be located south of Buildings W (Administration
Building), U (Classrooms), and B (Music Building), and just north of Tsuchiya Road.

The proposed location contains a large monkeypod tree as wells as a few smaller trees that will be
removed to accommodate the gymnasium structure. The monkeypod tree and other trees
removed will be replaced with new 25-gallon size trees of similar type, as well as additional tree
varieties with the intent of adding a minimum of two new trees for every tree removed. New
plantings will include Native Loulu Palms, Native Kou Trees, Gold Trees, and a Monkeypod Tree.

Additionally, existing concrete walkways, concrete stairs, a retaining wall and bleachers will be
demolished and removed to accommodate the new gymnasium complex.

The gymnasium building will be constructed with reinforced CMU in compliance with enhanced
hurricane protection requirements. The building will have a standing seam metal roof and the
exterior windows will use factory finished aluminum fixed frames and will meet hurricane and
windborne debris requirements. A retaining wall will be installed on the south side of the
gymnasium to level the grade for the gymnasium building pad. The new facility shall
accommodate ADA requirements as well as positive drainage away from the building. Additionally,
the new structure will serve as an Enhanced Hurricane Protection Area for the community.

The new gymnasium complex will include the following components:

Main Gymnasium

This space is used for team activities and scholastic sports competitions such as basketball and
volleyball. Consists of one regulation Basketball (94-feet x 50-feet) / Volleyball court with two
(2) practice cross courts, six (6) ceiling mounted retractable basketball goals, scoreboards and
retractable wall-mounted bleachers on both sides of the Main Gymnasium with a seating
capacity of 840 (includes 8 accessible seats). In addition, a motorized vertical-acting divider
curtain with manual override will be provided between practice courts.

Wrestling Room / Cheer Room
Ancillary Gym to be used for Wrestling and Cheerleading. Sized to accommodate one full size

wrestling mat (42-feet x 42-feet).

Lobby
Primary entry space into the Gymnasium for patrons, visitors, and spectators, with direct
connection to the Main Gymnasium and Concession. The primary function of the Lobby is to be

a control checkpoint for the facility.

Concession Booth
Room to support concession activities, which consist of selling snacks and drinks during events.
Provided with countertop space, cabinets, a sink, refrigerator, freezer, ice machine and tables.

4|Page
2-1V-2023-12, U-2023-9 and V-2023-4; Director’s Report
State Department of Education (DOE)
Waimea High School Gymnasium
Date of Director’s Report - 07.27.2023




Men’s and Women’s Toilet Rooms

Toilet room for use by Gymnasium patrons, visitors, spectators and others from the school’s
Athletic Complex. Provided with dual entrances and controls for dual use (Gymnasium and
Athletic Complex).

General (Gymnasium) Storage

This area is sized to accommodate the storage of equipment and supplies such as basketballs,

volleyball standards/gear, other equipment and maintenance/repair supplies. Double doors

will provide access to the Gymnasium. This space is located to be accessible from the interior of

the Gymnasium. |

PE Storage |
Storage space to secure and store Gymnasium PE equipment when not in use. |

Locker Room A1l

Locker Room for Varsity Boys scholastic sports teams. One of two Locker Rooms to be used
during practices and games. To also be used by visiting team as Locker Rooms during scholastic
competition.

Locker Room A2

Locker Room for Junior Varsity scholastic sports teams. One of two Locker Rooms to be used
during practices and games. To also be used by visiting team as Locker Rooms during scholastic
competition. :

Restroom 1
Toilet and Shower rooms to support Locker Rooms which connect to both Locker Rooms Al
and A2. Secondary access from other supporting areas of the Gymnasium also provided.

Locker Room B1

Locker Room for Varsity scholastic sports teams. One of two Locker Rooms to be used during
practices and games. To also be used by visiting team as Locker Rooms during scholastic
competition.

Locker Room B2

Locker Room for Junior Varsity scholastic sports teams. One of two Locker Rooms to be used
during practices and games. To also be used by visiting team as Locker Rooms during scholastic
competition.

Restroom 3
Toilet and Shower rooms to support Locker rooms which connect to Locker Rooms B1 and B2.
Secondary access from other supporting areas of the Gymnasium also provided.

Restroom 2
Unisex toilet area adjacent to locker rooms. Grouped together with Boys and Girls Locker
Rooms.
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Restroom 4
Unisex locker room, toilet, and shower area located adjacent to Locker Rooms.

Training Room

Athletic training room to allow athletic trainers to evaluate students who may have suffered an
injury or have general questions about sports medicine. The Training Room is equipped with an
office (with the ability to view the entire Training Room), (3) training tables, filing cabinets,
refrigerator, first aid supplies, an ice machine and whirlpool.

Weightlifting Room

Room to support weightlifting and other resistance methods to improve athletic performance
and reduce the risk of injury. Weight Room to be equipped with mirrored walls, ceiling fans and
appropriate weightlifting equipment and mats.

Team Equipment Storage Room
Space to store team equipment, including uniforms and team equipment.

Laundry Room
Space located within the Training Room for laundry activities for game and practice rooms. To

house large residential grade washers and dryers.

Athletic Director Office
Private office for the school’s Athletic Director.

Utility Spaces
Communication Rooms, Electrical Rooms, Janitor Rooms, and Mechanical spaces to support the

Gymnasium facility.

Storage
Space to store Volleyball, Basketball and various Athletic equipment.

New Parking Areas

Two newly improved parking areas will be provided on campus in addition to the existing parking
areas located along Tsuchiya Road between the main campus and the existing athletic complex
and baseball field. The new parking areas will include a minimum of one tree for every ten (10)
parking spaces as well as screening with hedges in the areas fronting the roadways.

The first new parking lot consists of 20 stalls including two (2) handicap stalls and will have direct
vehicular access to Ola Road. The parking area is situated on the eastern side of the campus,
toward the end of Ola Road, approximately 90 feet northeast of the new gymnasium and adjacent
to Building T (Classrooms) and Building B (Music Building). The proposed site is a vacant grassed
lawn area with two trees. The trees will be removed to accommodate the new parking lot.

The second parking lot consists of 78 stalls including three (3) handicap stalls. The parking area will

be located on the western side of the campus, just north of the Waimea Neighborhood Center and

the existing gymnasium, situated approximately 150 yards west of the new gymnasium. The
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VI.

VII.

northern boundary of the parking area will run adjacent to Tsuchiya Road and the western
boundary of the parking area will run adjacent to Makeke Road. The parking lot will have direct
vehicular access to Tsuchiya Road and Makeke Road to reduce the congestion within the parking
lot. The new parking area will be an expansion to the existing parking lot located near Building R
(General Classroom) and the existing parking lot located on the northern side of the Waimea
Neighborhood Center, connecting the two one large parking area. To accommodate the new
parking area, the existing parking lots will be demolished as well as removing a large tree located
at the corner of the Tsuchiya Road/Makeke Road intersection. In addition, small trees located
between the two parking lots will be removed as well as the removal of two storage containers,
boulders, a bench, and a planter. It should be noted that the large Banyan Tree fronting the
neighborhood center and the large mango tree situated between the neighborhood center and
the existing gymnasium is not part of the demolition plan and will remain in place.

New Sidewalks

A new sidewalk will be constructed around the perimeter of the new gymnasium providing a
concrete pathway to the stairs leading down to Tsuchiya Road from the front lawn as well
providing a concrete pathway to the stairs leading to the upper campus. A new sidewalk will also
be constructed that provides a concrete pathway to Ola Road from the gymnasium. The new
sidewalks will be ADA accessible and will connect to the existing walkways to the new gymnasium.

Existing Gymnasium

As represented, the disposition of the existing gymnasium has not yet been determined and it is
outside the proposed scope of work for the new gymnasium.

(For more information, please refer to the Construction Drawings attached as Exhibit ‘A’ and the
Final Environmental Assessment attached as Exhibit ‘B’)

APPLICANT’S REASONS/JUSTIFICATION
Please refer to the application.

ADDITIONAL FINDINGS

1. Surroundings Neighborhood

The surrounding neighborhood to the north and west of the high school is within the County
Residential (R-4) zoning district and within the State Land Use Urban District. The
neighborhood is developed with single-family residences with the exception of the Kauai Care
Center long-term care facility located along Waimea Canyon Drive. The Waimea United
Church of Christ is situated immediately adjacent to the western side of the campus, north of
Tsuchiya Road. The church is within the County Residential (R-1) and Special Treatment Public
(ST-P) zoning districts.
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Located Southeast of the project site and south of the existing gymnasium is the Historic
Waimea Theater situated along Kaumuali‘i Highway. The theater is within the County General
Commercial (C-G) zoning district.

Located to East of the project site are the Easter Seals building, the First Marshallese United
Church of Christ, and the Waimea Church of Christ Educational Center. These establishments

are within the County Residential (R-1) and Special Treatment Public (ST-P) zoning districts.

2. CZO Development Standards

A. The proposed development is subject to the standards prescribed in Sections 8-4.3 and
8-4.5 of the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (CZ0). The following standards are
considered:

1) Section 8-4.3(c) entitled “Setback requirements” specifies:

“(c) Minimum distance between structures. Minimum distance between structures
shall be ten (10) feet.”

= The new gymnasium meets the 10-foot building to building setback standard
specified in the CZO. The closest building to the proposed gymnasium is Building
B (Music Building) which is 15 feet away.

2) Section 8-4.5 entitled “Standards of Development Applicable to All Residential
Development” specifies:

“(b) Building Height.

(1) No single family detached or single family attached dwelling, or accessory
structure shall be more than two (2) stories above and one (1) story below from
the finished grade at the main entry, over twenty (20) feet measured from the
finished grade at the main entry to the highest exterior wall plate line, and over
thirty (30) feet to the highest point of the roof measured at each point along the
building from the finished grade at the main entry. The finished grade at the
main entry shall not be elevated more than a maximum of four (4) feet from the
existing grade.”

= The overall height of the new gymnasium is 44 feet which exceeds the height
limit of 30 feet in the County Residential zoning district. As such, the
proposed development requires a Variance Permit.

3. Use Permit

a. Pursuant to Article 11 of the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (CZO), Chapter 8 of the
Kauai County Code (1987), all uses, structures, or development shall require a Use Permit
for parcels with the County Zoning designation of Special Treatment-Public (ST-P). The Use
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Permit procedure is to assure the proper integration into the community of uses which
may be suitable only in specific locations of a district, or only under certain conditions, or
only if the uses are designed, arranged or conducted in a particular manner, and to
prohibit the uses if proper integration cannot be assured. Section 8-3.2 of the CZO
specifies a Use Permit may be granted only if the Planning Commission finds that the use
meets the following criteria:

1) The use must be a compatible use;

2) The use must not be detrimental to persons or property in the area;

3) The use must not cause substantial environmental consequences; and

4) The use must not be inconsistent with the intent of the Comprehensive Zoning
Ordinance (CZ0O) and General Plan.

Vill. AGENCY COMMENTS

Comments from applicable government agencies are being sought and are expected at the time
of the public hearing scheduled on AUGUST 8, 2023. At the present time, the department has
only received comments from the State Health Department (attached as Exhibit ‘C’) and has not
received comments from other reviewing agencies that includes the COK Public Works ~
Engineering Division (DPW), COK Water (DOW), COK Fire (KFD) and the State Historic
Preservation Division. However, comments are being anticipated and will be presented at the
public hearing.

IX. PRELIMINARY EVALUATION
In evaluating the Appliéant’s request for a Use Permit, Variance Permit and Class IV Zoning Permit
for a construction of a gymnasium with associated site improvements on the Waimea High school

campus, the following items are being considered:

1. HRS Chapter 343 (Environmental Impact Statement)

In accordance with the environmental assessment requirements pursuant to Chapter 343 of
the Hawai‘i Revised Statutes (HRS), and Chapter 11-200 of the Hawai‘i Administrative Rules
(HAR), the Final Environmental Assessment (EA)/Finding No Significant Impact (FONSI) was
issued on March 9, 2023.

2. General Plan Policies

A. Section 1.4 of the Kauai General Plan (2018)

o Nurture our Keiki. The project supports the policy by providing an investment that
promotes an opportunity for physical education and other recreational activities
which is vital to Kauai’s youth and future.

B. Section 3.0 of the Kauai General Plan (2018)

o Shared Spaces: The project supports this policy by providing new areas for
community activities for Keiki and Kupuna.
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o Opportunity and Health for All: The project supports this policy by providing a place
for physical and recreational activities to increase overall healthier communities.
3. Variance

The request is to be evaluated pursuant to Section 8-3.3(b) of the Kaua’i County Code (KCC),
1987, as amended, relating to the standards of issuance for a Variance Permit (as noted
below):

a. Section 8-3.3 of the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (CZO), KCC (1987), states
that variances from the terms of this Chapter shall be granted only if it is found
that because of special circumstances applicable to the property, including size,
shape, topography, location or surroundings, the strict application of the
regulations deprives the property of privileges enjoyed by other property in the
vicinity and within the same District, and the applicant shows that he or she
cannot make a reasonable use of the property if the regulations are applied.
Where these conditions are found, the Variance permitted shall be the minimum
departure from existing regulations necessary to avoid the deprivation of
privileges enjoyed by other property and to facilitate a reasonable use, and
which will not create significant probabilities of harm to property and
improvements in the neighborhood or of substantial harmful environmental
consequences. Financial hardship to the applicant is not a permissible basis for
the granting of a Variance. In no case may a Variance be granted that will provide
the applicant with any special privileges not enjoyed by other properties in the
vicinity. The Planning Commission shall indicate the particular evidences that
support the granting of the Variance.

In evaluating the Applicant’s request, there are special circumstances relating to
the subject property that qualifies for a variance and they are noted as follows:

1) Because of special circumstances applicable to the property, the strict
application of the regulations deprives the property of privileges by other
properties in the vicinity and the applicant shows that they cannot make a
reasonable use of the property if the regulation is applied:

The existing gymnasium was constructed in 1948 and has served the
community for numerous athletic events and school functions; however,
the existing gymnasium is in poor condition and does not meet the
standards of the National Federation of State High School Associations
(NFSHSA) and is not suitable for interscholastic competition. As such, a new
gymnasium is being proposed and the exceedance of the residential height
limit of 30-feet is required to meet the functional requirements of
constructing a multi-functional gymnasium. The new gymnasium will be a
fully compliant athletic facility on par with other state schools.
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2)

3)

Granting the variance shall be the minimum departure from existing
regulations necessary to avoid the deprivation of privileges enjoyed by
other property and to facilitate a reasonable use:

The newly proposed gymnasium at its highest point will be approximately
44’-0”, which is 14 feet above the height limit set forth by the
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance for Residential Zoning (R-1). The
proposed gymnasium would be comparable to the height of the existing
gymnasium, and it is necessary to accommodate all the various functions
that would occur in this facility. Furthermore, the secondary function of
the gym is to serve as a hurricane shelter. Therefore, the proposed
structure would constitute a reasonable use within the subject parcel.

It will not create significant probabilities of harm to property and
improvements in the neighborhood or of substantial harmful environment
consequences. An applicant must demonstrate that the variance request
would not adversely impact the surrounding neighborhood:

A Final EA/FONSI was issued on March 9, 2022, that demonstrates that
there will be no significant impacts associated with the proposed project.
Additionally, Waimea High School has been a centerpiece of the community
and the new gymnasium is expected to be an important gathering place for
the community that will likely be visited by residents of all ages.

4. Use Permit

The proposed request is to be evaluated pursuant to Section 8-3.2 of the Kaua‘i County
Code (KCC), 1987, as amended, relating to the standards of issuance for a Use Permit.

a. A Use Permit may be granted only if the Planning Commission finds that the
establishment, maintenance, or operation of the construction, development, activity,

oru

se in particular case is a compatible use and is not detrimental to health, safety,

peace, morals, comfort, and general welfare of persons residing or working the
neighborhood of the proposed use, or detrimental or injurious to property and

imp
will

rovements in the neighborhood or to the general welfare of the community, and
not cause any substantial harmful environmental consequences on the land of the

applicant or on other lands or waters, and will not be inconsistent with the intent of

this

1)
2)
3)
4)

Chapter and the General Plan.

The use must be a compatible use;

The use must not be detrimental to the persons or property in the area;

The use must not cause substantial environmental consequences; and

The use must not be inconsistent with the intent of the Comprehensive Zoning

Ordinance (CZ0) and General Plan.
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1)

2)

3)

4)

Compatibility - The proposed new gymnasium is consistent with other facilities
located on the Waimea High School campus in that it supports the school’s
curriculum and programming. WHS is located within the center of Waimea’s
mixed uses and will be integrated with the surrounding commercial, educational,
institutional, and residential properties. Furthermore, the location, size, and
design of the proposed project will not create unusual noise, traffic, or other
conditions that may be detrimental or incompatible to the surrounding area.

Detrimental to Person or Property in the Area — The proposed uses that will be
conducted in the new gymnasium are comparable to the uses that have occurred
in the existing gymnasium which have been taking place adjacent to residential
properties for over 50 years. As such, the proposal will not create any new uses in
the community, therefore, the development will not detrimentally affect any
persons or property within the surrounding area.

Environmental Consequences —~ Waimea High School campus has been in
operation at the same location for more than 100 years. As a result, it is very
unlikely that the proposal will affect any mammalian or avian species, nor will any
botanical resources be endangered.

CZ0 & General Plan - The proposed Development is consistent with the West
Kaua‘i Community Plan, 2018 General Plan and CZO development Standards.

5. Project Considerations/Development Standards

a. Development Standards — As proposed, the Development should have no significant
impact on the surrounding environment since it is compatible with other uses in the
area and the surrounding neighborhood. Also, the project complies with the policies
of the Special Treatment (ST) zoning district, per CZO Section 8-11.1 in that:

1) The proposed development will have locational characteristics that have
significance or value to the general public;

2) The proposed development will preserve, maintain and contribute to the
enhancements of those characteristics which are of particular significance or
value to the general public.

b. With the exception of the building height, the project complies with the setback
requirements and development standards prescribed in Sections 8-4.3 and 8-4.5 of
the CZO.

X. PRELIMINARY CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing findings and evaluation, it is concluded that through proper mitigative
measures and compliance efforts, the proposed development can be considered, and it
should not have significant adverse impacts to the environment or the surrounding
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neighborhood. The proposal is generally in compliance with the criteria outlined for the
granting of a Variance Permit, Use Permit, and Class IV Zoning Permit.

The Applicant should institute the “Best Management Practices” to ensure that the operation
of this facility does not generate impacts that may affect the health, safety, and welfare of
those in the surrounding area of the proposal.

Xi. PRELMINARY RECOMMENDATION

Based on the foregoing evaluation and conclusion, it is hereby recommended Class IV Zoning
Permit Z-1V-2023-12, Use Permit U-2023-9 and Variance Permit V-2023-4 be APPROVED subject to
the following requirements:

1. The proposed facility shall be constructed as represented. Any changes to said
structures and/or facilities shall be reviewed by the Planning Department to
determine whether Planning Commission review and approval is warranted.

2. The Applicant shall develop and utilize Best Management Practices (B.M.P’s)
during all phases of development in order to minimize erosion, dust, and
sedimentation impacts of the project to abutting properties

3. Inorder to minimize adverse impacts on the Federally Listed Threatened Species,
Newell’s Shearwater and other seabirds, if external lighting is to be used in
connection with the proposed project, all external lighting shall be only of the
following types: downward-facing, shielded lights. Spotlights aimed upward or
spotlighting of structures shall be prohibited.

4. The Applicant should resolve and comply with all agency requirements as
recommended in the permit application review, including but not limited to the
County DPW-Engineering Division, County Fire Department, County Department of
Water, and regulations involving environmental concerns as administered by the
State Department of Health.

5. The Applicant is advised the should any archaeological or historical resources be
discovered during ground disturbing/construction work, all work in the area of
the archaeological/historical findings shall immediately cease and the Applicant
shall contact the State Department of Land and Natural Resources, Historic
Preservation Division and the Planning Department to determine mitigation
measures.

6. The Planning Commission reserves the right to revise, add, or delete conditions
of approval in order to address or mitigate unforeseen impacts the project may,
create, or to revoke the permits through the proper procedures should
conditions of approval not be complied with or be violated.
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7. The Applicant is advised that additional government agency conditions may be
imposed. It shall be the Applicant’s responsibility to resolve those conditions
with the respective agencies.

The Planning Commission is further advised that this report does not represent the Planning
Department’s final recommendation in view of the forthcoming public hearing process scheduled
for August 8, 2023, whereby the entire record should be considered prior to decision making. The
entire record should include but not be limited to:

a. Pending government agency comments;
b. Testimony from the general public and interested others; and
c. The Applicant’s response to staff’s report and recommendation as provided herein.

A Sk

ENNETH A. ESTES
Planner

Approved & Recommended to Commission:

= 7/ I
Z KA'AINA siHULL
Director of Planning

By

Date:q;/?/% ’/ 107/’5
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Exhibits

Exhibit ‘A’ Construction Drawings
Exhibit ‘B’ Final Environmental Assessment
Exhibit ‘/C’ Agency Comments
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KEITH T. HAYASHI

JOSH GREEN, M.D.
SUPERINTENDENT

GOVERNOR

STATE OF HAWAT'I
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
KA ‘OIHANA HO'ONA'AUAO
P.0. BOX 2360
HONOLULU, HAWAI'I 96804

OFFICE OF FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS
March 9, 2022

TO: Mary Alice Evans
Director, Office of Planning and Sustainable Development

Environmental Review Program

FROM: Edward S, Ige Z2rmt{ligc

Facilities Director, Facilities Development Branch

SUBJECT: Environmental Assessment and Finding of No Significant Impact
Waimea High School — Gymnasium Athletic Facilities
Waimea, Kauai, Hawaii
Tax Map Key: (4) 1-6-010: 098

The Hawaii State Department of Education has reviewed the Environmental Assessment for the
Waimea High School Athletic Facilities and comments received during the 30-day comment period
and has issued a Finding of No Significant Impact (FEA-FONSI) determination. Please publish this
determination in the next edition of the Environmental Notice.

Attached is a completed OEQC Publication Form, one electronic copy in Adobe Acrobat PDF file
format of the same, and an electronic copy of the publication form in MS Word. Simultaneous with
this letter, we have submitted the summary of the action in a text file by electronic mail to your
office.

Should you have any questions, please contact Richard Bass, Project Coordinator of the Facilities
Development Branch, Project Management Section, at (808) 784-5135 or via email at
rbass@bowerandkubota.com or contact our authorized agent of this project, Taeyong Kim, of
Environmental Communications, Inc. at (808) 528-4661.

ESl:rb
c: Facilities Development Branch

Kendall Ellingwood, Design Partners, Inc
Kristi Sumida, Design Partners, Inc.

AN AFFIRMATIVE ACTION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER




From: webm r@hawaii.gov

To: DBEDT OPSD Environmental Review Program
Subject: New online submission for The Environmental Notice
Date: Friday, March 10, 2023 11:52:01 AM

Action Name

Waimea High School Gymnasium Complex
Type of Document/Determination

Final environmental assessment and finding of no significant impact (FEA-FONSI)
HRS §343-5(a) Trigger(s)

e (1) Propose the use of state or county lands or the use of state or county funds

Judicial district
Waimea, Kaua'i
Tax Map Key(s) (TMK(s))
(4)1-6-010: 004
Action type
Agency
Other required permits and approvals
Use Permit, Class IV Zoning Permit, Grubbing, Grading and Building Permits
Proposing/determining agency
State of Hawaii Department of Education
Agency contact name
Richard Bass
Agency contact email (for info about the action)
rba wersandkubot. m
Email address or URL for receiving comments
rbass@bowersandkubota.com
Agency contact phone
(808) 831-6731
Agency address

8633 Waialae Ave., Building B, Room 201
Honolulu, HI 96816
United States

Map It
Was this submittal prepared by a consultant?

Yes



Consultant
Environmental Communications, Inc.
Consultant contact name
Taeyong Kim
Consultant contact email
kim@environcom,com
Consultant contact phone
(808) 528-4661
Consultant address

P.O. Box 236097
Honolulu, HI 96823
United States

Map It

Action summary

The proposed action consists of a replacement for the original gymnasium which has been in operation
since 1948. The existing gymnasium is in poor condition and does not meet the National Federation of
State High School Associations (NFSHSA) and is not suitable for interscholastic competition. The
replacement structure consists of the construction of a 19,374 square foot gymnasium complex. The
single story structure will include the main gym floor, wrestling room, multi-purpose team room,
concession stand, lobby and ticket booth, office space, restrooms, locker rooms, support and utility
spaces and general circulation.

Appurtenant to the complex are two separate parking areas. A lot consisting of 78 regular and handicap
parking stalls will be accessed by Tsuchiya Road and Makeke Road on the western portion of the
campus. A second small parking lot for 20 vehicles will be located on the eastern corner of the campus.

Reasons supporting determination

Reasons supporting the anticipated Finding of No Significant Impact are discussed in Section IV of the
Final Environmental Assessment. The project is required to meet compliance with NFSHSA requirements
for interscholastic competition.

Attached documents (signed agency letter & EA/EIS)

e WaimeaGymFEAv1-consolidated,pdf
EA-FONSI|-Wai -HS-Gym-Athletic-SIGNED

Shapefile

e The location map for this Final EA is the same as the location map for the associated Draft EA.

Action location map

e Waimea-H.S.-Project-Location.kml.zip

Authorized individual
Taeyong Kim

Authorization



FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

WAIMEA HIGH SCHOOL

GYMNASIUM COMPLEX
DOE ProJECT No. Q43201-18
TMK (4) 1-6-010: 004

9707 TSUCHIYA RoAD

WAIMEA, KAUAI, HAWAII

THIS DOCUMENT IS PREPARED PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 343, HAWAII REVISED STATUTES

APPROVING AGENCY:
STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

MARCH 2023



Waimea High School Gymnasium Complex
Waimea High School

DOE PROJECT No. Q43201-18

Waimea, Island of Kauai, Hawaii

Tax Map Keys: (4) 1-6-010: 004 and (4) 1-6-009: 023

Final Draft Environmental Assessment

Prepared by the Department of Education pursuant to Chapter 343, Hawaii
Revised Statutes (HRS)

Notice of availability of this document will be made in the Environmental Notice
published by the Environmental Review Program.

For additional information concerning this document please contact:

Mr. Taeyong Kim

Environmental Communications, Inc.
P.O. Box 236097

Honolulu, HI 96823

Email: tkim@envirocom.com

A copy of any comments or requests should be made to:

Richard Bass, DOE Project Coordinator
HIDOE FDB Project Management

3633 Waialae Avenue, Building B, Room 201
Honolulu, HI 96816

Email: rbass@bowersandkubota.com

Final Environmental Assessment 1 Waimea High School Gymnasium
Waimea, Kauai, Hawaii
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l PROJECT SUMMARY

PROPOSING AGENCY:

PROJECT NAME:

PROJECT LOCATION:

TAX MAP KEY/ OWNERSHIP:

AREA:
ZONING:

STATE LAND USE:

CURRENT LAND USE:

PROJECT SCOPE:

Final Environmental Assessment

Department of Education
State of Hawaii

3633 Waialae Avenue
Honolulu, Hawaii 96816

Waimea High School Gymnasium

The project site is located within the Waimea
High School campus on an open area located
southwest of Building U. The street address of
the school is 9707 Tsuchiya Road, Waimea,
Kauai, Hawaii 96796

State of Hawaii :

(4) 1-6-010: 004 por. (gymnasium and parking)
County of Kauai

(4) 1-6-009:023 por. (parking)

8.08 acres / 352,226 square feet and
3.027 acres / 131,856 square feet

R-1/ ST-P Special Treatment District - Public
Facilities '

Urban District

The project site consists of vacant, maintained
land serving as a central green space on the
Waimea High School Campus. The site is open
except for a single, large monkey pod tree. The
area is not actively used but does provide an
open space and visual amenity for the campus.
The school has served as the area public high
school since 1935.

The proposed action consists of a replacement
for the original gymnasium which has been in
operation since 1948. The existing gymnasium
is in poor condition and does not meet the
National Federation of State High School
Associations (NFSHSA) and is not suitable for
interscholastic competition. The replacement
structure consists of the construction of a

5 Waimea High School Gymnasium
Waimea, Kauai, Hawaii



PURPOSE AND NEED:

PROJECT COST/PHASING

PERMITS AND APPROVALS

Final Environmental Assessment

19,374 square foot gymnasium complex. The
single story structure will include the main gym
floor, wrestling room, multi-purpose team room,
concession stand, lobby and ticket booth, office
space, restrooms, locker rooms, support and
utility spaces and general circulation.

Appurtenant to the complex are two separate
parking areas. A lot consisting of 78 regular and
handicap parking stalls will be accessed by
Tsuchiya Road and Makeke Road on the
western portion of the campus. A second small
parking lot for 20 vehicles will be located on the
eastern corner of the campus.

The existing Waimea High School Gym was
constructed in 1935 and is near the end of its
useful life. It is does not meet current athletic
facility standards therefore a replacement
facility that meets the programmatic
requirements and standards is planned for
construction on campus. This new facility will be
in full compliance with NSFHSA standards and
Title IX requirements. '

The estimated construction cost for the
gymnasium building is  approximately
$22,500,000.00.

The proposed project is intended to be
conducted in a single continuous phase with a
projected commencement date of the Summer
of 2023 and a completion date in the Spring of
2025. The improvements should be completed
in approximately 21 months.

State of Hawaii

» Department of Health Community Noise
Permit
« National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System Permit (NPDES)

6 Waimea High School Gymnasium
Waimea, Kauai, Hawaii




Final Environmental Assessment

County of Kauai

* Use Permit

* Class IV Zoning Permit
* Grubbing Permit

» Grading Permit

* Building Permit

7 Waimea High School Gymnasium
Waimea, Kauai, Hawaii




Final Environmental Assessment 9

PROPOSED PROJECT AND STATEMENT OF OBJECTIVES

Project Location

The proposed gymnasium project will be located on a vacant open area
located within the campus of the Waimea High School in the central portion
of Waimea, Kauai, Hawaii. The area is vacant, grassed and maintained and
primarily serves as open space and a visual amenity. The proposed location
contains a large monkeypod tree which will have to be removed to
accommodate the gymnasium structure. The Waimea High School campus
is located in the central portion of Waimea town and notable landmarks near
the project site include Waimea State Pier located to the south, and
Hapokele Park and Kauai Veterans Memorial Hospital to the west and

- northwest. The gymnasium and small parking lot project site is identified as

Tax Map Key: (4) 1-6-010: 004 with a street address of 9707 Tsuchiya
Road. The site is owned by the State of Hawaii. The larger parking lot
located near the exiting gymnasium is located on County of Kauai owned
Tax Map Key: (4) 1-6-009: 023. See Figure 1.

While not located on the same parcel, uses and facilities associated with
the Waimea High School complex include the Waimea River Park, Niihau
High and Elementary School, Waimea Swimming Pool and the existing
gymnasium which is considered part of the High School complex.
Additionally, tennis courts are located across Tsuchiya Road as well as the
Captain Cook Memorial Park baseball field.

The surrounding neighborhood located to the west is characterized as a mix
of commercial, institutional and residential areas. The Waimea United
Church of Christ is a significant adjacent neighbor as the public facilities
listed above wrap around the church site. Areas north of the project site are
primarily in single-family residential use. Located to the east of the project
site are the Easter Seals building, the First Marshallese United Church of
Christ, and Waimea United Church of Christ Educational Center. See Figure
2.

Project Description

The proposed project consists of the construction of an approximately
23,576 square foot gymnasium complex to serve the students of the
Waimea High School. As previously described, the existing gymnasium
building does not conform with current athletic facilities standards and does
not support current athletic programs putting students in a disadvantaged
position. Title IX gender equity regulations will be met with the new facility
and the new parking areas will also support the use of the gymnasium for
competitive events that will be held within the facility. The proposed facility
will be comparable to other Department of Education gymnasium facilities

Waimea High School Gymnasium
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providing the students of the Waimea High School the opportunity to use
current standard facilities and support uses.

The new facility will also be designated for enhanced hurricane protection
in accordance with Section 430 “State- and County-Owned Public High
Occupancy Buildings — Design Criteria for Enhanced Hurricane Protection
Areas” of the Hawaii State Building Code for occupancy during hurricanes
of up to Saffir Simpson Category 3. Applicable areas withing the facility
include the Main Gymnasium, Wrestling/ Cheer Room, Training Room,
Toilet Rooms, and Locker Rooms (with showers).

The new facility will include the following components.
Program Components

Main Gymnasium

This space is used for team activities and scholastic sports competitions
such as basketball and volleyball. Consists of one regulation Basketball
(94-feet x 50-feet) / Volleyball court with two (2) practice cross courts, six
(6) ceiling mounted retractable basketball goals, scoreboards and
retractable wall-mounted bleachers on both sides of the Main Gymnasium
with a seating capacity of 840 (includes 8 accessible seats). In addition, a
motorized vertical-acting divider curtain with manual override will be
provided between practice courts.

Wrestling Room / Cheer Room
Ancillary Gym to be used for Wresting and Cheerleading. Sized to
accommodate one full size wrestling mat (42-feet x 42-feet).

Lobby
Primary entry space into the Gymnasium for patrons, visitors, and

spectators, with direct connection to the Main Gymnasium and
Concession. The primary function of the Lobby is to be a control
checkpoint for the facility.

Concession Booth

Room to support concession activities, which consist of selling snacks and
drinks during events. Provided with countertop space, cabinets, a sink,
refrigerator, freezer, ice machine and tables.

Men's and Women's Toilet Rooms

Toilet room for use by Gymnasium patrons, visitors, spectators and others
from the school’s Athletic Complex. Provided with dual entrances and
controls for dual use (Gymnasium and Athletic Complex).

General (Gymnasium) Storage
This area is sized to accommodate the storage of equipment and supplies
such as basketballs, volleyball standards/gear, other equipment and

Final Environmental Assessment 10 Waimea High School Gymnasium
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maintenance/repair supplies. Double doors will provide access to the
Gymnasium. This space should be located to be accessible from the
interior of the Gymnasium.

PE Storage
Storage space to secure and store Gymnasium PE equipment when not in

use.

Locker Room A1

Locker Room for Varsity Boys scholastic sports teams. One of two Locker
Rooms to be used during practices and games. To also be used by
visiting team as Locker Rooms during scholastic competition.

Locker Room A2

Locker Room for Junior Varsity scholastic sports teams. One of two
Locker Rooms to be used during practices and games. To also be used by
visiting team as Locker Rooms during scholastic competition.

Restroom 1

Toilet and Shower rooms to support Locker Rooms which connect to both
Locker Rooms A1 and A2. Secondary access from other supporting areas
of the Gymnasium also provided.

Locker Room B1

Locker Room for Varsity scholastic sports teams. One of two Locker
Rooms to be used during practices and games. To also be used by
visiting team as Locker Rooms during scholastic competition.

Locker Room B2

Locker Room for Junior Varsity scholastic sports teams. One of two
Locker Rooms to be used during practices and games. To also be used by
visiting team as Locker Rooms during scholastic competition.

Restroom 3

Toilet and Shower rooms to support Locker rooms which connect to
Locker Rooms B1 and B2. Secondary access from other supporting areas
of the Gymnasium also provided.

Restroom 2
Unisex toilet area adjacent to locker rooms. Grouped together with Boys

and Girls Locker Rooms.

Restroom 4

Unisex locker room, toilet, and shower area located adjacent to Locker
Rooms.

Training Room

Final Environmental Assessment 11 Waimea High School Gymnasium
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Athletic training room to allow athletic trainers to evaluate students who
may have suffered an injury or have general questions about sports
medicine. The Training Room is equipped with an office (with the ability to
view the entire Training Room), (3) training tables, filing cabinets,
refrigerator, first aid supplies, an ice machine and whirlpool.

Weightlifting Room

Room to support weightlifting and other resistance methods to improve
athletic performance and reduce the risk of injury. Weight Room to be
equipped with mirrored walls, ceiling fans and appropriate weightlifting
equipment and mats.

Team Equipment Storage Room
Space to store team equipment, including uniforms and team equipment.

Laundry Room
Space located within the Training Room for laundry activities for game and
practice rooms. To house large residential grade washers and dryers.

Athletic Director Office
Private office for the school's Athletic Director.

Utility Spaces
Communication Rooms, Electrical Rooms, Janitor Rooms, and

Mechanical spaces to support the Gymnasium facility.

Storage
Space to store Volleyball, Basketball and various Athletic equipment.

Building Construction

The gymnasium building will be constructed with reinforced CMU in
compliance with enhanced hurricane protection requirements. The building
will have a standing seam metal roof. Exterior windows will use factory
finished aluminum fixed frames. Windows will meet hurricane and
windborne debris requirements.

The foundation of the building will use conventional spread footings.
Retaining walls required around the perimeter of the structure will be
constructed of CMU.

Interior spaces for the Training Room, Weight Room, Athletic Director’s
Office, and Concession spaces will be air conditioned for cooling. Non-air
conditioned spaces will be provided with ceiling fans or exhaust systems for
climate control.
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Water, sewer and electrical service utility infrastructure will be connected to
the new building. Existing utility services are on campus and capacity to
accommodate the new gymnasium is available.

New Parking Areas

Two improved parking areas will be provided on the campus. The first is a
parking located on the eastern side of the site with direct access to Ola
Road. This 20 stall lot will include 2 handicap stalls and will be located east
of Buildings T and B.

The second parking lot will be located northwest of the existing gym building
and will have direct access to Tsuchiya Road and Makeke Road. This 78-
stall lot will include 3 handicap accessible stalls. See Figure 6. '

The floor plan and building elevations are shown in Figures 4, 5 and 6
respectively.

Program Spaces (Net SF)
Main Gym Floor (DE up to 1000) 11,578
Lobby & Display Area 635
Ticket Booth

Concession Booth 248
AD Office 132
AD Restroom & Shower 64
AD Conference Room

PE & Coaches Office

PE Equipment Room 116
Custodial Closet (Public Area) 88
Boys' Locker Facilities

Varsity Locker Room 203
Junior Varsity Locker Room 203
Varsity / JV Toilet Area 501

Varsity / JV Shower Rm.(min 6 stalls inc.ADA)
Girls' Locker Facilities

Varsity Locker Room 203
Junior Varsity Locker Room 203
Varsity / JV Toilet Area 501

Varsity / JV Shower Rm.(min 6 stalls inc.ADA)
Common Facilities

Gender Neutral (Restrm/Lkr/Shower) Rm #1 173
Gender Neutral (Restrm/Lkr/Shower) Rm #2 173
First-Aid Room
Laundry Room 193
Custodial Closet (Locker Area)
Wrestling/Cheer Room 2,076
Final Environmental Assessment 13 Waimea High School Gymnasium

Waimea, Kauai, Hawaii




Trainer's Room 905
Weight Training Room 912
General Storage 267
Total Program Area of Gymnasium 19,374
Non-Program Spaces
Telecommunications Room 109
Men's Toilet (Public) 318
Women's Toilet (Public) 335
Electrical Room ' 151
Mechanical Room 599
IDF Room )
Corridor #1 300
Hall #1 ‘ 639
Corridor #2 264
Total Non-Program Area of Gymnasium 2,715
Total Net SF Area (Program + Non Program
Spaces) . 22,089
Total Gross SF Area of Building 23,576
Landscaping

The new gymnasium building will require the removal of existing trees on
the project site. This includes a large monkey pod tree in the location of the
new Gymnasium building, and a few other smaller trees located in the
proposed new parking areas. The Monkeypod tree and other trees removed
will be replaced with new 25 gallon size trees of similar type, as well as
additional tree varieties, with the intent of adding a minimum of two new
trees for every tree removed. New plantings will include native Loulu plams,
native Kou trees, Gold trees, and a Monkeypod. New parking lot areas will
include a minimum of one tree for every 10 parking spaces, per the Kauai
County Code. Parking areas will include some screening with hedges in
areas fronting roadways.
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Figure 2: Aerial Location Map
Source: Google Earth
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Figure 7: New Parking Lots Plan

Source: Design Partners Incorporated

C. Infrastructure Assessment

The Basis of Design prepared for the project provided a summary of
infrastructure availability and capacities. The following assessment can be
found in its entirety in Appendix A.

Water System

The school is serviced by an existing 3-inch domestic water meter. The new
gymnasium will connect to an existing 2-inch domestic water line located
within the school campus. The 2-inch water line currently runs directly under
the gymnasium site and services an existing music building and irrigation
system. The water line will be relocated around the proposed gymnasium and
the new service for the gymnasium will be connected to this line. A new fire
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line connection will be provided for the project and connect to an 8”
Department of Water Line on Ola Road, near the intersection of Tsuchiya.
The new fire line will provide a connection for the gymnasium'’s fire sprinkler
system and a new fire hydrant. The new fire hydrant will be located on the
south side of the building adjacent to Tsuchiya Road.

Sanitary Sewer System

The project will connect to an existing 6-inch sewer line near the front entrance of the
new gymnasium. A portion of the existing sewer line and two abandoned cesspools
are located directly under the proposed gymnasium footprint. The existing sewer line
will be replaced by a new sewer line that will be autside the new building and the
abandoned cesspools will be demolished as needed. The 6-inch sewer line has
sufficient capacity for the new gymnasium.

Grading, Drainage Utilities, and Low Impact Development

The site of the new Waimea High School Gymnasium consists of a grass lawn and
walkways that slope towards Tsuchiya Road. A retaining wall will be installed on the
south side of the gymnasium to level the grade for the gymnasium building pad. The
principles of positive drainage, with minimum slopes, are applied to control the
conditions that direct rainfall away from facilities. New facilities shall accommodate
ADA requirements as well as positive drainage away from the building.

There are no existing drainage systems in the project vicinity. The building roof down
spouts will be collected and conveyed by buried pipe to three underground detention
systems on the east and west sides of the gymnasium. Runoff from the parking lots
will be collected via inlets in the center of parking aisles and stored in underground
detention systems beneath the parking pavement. Out flows from the detention
systems will be conveyed to seepage inlets to allow excess stormwater to be release
from the detention systems.

The storm drainage system will be properly coordinated with surrounding areas to
ensure that runoff does not cause damage to other on-site buildings. All stormwater
management calculations will be in accordance with County of Kaua'i, Department of
Public Works Storm Water Runoff System Manual, dated November 2001.

Temporary and permanent Best Management Practices for erosion and sediment
control will be required, including but not limited to, a dust fence around the
perimeter of the project area and surface runoff control.

Electrical Distribution System

The existing main electrical switchboard “MSB” for the campus is located in
the existing Utility Building, which is located behind the existing Cafeteria
Building ‘F'. A 750 kVA KIUC pad-mounted transformer services the main
switchboard ‘MSB’, which is rated at 800A at 480Y/277V, 39, 4-wire. The
‘MSB’ is integrated with a 400A PV system, power factor correction capacitor,
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and an external transfer switching scheme to accommodate a portable
generator.

While the available demand capacity of the main switchboard ‘MSB’ to
support the new Gymnasium must be confirmed, there is ample physical
space within the enclosure for a new circuit and the switchboard appears to
be in good condition. The manual transfer switch with a provision to connect a
portable generator is provided for the ‘MSB'’ to support certain buildings or
portions of the buildings during a utility service outage event, but the extent of
the emergency generator power coverage is undetermined at this time.

The intent is to provide a new underground electrical distribution from the
‘MSB’ to the new Gymnasium, with an oversized conduit for future electrical
capacity.

Pole-mounted LED lighting will be provided for the new parking lots, identified
as Parking Lots ‘A’ and ‘B’. Power to the pole lights shall be extended from
the new Gymnasium for Parking Lot ‘A’ and from the existing Athletic
Complex for Parking Lot ‘B’.

Telecommunications System

The Main Distribution Frame ‘MDF’ for the campus telecommunications
system is located in the existing Administration Building, where the
demarcations of service providers were established. The fiber optic and
copper cables currently extend from the ‘MDF’ to their respective Intermediate
Distribution Frames ‘IDFs’ in various existing buildings to support the school -
network and telephone services. The existing central distribution equipment
for the CATV and PA/intercom systems are also located in the existing
Administration Building and extend to all the existing buildings via
underground infrastructure.

The existing ‘MDF’ has adequate capacity to support and terminate the new
fiber optic and copper cables in existing equipment racks.

A new 48ST SM FO cable and 25-pr copper cable in 4-inch ducts are
proposed to support the new Gymnasium. In addition, two 2-inch ducts will be
provided between ‘MDF’ and the Comm Room in new Gymnasium for the
CATV and PS systems.

Fire Alarm System

The campus has a single master fire alarm control panel, Simplex, located in
the existing Administration Building. The system connects to the other
buildings via copper wiring in the communications duct system.
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Fire Protection

The campus has an existing fire line that serves the on-site hydrants. The
existing Gymnasium does not have an automatic fire sprinkler system.

D. Project Objective and Need for Action

The proposed gymnasium project was established through a facilities
assessment conducted for the existing Waimea H gh School Gymnasium.
The existing gym was constructed in 1935 and is presently at the end of its
useful life. The facility does not meet current standards based on the
Department of Education’s Facilities and Development Schedule (FADS)
for a high school gymnasium with a student enrollment of approximately 600
students. The site has undergone an extensive aternatives analysis and
the project subject of this Environmental Assessment was determined to be
the most desirable of all alternatives considered.

The subject Environmental Assessment is prepared in conformance with
Chapter 343 Hawaii Revised Statutes, as the project will involve the use of
County funds. The project parcel is owned by the Hawaii Health Care
Systems but the project will be funded by the County of Kauai.

E. Alternatives Considered

Three major alternative sites within the school complex were considered
during the facilities assessment process. Additionally, variations on two of
the alternative sites were considered. The alternative locations are shown
in Figure 8.

The first alternative considered would locate the new gymnasium west of
the existing gymnasium with Tsuchiya Road located along the northern
boundary of the building. This alternative would require the removal of a
large monkeypod tree and would most likely rejuire the relocation of
existing portable buildings. The location could also affect the Waimea
Neighborhood Center operationally due to its close proximity. This location
is also owned by the County of Kauai.

The second alternative location is located in the courtyard area adjacent to
Buildings W, U and B. This central location would also require the removal
of a large monkeypod tree and the removal or relocation of aluminum
bleachers.

The third alternative location would replace the existing tennis courts with
gymnasium. This site is also owned by the County of Kauai.
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After discussion with school administrators, Alternative 2A which keeps all
program areas on a single floor was selected as the most desirable location.
The site is owned by the State of Hawaii, has adecuate area to construct a
single story building and use lands that are not heavily used for other

purposes.

No action is not considered an alternative as the e»:isting gymnasium is not
suitable for continued use nor is it programmatically suitable putting the
Waimea High School students in a disadvantaged athletics position.

Waimea High School Gymnasium
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DESCRIPTION OF ANTICIPATED IMPACTS AND MITIGATION
MEASURES

Overview and Environmental Setting

The Waimea High School Gymnasium was subject of a due diligence
report prepared for the Department of Education Waimea High School in
March of 2021. This report, prepared by Design Partners, Inc. is included
in part in this Environmental Assessment and the initial findings are
provided as follows.

The Waimea High School, is a public high school operated by the Hawai’i
State Department of Education (HIDOE) and located on the island of
Kaua'i, in the town of Waimea. Established in 1881, it began as an
elementary school before becoming a high school in 1935. Serving grades
9 through 12, Waimea High School is the oldest high school on the island
of Kaua'i and considered the westernmost high school in the United
States.

The existing high school campus sits on various parcels. Much of the main
campus buildings are on state- owned land (TMK: 4-1-6-010:004) and with
a few on county-owned land (TMK: 4-1-6-010:010) comprising of 8.08 and
5.18 acres, respectively. The existing Athletic Complex, which includes the
Gymnasium and the Waimea Neighborhood Center, is located on county-
owned land (TMK: 4-1-6- 009:023) comprising of 2.97 acres (Figure 2).
The state-owned parcel is bordered by Haina Road to the north, Makeke
Road to the west and Ola Road to the east. Tsuchiya Road bisects the
state and county parcels with Captain Cooks Memcrial Park located
between the parcels. Waimea High School is also part of the Kaua'i
Interscholastic Federation (KIF) of interscholastic sports.

The existing Gymnasium (Building N) was constructed in 1948 as part of
the original Waimea school campus. Since its initial construction, there
have been numerous renovations to the Gymnasiurn. Some of the more
recent renovations to the existing Boys’ and Girls’ Showers (1997) and
new telescoping bleachers (1998).

The existing gym consists of a main court with regulation high school
basketball / volleyball court, roll-out bleachers and stage. Support facilities
include locker rooms, showers, laundry room, weight room, storage and
toilet facilities for the public. The gymnasium is currently used by the
school’s interscholastic sport teams, which include:

o Fall: Volleyball (Girls), Cheerleading (Girls)
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o Winter: Wrestling (Boys, Girls), Basketball (Boys, Girls) — busiest season
(2-Junior Varsity and 2- Varsity)

o Spring: Volleyball (Boys)

The Gymnasium is also used for school assemblies and other school
gathering activities. The overall condition of the existing Gymnasium is
very poor, as there are numerous building systems that are antiquated,
beyond its service life and should be replaced now. There is visible rusting
and termite damage throughout, with jalousie windows that permit water
infiltration which is especially prevalent during heavy rains. The
gymnasium was not designed to current National Federation of State High
School Associations (NFHS) standards and is not suitable for
interscholastic competition.

The location of the proposed new gymnasium is located in a courtyard
space bounded by Tsuchiya Road and campus Buildings W, U and B.
Across Tsuchiya Road is an existing tennis court complex and the Captain
Cook Memorial Park.

Figure 9: Photo of Project Site Looking Towards Building B
Source: Design Partners, Inc.
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B. Surrounding Uses

The surrounding neighborhood located to the west is characterized as a mix
of commercial, institutional and residential areas. The Waimea United
Church of Christ is a significant adjacent neighbor as the public facilities
listed above wrap around the church site. Areas north of the project site are
primarily in single-family residential use. Located to the east of the project
site are the Easter Seals building, the First Marshallese United Church of
Christ, and Waimea United Church of Christ Educational Center.

C. Environmental Considerations

1. Geological Characteristics

Topography

The project improvement area consists of a site that gently sloping lands
from east to west and from north to south in a mauka to makai orientation.
The project site is devoid of any structures, geographic features, drains,
swales or other variations from the smooth grassed surface. A sanitary
sewer manhole is located on the site. A single large monkeypod tree is
located within this grassed courtyard area and will have to be removed in
favor of the new gymnasium. The sites wayfinding coordinates are
21*57'25"N 159*40'05"W. The project site ranges in elevation from 105-feet
at the entrance of Building B down to 96-feet at Tsuchiya Road. The
proposed gymnasium is expected to have a finished floor elevation 102-
feet.

Climate

According to NOAA, the long term climate data for Lihue represents the
closest recorded long-term climate data for the project site. The daily
average temperature from this recording site is 71 to 80 degrees with an
average annual temperature of 76.2 degrees. The coolest month of the year
is February while the warmest is August. The average annual rainfall is
approximately 40 inches with a wet season from October to April.
Northeasterly tradewinds predominate this area with occasional southerly
“Kona” winds approaching from the south. Air conditions are very good,
particularly due to the site’s eastern location. The project site is outside of
any area subject to rising sea levels.

Soil Conditions

According to the Soil Survey of Islands of Kauai, Oahu, Maui, Molokai, and
Lanai, State of Hawaii by the US Department of Agriculture Soil
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Conservation Service, the project site is located primarily on soils classified
as Makaweli silty clay loam, 0 to 6 percent slopes (MgB). See Figure 9.

This series consists of well-drained soils on uplands on the island of
Kauai. The annual rainfall amounts to 20-35 inches. Soils are used for
irrigated sugarcane, pasture, and homesites. The natural vegetation
consists of kiawe, lantana, fingergrass, klu, koa haole, and piligrass.

MgB is on the tops of broad interfluves in the uplands. Representative
profile the surface layer is dusky-red silty clay loam that has a prismatic
and subangular block structure. The substratum is soft, weather basic
igneous rock. The soil is slightly acid in the surface layer and slightly acid
to neutral in the subsoil.

Permeability is moderate. Runoff is slow, and the erosion hazard is slight.
The available water capacity is about 1.6 inches per foot of soil. In places
roots penetrate to a depth of 5 feet or more.
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Figure10: Soils Map
Source: U.S. Soil Conservation Service
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Air Quality and Noise Environment

The ambient air quality of the project site is typical of the low-density
residential character of the site. No point source pollution sources have
been identified in the general area and typical trade winds ensure that air
quality remains within acceptable standards as recorded by the Department
of Health air quality monitors.

Air quality impacts from the construction and operation of the gymnasium
and appurtenant facilities are expected to be minimal to insignificant.
During the construction period, gasoline or diesel powered heavy
equipment will be required for earthwork and construction of the
improvements. Air quality degradation from the operation of this equipment
will be negligible and temporary. No long-term air impacts will occur as a
result of the project.

The noise environment will be affected during the construction period.
Heavy equipment will be used during site grading and construction. All
activities will continue to adhere to State Department of Health community
noise standards. Upon completion of all construction related activities, no
long-term noise impacts are expected from the facility itself. The installation
of temporary PTAC air conditioning units may be considered for the duration
of construction for classrooms near the construction area. Noise associated
with full gymnasium events is not expected to create any nuisance to
residents since the project is located away from residential areas.

2. Water Resources

Hydrologic Hazards and Resources

According to Panel 1500020258G of the Federal Emergency Management
Agency Flood Insurance Rate Map, the entire project area is located in
Zone X. This is an area determined to be outside of the annual 0.2%
annual chance floodplain (Figure 11). The project is not in a tsunami
evacuation area or a dam evacuation area as shown in Figure 12,

Special Management Area

The project site is not located within the Special Management Area (SMA).
The SMA boundary is located makai of Kaumuali'i Highway (Figure 13).
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FOR MORE INFO, VISIT: http://dInreng.hawaii.gov/dam/
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Disclaimer: The Hawaii Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR) assumes no responsibility arising from
the use, accuracy, ¢ , and of any 0 contained in this report. Viewers/Users are
responsible for verifying the accuracy of the information and agree to indemnify the DLNR, its officers, and employ
ees from any liability which may arise from its use of its data or information

If this map has been identified as 'PRELIMINARY’, please note that it is being provided for informational purposes
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SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs) SUBJECT TO INUNDATION BY
THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - The 1% annual chance flood (100-
year), also know as the base flood, is the flood that has a 1% chance of
being equaled or exceeded in any given year. SFHAs include Zone A, AE,
AH, AO, V, and VE. The Base Flood Elevation (BFE) is the water surface
elevation of the 1% annual chance flood. Mandatory flood insurance
purchase applies in these zones:

Zone A: No BFE determined.

Zone AE: BFE determined.

Zone AH: Flood depths of 1 to 3 feet (usually areas of ponding);
BFE determined.

Zone AO: Flood depths of 1 to 3 feet (usually sheet flow on
sloping terrain); average depths determined.

Zone V: Coastal flood zone with velocity hazard (wave action);
no BFE determined.

Zone VE: Coastal flood zone with velocity hazard (wave action);
BFE determined.

Zone AEF: Floodway areas in Zone AE. The floodway is the
channel of stream plus any adjacent floodplain areas that must
be kept free of encroachment so that the 1% annual chance
flood can be carried without increasing the BFE.

NON-SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA - An area in a low-to-moderate risk
flood zone. No y flood purchase req apply,
but coverage is available in participating communities.

Zone XS (X shaded): Areas of 0.2% annual chance flood; areas of
1% annual chance flood with average depths of less than 1 foot
or with drainage areas less than 1 square mile; and areas
protected by levees from 1% annual chance flood.

Zone X: Areas determined to be outside the 0.2% annual chance
floodplain.

OTHER FLOOD AREAS

Zone D: Unstudied areas where flood hazards are undeter-
mined, but flooding is possible. No mandatory flood insurance
purchase apply, but coverage is available in participating commu-
nities.

Figure 11: Flood Hazard Map

Source: State of Hawaii Department of Land and Natural Resources
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Figure 12: Tsunami Inundation Map

Source: Hawaii Emergency Management Agency

Figure 13: Special Management Area Map

Source: County of Kauai
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Sea Level Rise

According to the Kauai Climate Change and Coastal Hazards assessment
prepared for the County of Kauai, sea level rise due to climate change is 1-
foot by year 2050 and 3l-feet by year 20100. The project site will not be
impacted by sea level change. The project site is located for than 35 feet
above mean sea level. See Figure 14.

Water Quality

The project will not adversely affect water quality however the site will
increase impervious surfaces. A storm drainage will be designed to retain
runoff in a safe area or will convey drainage to areas where minimal impacts
will occur. The project site is not located over an aquifer recharge area.

£
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Figure 14: Sea Level Rise Exposure Area
Source: Hawaii Sea Level Rise Viewer

During the construction phase, best management practices will be used to
keep the site clean and prevent any adverse discharges from affecting
adjacent properties. These measures will include an erosion plan consisting
of construction access pads and filters along the project perimeter.

Waimea High School Gymnasium
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3. Archaeological, Cultural, Botanical and Faunal Resources

Archaeological and Historic Resources

Waimea High School is not listed on the Hawai'i Register of Historic
Places or listed on the National Register of Historic Places. Two
classroom buildings (TMK: 1-6-010:004; owned by the State of Hawai'i),
however, were placed on the Hawai'i Register of Historic Places in August
1991. The two buildings (Site No. 50-30-05-9391) are described thusly:

“The 1936 Homemaking Building is the only extant school building on
Kaua’i with this type of board and batten wall and the Classroom Building
(which is currently being used as a dressing room) is a four-room building
with a gable roof and insert lanai along the entire length of the building.
These two buildings retain significant physical and associative integrity,
despite the modern setting of the other school buildings...”

The Gymnasium was constructed in 1948 and is over 50 years old and
therefore considered historic property. HRS Chapter 6E-2 defines historic
property as “any building, structure, objects, district, area or site, including
heiau and underwaters site, which is over fifty years old.”

New Gymnasium

The State Historic Preservation Division (SHPD) may require an
archaeological investigation for the new gymnasium that may include a
literature review of prior archaeological studies in the area of Waimea
High School and a field inspection of the new Gymnasium site.

Demolition of Existing Gymnasium

Demolition of the existing Gymnasium is not a part of this project. Should
this structure be planned for demolition, SHPD may require architectural
documentation prior to demolishing the Gymnasium which may include a
request for an “architectural inventory survey” or “architectural recordation
survey” or both. The contents of the either survey would be provided by
SHPD.

SHPD could also request an architectural inventory survey of all buildings
50 years or older at Waimea High School. The nearest State Register of
Historic Places sites include the Bishop National Bank of Hawaii (First
Hawaii Bank) building, the Charles Gay House, the Gulick Rowell House,
and the Cook Landing Site.

Cultural Resources

The project site has been open space use since the development of the
Waimea High School. Prior use as grazing land would make any native
cultural practices unlikely in this seaport town. There are no current cultural
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practices in the project area and no need for access, therefore, no impact
on cultural practices. From a contemporary perspective, the Waimea High
School complex is an important community asset and the co-location of the
community center, swimming pool, ball field and the original gymnasium
serve as an important community center. The specific courtyard, while
visually attractive, is not known to be a cultural resource area.

Flora

The project site is predominantly covered with maintained lawn grass. Other
vegetation includes ornamental bougainvillea and plumeria. Most notable
on the site is a large monkeypod tree which provides an attractive shady
area however no seating or observed use beneath the canopy was
observed. No rare, threatened or endangered species of ﬂora were
observed within the project site.

The proposed action will have limited area for landscaping however the
usefulness of the new facility is considered an offsetting benefit to the
school, students and community.

Fauna

The site does not serve as an endangered wildlife habitat although avifauna,
feral cats, and rodents may be found on-site.

4. Infrastructure and Ultilities

The proposed improvements are not expected to have a significant impact
on existing infrastructure and utilities. No sewer, water, electrical or other
utilities will be impacted or require relocation. No disruption in utility services
is anticipated. All required utilities are available via underground and
connection points along Ola Tsuchiya Roads.

Vehicular and Pedestrian Access

The existing parking lot, west of the project site, may be utilized for access
to the new Gymnasium and (new) expanded parking lot. A secondary
access has been added to reduce congestion between parking lots.

ADA accessible walkways shall connect the existing walkways to the
proposed Gymnasium and to the existing and new parking lots. The
proposed walkways shall also connect to the existing walkways near the
Locker Room building to the south.
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Fire Department access will be provided via a fire lane that loops through
the existing parking lot and comes within 50-feet of the new Gymnasium
entrance in accordance with Hawai'i Fire Code Section 18.2.3.2.1.

Vehicular traffic to and from the site is not expected to have any change or
increase. The proposed parking lots will essentially harden surfaces and
eliminate potential erosion where vehicles are already parking. The
hardened surfaces will provide for safer pedestrian and vehicular access.

Water

The proposed improvements will marginally increase demand on municipal
potable water resources. Water service is available to the campus with a 3-
inch meter which is adequate to supply the additional fixtures for the new
gymnasium. Only minor increase demand for potable water will be required.

Wastewater

The project is served by the municipal sewer system with a 6-inch sewer
line that runs directly under the new building. This line has sufficient
capacity for the increased demand.

Drainage

A county storm drainage system does not serve the property therefore a
drainage plan will be required to address drainage runoff and to prevent any
adjacent properties from potential runoff impacts. This will be designed
during the building design phase.

Solid Waste
The project area is served by the municipal refuse service. Any construction
waste associated with the project will be removed by the project contractor

and disposed at an approved waste disposal site.

Telephone and Electrical Services

Telephone and electrical services are readily available through existing
connection points on campus. The increase power demand will be offset by
the use of energy efficient fixtures and equipment wherever possible.

5. Public Facilities
The proposed project will provide significant community benefit through

improved athletic curriculum and intramural competition opportunities that
are facilitated by a new gymnasium building. Other public facilities will not
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be adversely affected by the proposed facility. No additional demand for fire
protection and police services is anticipated. In addition to the expanded
and improved athletic facility, the project will provide the benefit of a new
source of civic pride which will enhance the community’s opportunities to
attend sporting events.

The Waimea Fire Station provides fire protection and first response
emergency and rescue service to the project area. The station is located at
9835 Kaumuali'i Highway south east of the project site. The station is
located approximately 500 feet from the project site and response time to
the site is approximately 3 to 5 minutes.

D. Social and Economic Characteristics

The proposed action will have a positive and significant social impact to
the surrounding area. The construction of a current standard facility that is
highly visible to the community will provide a sense of health, safety and
education that is beneficial as a significant component of community.

The project will have some beneficial economic impacts. The construction
of the improvements will create short-term employment, the purchase of
goods and services, the generation of excise and income taxes, and other
secondary and tertiary effects as a result of the project expenditures.

In the short-term, some traffic disruption will occur as a result of the
construction in and along Ola and Makeke Roads when heavy equipment
accesses the site and when utility connections are made. The selected
contractor will be required to provide appropriate traffic controls to ensure
safe passage around the work areas.

The long-term operations of the gymnasium should be considered a long-
term asset of the community.

E. Relationship to Plans, Codes and Ordinances

Use and Class |V Zoning Permits

The County of Kaua'i Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (CZO),
Ordinance 935, lists within each district of the County, development and
activities that are “generally permitted” and those which may be allowed
only after obtaining a Use Permit. Per the Kaua'i County Real Property
Assessment Division, Waimea High School is located in the Residential R-
1 zoning district (Figure 15). Per the CZO, public facilities (defined as a
facility owned or controlled by a governmental agency) within a R-1 zoning
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district requires a Use Permit. The primary purpose of the Use Permit is to
assure

Figure 14: Zoning Map
Source: County of Kauai

Final Environmental Assessment 39 Waimea High School Gymnasium
Waimea, Kauai, Hawaii



that a particular activity or use of land can be integrated into and be
compatible with its immediate surroundings. If allowed, the Planning
Commission can impose certain conditions which can affect the design
(e.g., height, size, color, etc.) of the structure in which the use/activity is
occurring or the manner and conduct of the overall operations (e.g., hours
of operation, traffic, off-street parking restrictions).

All Use Permits for development or use in a Residential District shall
require a public hearing in accordance with procedures as required for a
Class IV Zoning Permit.

Review and approval of Use Permits are by the County of Kaua'i Planning
Commission.

No construction or development shall be undertaken within a Residential
District without a valid zoning permit. Based on the proposed
development, a Class IV Zoning permit will be required. Class IV Zoning
Permits are approved by the Kaua'i Planning Commission

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit

Per Hawai'i Administrative Rules (HAR) Chapter 11-55, a National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit may be required
for point source water pollutant discharges into State surface waters. An
NPDES permit must be obtained at least one hundred eighty (180) days
prior to the start of construction activities that result in the disturbance of
one (1) or more acres of total land area, including clearing, grading, and
excavation. Construction activities for this project will potentially disturb
approximately 2.87 acres, therefore, an NPDES permit for construction
activities will be required. If the project can comply with every requirement
in the applicable NPDES General Permit, coverage under NPDES
General Permit Appendix C may be requested. For NPDES general permit
coverage, a Notice of Intent (NOI) form must be submitted at least thirty
(30) calendar days before the commencement of the discharge.

Grading Permit _

A Grading Permit shall be furnished by the Engineering Division of the
Department of Public Works (DPW), County of Kaua'i, and shall comply
with the Kaua'i County Grading Ordinance. A Grading Permit will be
required for this project since construction activities is proposed to exceed
excavation or fill of one hundred (100) cubic yards.

Grubbing Permit

A Grubbing Permit shall be furnished by the Engineering Division of the
Department of Public Works (DPW), County of Kaua'i, and shall conform
with the DPW Erosion and Sediment Control Standards Act 249,
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SLH1974. A grubbing permit is required for this project since the total
disturbed area is proposed to exceed one (1) acre.

General Plan

The Kauai County General Plan provides the blueprint for Kauai's future
and supports the general expansion of emergency services as the
population grows. While the proposed project is consistent will all policies
addressed in the Plan, of particular relevance are Policy #1, Policy #4, and
Policy #17.

Policy #1 directs managed growth to preserve the rural character of Kauai,
and to ensure that growth is within growth boundaries in order to keep
communities compact and walkable. The proposed gymnasium will be
sited on lands withing the Waimea High School campus and does not
expand the campus outwardly. By using the selected location, the campus
will remain compact and walkable.

Policy #4 calls for the design of healthy and complete neighborhoods. This
is accomplished by similarly utilizing available lands within the campus for
the new gymnasium. The new athletic facility may also encourage student
to participate more in organized sports which could carry on into their adult
lives establishing lifelong health habits.

Policy #17 most importantly call for the nurture of our keiki. This is strongly
and directly applicable to the proposed project through the provision of
modern athletic facilities. Students will be able to train and grow physically
and athletically and will have an additional source of pride through their
high school years. This could lead to diminished desire to move away from
their home of Kauai and can also lead the promotion of lifelong health
consciousnesses.

State Land Use Designation
The State Land Use Boundary Maps show the project locations to be in
Urban use.

Hawaii State Plan

The project is also consistent with the objectives of the Hawaii State Plan
particularly with respect to the objectives and policies for socio-cultural
advancement — education (HRS § 226-21) where the objective promoted
states that (a) Planning for the State's socio-cultural advancement with
regard to education shall be directed towards achievement of the objective
of the provision of a variety of educational opportunities to enable
individuals to fulfill their needs, responsibilities, and aspirations. This is
further supported by (b) To achieve the education objective, it shall be the
policy of this State to: (1) Support educational programs and activities that
enhance personal development, physical fitness, recreation, and cultural
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pursuits of all groups. In this regard the proposed gymnasium is fully
consistent with this objective and policy by providing current and highly
desirable health, recreation and competition facilities on par with other
State high school facilities.

Coastal Zone Management

The project is also subject to conformance with HRS § 205A-2, the Hawaii
Coastal Zone Management (CZM) Act where the objectives and policies
state that State resources should be managed and that growth should
include public participation. While none of the objectives and policies
specifically address public education, health and safety facilities, the
proposed project will indirectly support all policies of the CZM.

The proposed improvements will require ministerial permits from the State
of Hawaii, and discretionary and ministerial permits from the County of
Kauai.

State of Hawaii

+ Department of Health Community Noise Permit
» National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit (NPDES) if
grading required exceeds 1 acre.

County of Kauai

+ Planning Division, Use Permit (Planning Commission Approval
Required)

» Planning Division, Class IV Zoning Permit (Planning Commission
Approval Required)

« Building Division, Building Permits

Work on the proposed improvements will not commence until all permits
have been obtained and the environmental assessment process is
completed.

Probable Impact on the Environment

The proposed improvements will result in any change in use and intensity
of the project site. The proposed action is a long-term public facility
improvement project and is an essential facility that is located centrally and
will minimally impact the adjacent neighborhood residential district. The
noise associated with large events will be minimally disruptive as residential
areas are located on the other side of the campus.
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The proposed improvements will have short-term construction related
impacts. Traffic will be impacted during work within and along the roadway
but traffic control measures will ensure that there are no major
inconveniences to local traffic. Beyond the inconvenience of some minor
traffic disruption and associated noise from the use of heavy equipment, no
adverse long-term impacts are expected. Any traffic diversions and
roadway construction must conform with applicable State and County
construction regulations. Work will also be limited to daytime non-peak
traffic hours.

Benefits beyond an improved drainage system is the creation of short-term
and employment both on and off property, the generation of additional
revenues to the State of Hawaii and County of Kauai and the resultant
secondary and tertiary spending and tax collections that will likely be
experienced in the community. Most significantly, the completed project will
provide an equitable athletic facility that is comparable to other current State
of Hawaii high school gymnasiums.

Adverse Impacts Which Cannot be Avoided

Adverse impacts that cannot be avoided are generally related to short-term
construction activities. These impacts can be minimized by sound
construction practices, adherence to applicable construction regulations as
prescribed by the Department of Health, and coordination with applicable
State and County agencies.

Minor grading will be required for the construction of the project
improvements. This work will create dust, noise and a minor traffic nuisance
during the course of construction. Possible repair of the roadways will also
require the use of heavy machines that will enter the project site. Traffic
control measures will be used to minimize the disruption of traffic during the
construction period.

Alternatives to the Proposed Project

Alternatives to the proposed site location are discussed in Chapter Il of this
document. The site selected is one of three that were under consideration.
The selected site was deemed the most appropriate by the selection group
and due to its functional capacity, immediate availability and cost. The no
action alternative was rejected because the existing gymnasium is at the
end of its useful life and due to current physical education requirements.

Final Environmental Assessment 43 . Waimea High School Gymnasium

Waimea, Kauai, Hawaii



Mitigation Measures

Long-term impacts resulting from the proposed improvements are expected
to be minimal or positive based upon the subject environmental
assessment. Long-term air and noise impacts are not expected to change
significantly after improvements are completed. Traffic conditions will not
change, as there will not be any new demand for access to the project site.
Short-term construction-related noise and air quality impact mitigation
measures include general good housekeeping practices and avoidance of
a prolonged construction period. The contractor will be directed to use best
management practices (BMP) wherever applicable.

Examples of BMPs that may be implemented include watering during
demolition, clearing and grubbing to control fugitive dust and the
containment and controlled release of any runoff during the construction
period. All waste materials will be securely contained and appropriately
disposed.

BMP and erosion control measures include the use of compost filter socks
the use of a sand bag cofferdam, and the addition of a stabilized
construction entrance/exit point. Compost filter socks will be used at the
catch basin inlets as well as around the perimeter of work areas. The
construction ingress/egress located at the entrance to the property will be
stabilized with a fabric barrier topped with large aggregate which will be
removed when construction is completed.

Irreversible and Irretrievable Commitment of Resources

Implementation of the proposed project will result in the irreversible and
irretrievable commitment of resources in the use of non-recyclable energy
expenditure and labor. Materials used for new construction may have
salvage value; however, it is unlikely that such efforts will be cost-
effective. The expenditure of these resources is offset by gains in
construction-related wages, increased tax base and tertiary spending.
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V.

REASONS SUPPORTING FINDING OF NO SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

As stated in Section 11-200-12, EIS Rules, Significance Criteria: in
determining whether an action may have a significant effort on the
environment, every phase of a proposed action shall be considered. The
expected consequences of an action, both primary and secondary, and the
cumulative as well as the short-term and long-term effects must be
assessed in determining if an action shall have significant effect on the
environment. Each of the significance criteria is listed below and is followed
by the means of compliance or conflict (if extant).

» Involves the loss or destruction of any natural or cultural resource.

The proposed action will not involve the loss or destruction of any natural or
cultural resource. The project site is presently a vacant open space owned
by the State of Hawaii and managed by the Department of Education.

» Curtails the range of beneficial uses of the environment.

The proposed installation will not curtail any beneficial uses of the
environment. The project area is not generally used by the public nor is it
used as a recreational or cultural resource by the public.

« Conflicts with the State's long-term goals or guidelines as expressed in
Chapter 343, Hawaii Revised Statutes.

The proposed action is consistent with the goals and guidelines expressed
in Chapter 343, Hawaii Revised Statutes. The proposed action is triggered
by the use of County funds. The subject Environmental Assessment has
been developed in compliance with the Chapter 343.

« Substantially affects the economic or social welfare of the community or
state.

The proposed action will make a positive contribution to the welfare of the
County and State by creating employment during the construction period
and will also benefit the State through increased tax revenue. Most
significantly, the completed project will make a major contribution to the
social, health and safety welfare of the general public. The project will
significantly and positively enhance the social welfare of the community by
providing state of the art athletic facilities benefitting the students of the
Waimea High School.

. Substantially.aﬁects public health.
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The proposed is will have direct impact on the health of students attending
Waimea High School through the provision of modern and safe athletic
facilities.

* Involves substantial or adverse secondary impacts, such as population
changes or effect on public facilities.

The proposed action will not produce secondary impacts resulting in
population changes or significantly increase use of public facilities.

* Involves substantial degradation of environmental quality.

The proposed improvements will not involve the substantial degradation of
environmental quality. The improvements proposed will have short-term -
impact on the environment; however, this is temporary in nature.

+ Cumulatively have a considerable effect upon the environment or
involve a commitment for larger actions.

The proposed action is not a first phase of any larger action nor will it have
a considerable effect on the environment.

» Affect rare, threatened or endangered species, or their habitats.

The proposed action will not affect any rare, threatened or endangered
species of flora or fauna. The project improvements are not anticipated to
create any additional wildlife habitat. Any loss of wildlife is largely
associated with introduced wildlife that are found in the project area but are
not associated with the proposed action.

+ Detrimentally affect air or water quality or ambient noise levels.

The proposed action is not expected to negatively impact ambient air or
water quality. Long-term ambient noise will increase due to the use of sirens
in an area adjacent to residential use. This impact is necessary and
unavoidable but is offset by the invaluable and essential service for the
general welfare of the public. This noise impact is very short in duration.

Minimal impacts on air, noise and water quality are anticipated during
construction. These impacts will be limited by best management
construction practices and compliance with Department of Health
construction mitigation standards.

« Affect scenic vistas and view planes identified in County or State plans
or studies.
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The proposed action will not affect any scenic vistas or view planes
identified by the County or State. The site will use an attractive open space
within the campus and will also require the removal of a large banyan tree
but the new gymnasium facility will provide long-term benefits to the
students and community of Waimea.

* Require substantial energy consumption.

The project will increase energy consumption. Operation of the facility will
involve a large facility and additional air conditioned area which will require
more electrical power. Energy efficient equipment and fixtures will be used
wherever practicable. The additional consumption of energy is offset by the
additional benefits that are brought to the students of Waimea High School.
Energy utilization during the construction phase will increase through the
use of fossil fuels used by construction vehicles. Operation of the
infrastructure will not require any energy.

e Affects or is likely to suffer damage by being located in an
environmentally sensitive area such as a flood plain, tsunami zone,
beach, erosion-prone area, geologically hazardous land, estuary, fresh
water, or coastal waters.

The project is not located in an environmentally sensitive location.

Anticipated-Finding of No Significant Impact

Based on the above stated criteria, the Department of Education has
determined anticipates that the proposed project will not have any
significant adverse environmental impacts and that an Environmental
Impact Statement will not be required for the proposed action.
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V. LIST OF PARTIES CONSULTED PRIOR TO DEVELOPMENT OF THE
DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

Agencies with ministerial or specific interests regarding the proposed
project were contacted or their public information was used to develop the
subject Draft Environmental Assessment.”

Police Department
County of Kauai

Building Division
County of Kauai

Planning Department
County of Kauai

Fire Department
Kauai Fire Deparment
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VI. LIST OF AGENCIES, ORGANIZATIONS AND INDIVIDUALS TO BE
CONSULTED DURING THE DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT
PROCESS

State of Hawaii Agencies Date

W~

4.,
5. Office of Hawaiian Affairs

Department of Health Clean Air Branch

Department of Land and Natural Resources

Department of Business Economic Development

and Tourism

Office of Planning Dec. 8, 2022

County of Kauai Agencies

0.

1. County of Kauai Planning Department

2. County of Kauai Building Division -Public Works Dec. 23, 2022
3. County of Kauai Engineering Division — Public Works

4. Fire Department

5. Police Department

6.
7
8
9
1

Kauai Emergency Management Agency

. Parks and Recreation
. Planning Department

Waste Water Management -Public Works
Water Department

Other Parties

1.

Kauai Island Utility Cooperative
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M Gma || Taeyong Kim <environcom1@gmail.com>

Notice of Availability Waimea High School Gymnasium Draft EA

2 messages

Taeyong Kim <environcom1@gmail.com> Thu, Dec 8, 2022 at 10:18 AM
Bec: dbedt.op.lud@hawaii.gov, dbedt.energyoffice@hawaii.gov, dinr@hawaii.gov, webmail@doh.hawaii.gov, info@oha.org, planningdepartment@kauai.gov,
publicworks@kauai.gov, pwengineering@kauai.gov, kfd@kauai.gov, kpddispatch@kauai.gov, kema@kauai.gov, parks@kauai.gov, wrp@kauaiwater.org,
info@kiuc.coop, Troy Tanigawa <ttanigawa@kauai.gov>, Taeyong Kim <environcom1@gmail.com>

Dear Reviewer,

Attached is a link to the Draft Environmental Assessment published in the December 8, 2022 edition of the Environmental Notice.

https://files.hawaii.gov/dbedt/erp/Doc_Library/2022-12-08-KA-DEA-Waimea-High-School-Gym-Complex.pdf

If you are interested in submitting comments on this document, the deadline for written comments is January 9, 2023. Your comments can be addressed to:

Taeyong Kim

Environmental Communications, Inc.

P.O. Box 236097

Honolulu, HI 96823

or

tkim@environcom..com

If you have any questions, please contact me by email or phone at (808) 528-4661.

Mahalo,

Taeyong Kim

Environmental Communications, Inc.

DBEDT OP Land Use Division <dbedt.op.lud@hawaii.gov> Wed, Dec 14, 2022 at 12:10 PM
To: "rbass@bowerandkubota.com" <rbass@bowerandkubota.com>, Taeyong Kim <environcom1@gmail.com>
Cc: "Balassiano, Katia" <katia.balassiano@hawaii.gov>

Sending on behalf of Katia Balassiano

Aloha,

Thank you for the opportunity to review the Draft Environmental Assessment for the Waimea High School Gymnasium Complex. The project is in the State's
Urban District and outside of the Special Management Area. We support the upgrading of the school's gymnasium facilities. We understand that all construction
options require the removal of trees and recommend that the trees removed will be replaced elsewhere on the site. We encourage you to consider planting
shade trees in the parking lots and/or installing photovoltaic panels over the parking stalls. We also encourage you to install photovoltaic panels on the roof of the
new building.

Thank you,

Megumi Nakayama



Secretary, Land Use Division
State of Hawai'i Office of Planning & Sustainable Development
Dept. of Business, Economic Development & Tourism

235 S. Beretania Street, 6th Floor
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(808) 587-2842

[Quoted text hidden]



Erriroaenal CoMsInaTnus, hic,

‘March 7, 2023

Katia Balacsiano

Office of Planning and Sustainable Development
235 South Beretania Street, 6 Floar

Honolulu, H1 96813

Re:  Waimea High Schaol Eavironmental Assessment

Dcar Ms. Balassiano:

Thank you far your ccmments of December 14, 2022.

We have reviewed your comments and thank you for your confirmation that the project site is
located vith the State Urban District and is located autside of the Special Management Area.
We concur with your recommendation regarding plantings and trees and are please to inform
you that existing and significant new plantings will be incorperated to site. Your comments
regarding the usc of photovolzaic panels has been taken into advisement but is not part of the

present scope of impravement. We appreciate your support of the project.

Thank you for participating In the environmental review process. Your comments are
appreciated and will be included in the Final Environmental Assessment.

Sincerely,

Teeyeng Kim
Principal Planner
Environmental Communications, Inc.

cC: R. Bass, Deparniment of Education

P.0.Box 230097 « Homoutty » B« 66323



ENGINEERING DIVISION

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
TROY K. TANIGAWA, P.E., COUNTY ENGINEER
BOYD GAYAGAS, DEPUTY COUNTY ENGINEER

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR
MICHAEL A. DAHILIG, MANAGING DIRECTOR

December 23, 2022

Environmental Communications, Inc.

P.O. Box 236097

Honolulu, HI 96823

Attn: Taeyong Kim (tkim@environcom.com)

Subject: Environmental Assessment and Finding of No Significant Impact
Waimea High School Gymnasium Athletic Facilities
TMK: (4) 1-6-010:004
Waimea High School, Kaua‘i

To Whom It May Concern:

The County of Kaua‘i Department of Public Works offers the following comments for the subject Draft
Environmental Assessment (DEA):

1) The proposed project is located in Flood Zone X and is not within the Special Flood Hazard Area.

2) We acknowledge that the DEA states that “All stormwater management calculations will be in
accordance with County of Kaua’i, Department of Public Works Storm Water Runoff System Manual,
dated November 2001.”

3) The applicant shall comply with all provisions of the “Sediment and Erosion Control Ordinance No.
808” (https://library.gcode.us/lib/kauai _county hi/pub/county code/item/title viii-chapter 22-
article 7?view=all) to safeguard the public health, safety, and welfare, to protect property, and to
control soil erosion and sedimentation. This shall include, but not be limited to, a grading and/or
grubbing permit in compliance with the Ordinance, which is required if any of the following
conditions apply:

e The work area exceeds one (1) acre,

e Grading involving excavation or embankment, or combination thereof exceeds 100 cubic yards.

e Grading exceeds five (5) feet in vertical height or depth at its deepest point.

e The work area unreasonably alters the general drainage pattern to the detriment of abutting
properties.

The ordinance includes a permit exemption for “Work in a public street, sidewalk, alley, right-of-way

or in an isolated, self-contained government controlled area.” If the State of Hawai‘i would like to

obtain a permit exemption, an exemption should be requested in writing at the address below or via

email at pwengineering@kauai.gov. The exemption request should include information about how

the State will control and inspect the grading or grubbing work and ensure compliance with all other

requirements of the County’s Sediment and Erosion Control Ordinance.

4444 Rice Street, Suite 275 « Lihu'e, Hawai'i 96766 + (808) 241-4883 (b) - (808) 241-6609 (f)
An Equal Opportunity Employer



TMK (4) 2-8-022:015 Unit 1
December 8, 2022
Page 2 of 2

4) During construction, best management practices (BMPs) shall be incorporated to the maximum
extent practicable to prevent.-damage by sedimentation, erosion, or dust to watercourses, natural
areas, and other properties. The permittee and the property owner shall be responsible to ensure
that BMPs are satisfactorily implemented at all times.

Sincerely,

Michael Moule, P.E.
Chief, Engineering Division

cc: Regulatory Section
Richard Bass (rbass@bowersandkubota.com)




EtivroteEsTa Corvncaning, .

iarch 7, 2023

Michzael Moule, P.E.

Chief, Engincering Division
Department of Public Works
4444 Rice Street, Suite 275
Lihve, H1 26766

Re:  Waimesz High School Environmental Assessment
Dear Mr, Moule:

Thank you for your comments of December 23, 2022 en the Draft Environmental Assessment
for the subject project and offer the following responses:

1. Thank you far yaur corfirmation that the project is lacated in Flood Zone X and is not
located within the Specia! Flood Hazard Area.

2. VW/e note that concurrence regarding the starmwater calculations method is
appreciated.
3. The project applizant agency will comply with the provisions of the Sediment and

Erosion Control Ordinance No, 808. Thank you fer the references provided.

4, Best Management Practices (BMVIPs) will be incorporated into the project design and will
be a requirement for the project contractor. This Imprevemens will occur on an active
school campus and BMPs are a significant consideration in the construction of this
project.

Thank vou for participating in the environmental review process. Your commenls are
appreciated and will be included in the Final Environmental Assessment.

Sincerely,

3\

Taeyong Kim
Principal Planner
Envircnmental Communications, Inc.

e R. 82335, ODcpartment of Educat on

PO B ZI504T « Horiouwy o Hoe $GR23




APPENDIX A

Due Diligence Report for Waimea High School New Gymnasium
prepared by
Design Partners Incorporated
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Waimea High School Preliminary Basis of Design
New Gymnasium
Waimea, Kaua’i, Hawaii

INTRODUCTION

A. Overview

This submittal is the Preliminary Design Submittal for the new Gymnasium at Waimea
High School. The submittal includes the following:

1.

Preliminary Design Drawings: Construction design drawing, approximately 80% level
of development. Drawings included in this submittal: General Notes, Site Plans,
Grading Plans, Site Utility Plans, Landscape Plans, Building Plans, Building Sections,
Building Elevations, and preliminary design drawings for all applicable engineering
disciplines.

Basis of Design (this document): Preliminary Basis of Design narratives, building
program, preliminary engineering calculations and other back-up information pertinent
to the project.

Design Meeting Reports: Meeting minutes, presentations and attendance sheets from
the Scope, Site Selection, Kaua'i County, and Preliminary Design meetings.

Outline Specifications & Product Cuts: Specifications noting which building materials
and/or systems are being proposed.

Working Construction Cost Estimate: See attached cost estimate under separate
cover,

B. Project Background

1.

2.

Project Description: The project will construct a new Gymnasium, replacing the
existing Gymnasium which was constructed in 1948 as part of the original Waimea
school campus. The facility will include a Lobby, Concession, Training Room, Main
Court (with regulation high school basketball and volleyball courts), Locker Rooms,
Showers, an Athletic Director Office, restrooms, and other various support space for
utility and circulation. The project also includes a Bid Alternative for a Wrestling Room,
Multipurpose Room, and Mechanical Room.

The new Gymnasium will also be designed for enhanced hurricane protection in
accordance with the Hawaii State Building Code, Section U103, Section 426 as the
project is a state-owned public building of Risk Category lll, whose primary occupancy
is public assembly and has an occupant load greater than 300.

Project Phasing: There are no construction phasing requirements for this project. The
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new Gymnasium will be constructed in an open courtyard on the southern edge of the
campus.

3. Project Site Location and Existing Condition: Waimea High School is part of the

Hawaii State Department of Education West Kaua'i Complex and is the center of the
Waimea community. The West Kaua'i community is rural with much of the economy
centering on agriculture, tourism, the military and scientific/military research.
Established in 1881, Waimea High School began as an elementary school before
becoming a high school in 1935. Serving grades 9 through 12, Waimea High School
is the oldest high school on the island of Kaua'i and considered the westernmost high
school in the United States.

CAMPUS BOUNDARY
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The existing Waimea High School campus sits on various parcels. Much of the main
campus buildings are on state-owned land and with a few on county-owned land,
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including the existing Athletic Complex, which includes the Gymnasium and Waimea
Neighborhood Center. The state-owned parcel is bordered by Haina Road to the
north, Makeke Road to the west and Ola Road to the east. Tsuchiya Road bisects the
state and county parcels with Captain Cooks Memorial Park located between the
parcels.

4. Existing Gymnasium: The
existing Gymnasium (Building N)
was constructed in 1948 as part
of the original Waimea school
campus. Since its initial
construction, there have been
numerous renovations to the
Gymnasium including the more
recent renovations to the
existing Boys’ and Girls’
Showers (1997) and new
telescoping bleachers (1998).
The existing gymnasium
consists of a main court with regulation high school basketball / volleyball court, roll-
out bleachers, and stage. Support facilities include locker rooms, showers, laundry
room, weight room, storage, and toilet facilities for the public. The gymnasium is
currently used by the school’s interscholastic sport teams, for school assemblies, and
other school activities. The overall condition of the existing Gymnasium is very poor,
as there are numerous building systems that are antiquated, beyond its service life
with visible rusting and termite damage throughout, and jalousie windows that permit
water infiltration which is especially prevalent during heavy rains.

C. Design Objective

The objective of the project is to provide a modern, state-of-the-art Gymnasium that is
functional, safe, cost effective and visually appealing. The new Gymnasium'’s style will
blend effortlessly with the campus and community and enhance the visual environment of
not only the immediate campus setting, but the Waimea community in general. The
Gymnasium design shall represent a modern/up-to-date school facility, be non-
institutional in character and respect the existing context of the campus and community,
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and be exciting for the
students, faculty, and guests
of Waimea High School.

The project will be designed
and constructed in
accordance with to U.S. Green
Building Council’'s (USGBC)
Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design for g _ , 5\ Bt — -
Building Design and Construction: Schools Rating System to the greatest extent possible.
The project will not be registered with LEED Online and will not seek USGBC LEED
certification.

A FE AT EEaRes . 48 DRSS S - L

D. Applicable Criteria and Technical Requirements

The new Gymnasium facility will be designed in accordance with Americans with
Disabilities Act and Architectural Barriers Act Accessibility Guidelines (ADA/ABAAG),
National Fire Protection Association Life Safety Code, and the International Building Code,
2012 Edition, as amended by the Kaua'i County Code.

E. Program

This facility is being designed using the Facilities Assessment and Development
Schedule, otherwise known as FADS, and includes program and functional areas
supporting the current student enroliment and present curriculum. The proposed program
and associated square footage are based on the program documents provided by the
Department of Education (DOE) and further developed based on subsequent design
meetings with DOE and Waimea High School. Program elements within this project are
described in Section C.1 of the Architectural Basis of Design.

F. Design Development

Project program and design development including site selection, site and building plan
development were developed in conjunction with the stakeholders during a series of
design meetings held at Waimea High School and virtually over Google Meets. The
meetings involved interface with the major stakeholders, which included representatives
from the Department of Education (DOE) Project Management, DOE Facilities, West
Kaua'i Complex ASA, Department of Accounting and General Services, Waimea High
School, and the Architect-Engineer (A-E) design team, led by the prime A-E, Design
Partners Incorporated (DPI). Waimea High School representatives include the Principal,
Vice Principal, and Athletic Director.
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Meeting minutes are included as part of the Appendix of this Basis of Design.

G. Project Schedule

The general project delivery schedule is illustrated in the table below; however, a more
detailed project construction schedule will be developed at a later time by DOE Project
Management branch in conjunction with the Construction Contractor.

Project Delivery Schedule
Milestone Date
Schematic Submittal April 28, 2022
Draft EA Publication Date
(Environmental Notice) July 22, 2022
Final EA / FONSI Publication Date September 23, 2022
Use Permit and Class IV Permit

(Concurrent Permits) October 2022
Preliminary Submittal July 19, 2022
Final Submittal October 5, 2022
Anticipated Approval of L.Jse Permit, November 2022
Class IV Permit
Building Permit Submittal December 2022
Bid Documents March 2023
Anticipated Building Permit Approval November 2023

H. Project Budget and Construction Cost Estimate

The project is a Legislative add-on Project, with construction funds already obtained from
the Legislature. These construction funds will lapse in 2024, thus the project will need to
go out to bid by January 2024. The project construction estimate, including Bid
Alternatives, is $23,571,000, per Schematic Cost Estimate, dated April 27, 2022). The
noted project estimate includes only items approved for funding and construction under
the Hawaii DOE Capital Improvements Program (CIP) and does not include
equipment/furnishings that must be procured with funding other than this CIP.

A working cost estimate based on the current schematic design is included under separate
cover and has been escalated to reflect the current market conditions.
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CIVIL BASIS OF DESIGN

A. Existing Conditions

Waimea High School is located on the west side of the island of Kaua'i. The school can
be accessed from Kaumualii Highway to Ola Road or Makeke Road and Tsuchiya Road.

The topography of the site is developed for the current school building facilities and

generally slopes to the south, towards the ocean. Based on the topographic survey, the

south west side of the site has elevations of approximately 70-feet, and the north side of

the school has elevations of approximately 110-feet. There are no existing drainage

facilities in the general area.

The soils, as indicated by the USDA, NCRS Web Soils Survey, consists of mainly
Makaweli silty clay loam (MgB), 0 to 6 percent slopes. Runoff in the area surface flows
downhill towards Kaumualii Highway and the ocean.

The project site infrastructure includes an existing 2-inch water line that services an
existing music building and irrigation system. An existing 6-inch sewer line runs through
the site from the classroom buildings to the north to the baseball field to the south. An 8-
inch water main runs along Ola Road to the east of the site.

There are a series of small parking areas around the campus providing approximately 74
parking stalls for staff, faculty, including ADA accessible stalls.

B. General Project Description

The project scope consists of a new Gymnasium building which contains a main court,
locker rooms, showers, an office, training room, concession, and utility support spaces,
and two separate parking lots providing 99 stalls. Accessible paths will be provided to
connect the new Gymnasium with the existing campus. The building site is approximately
0.54 acres and the parking lots are approximately 0.81 acres.

The existing Waimea High School campus sits on various parcels. Much of the main
campus buildings are on state-owned land (TMK: 4-1-6-010:004) with a few on Kauai
county-owned land (TMK: 4-1-6-010:010) comprising of 8.08 and 5.18 acres, respectively.
The existing Athletic Complex, which includes the Gymnasium and the Waimea
Neighborhood Center, is located on Kauai county-owned land (TMK: 4-1-6-009:023)
comprising of 2.97 acres. The state-owned parcel is bordered by Haina Road to the north,
Makeke Road to the west and Ola Road to the east. Tsuchiya Road bisects the state and
county parcels with Captain Cooks Memorial Park located between the parcels.
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C. Technical Requirements

1. Sewer System: The sewer system shall comply with the County of Kaua'i,
Department of Public Works Standard Specifications, dated September 1986, and
the Department of Public Works Standard Details, dated September 1984,

2. Storm Drainage: Provide positive drainage away from the building and structures
along the site and provide onsite retention facilities for excess runoff in accordance
with the County of Kaua'i, Department of Public Works Storm Water Runoff System
Manual, dated November 2001

3. Domestic Water System: Provide domestic and fire protection water systems,
including appurtenances, per Water System Standards, Standard Details for Water
System Construction, Department of Water Supply and the Kaua’'i County Code.

D. Water Utilities

The school is serviced by an existing 3-inch domestic water meter. The new gymnasium
will connect to an existing 2-inch domestic water line located within the school campus.
The 2-inch water line currently runs directly under the gymnasium site and services an
existing music building and irrigation system. The water line will be relocated around the
proposed gymnasium and the new service for the gymnasium will be connected to this
line. A new fire line connection will be provided for the project and connect to an 8"
Department of Water Line on Ola Road, near the intersection of Tsuchiya. The new fire
line will provide a connection for the gymnasium’s fire sprinkler system and a new fire
hydrant. The new fire hydrant will be located on the south side of the building adjacent to
Tsuchiya Road.

E. Sewer Utilities

The project will connect to an existing 6-inch sewer line near the front entrance of the new
gymnasium. A portion of the existing sewer line and two abandoned cesspools are located
directly under the proposed gymnasium footprint. The existing sewer line will be replaced
by a new sewer line that will be outside the new building and the abandoned cesspools
will be demolished as needed. The 6-inch sewer line has sufficient capacity for the new
gymnasium.
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F. Grading, Drainage Utilities, and Low Impact Development

The site of the new Waimea High School Gymnasium consists of a grass lawn and
walkways that slope towards Tsuchiya Road. A retaining wall will be installed on the south
side of the gymnasium to level the grade for the gymnasium building pad. The principles
of positive drainage, with minimum slopes, are applied to control the conditions that direct
rainfall away from facilities. New facilities shall accommodate ADA requirements as well
as positive drainage away from the building.

There are no existing drainage systems in the project vicinity. The building roof down
spouts will be collected and conveyed by buried pipe to three underground detention
systems on the east and west sides of the gymnasium. Runoff from the parking lots will
be collected via inlets in the center of parking aisles and stored in underground detention
systems beneath the parking pavement. Out flows from the detention systems will be
conveyed to seepage inlets to allow excess stormwater to be release from the detention
systems.

The storm drainage system will be properly coordinated with surrounding areas to ensure
that runoff does not cause damage to other on-site buildings. All stormwater management
calculations will be in accordance with County of Kaua'i, Department of Public Works
Storm Water Runoff System Manual, dated November 2001.

Temporary and permanent Best Management Practices for erosion and sediment control

will be required, including but not limited to, a dust fence around the perimeter of the
project area and surface runoff control.

G. Accessible Route / Walkways

Walkway locations will conform to the requirements of the ADAAG requirements. Walkway
widths will be 5-feet or greater as shown on the project drawings

The existing site sidewalks or walkways will be maintained within the existing school site
to allow passage of students to other buildings on the campus. Walkway locations will
conform to the requirements of the ADAAG requirements. The new walkway concrete will
include an appropriate Solar Reflectance Index (SRI) to address heat-island affect.
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H. Geotechnical
The Contractor will comply with requirements and recommendations from the project
Geotechnical Investigation, Waimea High School, New Gymnasium, Waimea, Kaua'i,

Hawaii, conducted by Hirata & Associates, dated January 20, 2022.

l. Standard and References

e Accessibility With Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG)

e Construction Best Management Practices (BMPs) for Sediment and Erosion Control
for the County of Kauai. Department of Public Works, County of Kauai, April 2, 2004.

¢ Ordinance No. 808: A Bill for an Ordinance to Amend Chapter 22, Article 7, Kauai
County Code 1987, Relating to Grading, Grubbing, and Stockpiling. Kauai County,
October 2003.

¢ Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), Kauai County, Hawaii.

o Storm Water Runoff System Manual. Department of Public Works, County of Kauai,
July 2001.

¢ "PFDS: Hawaiian Islands.” NOAA's National Weather Service. Hydrometeorological
Design Studies Center, n.d. Web. 20 Nov. 2015.
<http://hdsc.nws.noaa.gov/hdsc/pfds/pfds_map_hi.htmi>.

e “Water System Standards”, 2002 as adopted by the Department of Water, County of

Kauai, including all subsequent amendments and additions and “Standard Details for
Water System Construction, Department of Water Supply.
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LANDSCAPE BASIS OF DESIGN

A. GENERAL PARAMETERS

1. General Descriptions: The proposed project is to build a new gymnasium facility
and associated parking and landscaping within the existing school campus. The
goal of the landscape design is to provide an appropriate and visually appealing
landscape that meets the functional and program requirements of the school and
community. Landscape goals include low maintenance and low water use
landscape design concepts.

The project site will consist of a new gymnasium building and two new parking lot
areas, with associated pedestrian circulation, and storm water management
features.

2. Existing Conditions: The existing landscape of the Waimea High School campus
is comprised primarily of a scattering of canopy trees, such as Monkey Pod,
Plumeria, Banyan, and Gold Trees. A large open lawn area fronts the main office.
There is a minimal use of shrubs and groundcovers on the campus. Manually
watering is apparently used throughout the main campus open lawn areas on
campus. Annual rainfall at this location is about 22 inches, with April to September
being the driest months with less than 2 inches per month.

B. DESIGN OBJECTIVES

To create a culturally and environmentally appropriate landscape that can contribute to
the educational mission of the school. The landscape should be relatively low water use
landscape and require minimal maintenance. The design should help to reinforce a sense
of identity to the school.

1. Sustainability: The landscape design should recognize an appropriate level of
concern for ongoing maintenance, water consumption, and energy consumption.

2, Function: The landscape will have functional requirements of shade, and visual
buffering, open space for gathering and activities.

3. Security and Safety: The intent of the landscape design is to provide a safe,
secure site surrounding the building, with good line of site visibility.

4. Disposition and protection of Existing Plant Materials: Some mature trees will need
to be removed to facilitate the position of the new gymnasium. New trees will be

planted for at least a 2 for 1 replacement of any large trees removed. It might be
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possible to relocate a row of existing Plumeria trees, which will conflict with new
construction, and utilize them for a new parking lot area or other locations. Trees
to remain in place will be protected from construction activities.

5. Landscape Plantings:

a. Final plant selections will primarily consist of low water and low
maintenance plant material appropriate to the site. Any non-native plants
used will be non-invasive. Plants with known severe insect or disease
problems, subject to excessive wind damage, or demonstrating other high
maintenance attributes will not be used.

b. Due to maintenance concerns and practical limitations, large expanses of
shrubs and groundcovers will be avoided, accept where required for
parking lot screening.

c. A 2 inch layer of céver mulch will be provided around the base of all newly
planted trees in lawn areas to a distance of 3 ft. from the trunk, typical.

d. Parking lots will be provided with a minimum of one tree for every 10 stalls.

e. There will be a 4 inch layer of new imported screened topsoil with organic
soil amendments throughout the new landscape areas.

f. Lawn grass will be hydro-mulched seed and will be comprised of a grass
type commonly recommended as appropriate to Kauai.

g. All new plants will be warranted for one year after planting and any non-
healthy plants will be replaced.

6. Landscape Irrigation: A permanent automatic spray irrigation system will not be
provided. Irrigation is currently achieved via hand watering as needed. Irrigation
hose faucets will be provided at strategic locations to facilitate hand watering.
Given anticipated average rainfall amounts, some supplemental irrigation will be
required for success of any tree and shrub plantings.

7. Maintenance: Plant and ground maintenance will be provided during both the
planting operation and plant establishment period. The plant establishment period
will be a minimum of 90 days, and is considered completed when all plantings have
been installed, are in a healthy growing condition and turf areas have provided
adequate coverage as determined by the Contracting Officer.
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Preliminary Basis of Design

C. STANDARDS AND REFERENCES

* Americans with Disabilities Act and Architectural Barriers Act Accessibility Guidelines,

dated 23 July 2010.

e Kauai County Building Code

D. PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLANT LIST

TREE ALTERNATIVES

Kukui

Kou

Gold Tree
Manila Palm
Loulu Palm
Shower Tree

SHRUB ALTERNATIVES

e Croton
Golden Eldorado

Mock Orange
Ki (Ti)

D Design Partners Incorporated

Native White Hibiscus

Aleurites moluccanus

Cordia subcordata
Roseodendron donnell-smithii
Veitchia merrilii

Pritchardia spp. (Kauai variety)
Cassia fistula x javanica

Codeaum spp.
Pseuderanthemum reticulatum
Hibiscus spp.

Murraya paniculate

Cordyline spp.
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ARCHITECTURAL BASIS OF DESIGN

A. General Parameters

1. General Description:
The scope of the
project involves a new
Gymnasium Building at
Waimea High School,
Waimea, Kaua'i,
Hawaii. This project |
intends to construct a
new Gymnasium for
Waimea High School in
support of their
interscholastic  sports
team activities,
primarily indoor court
sports which includes R R e R
Basketball, Volleyball, Wresting and Cherlealng. The new Gymnasiu will also
support other interscholastic sports, Physical Education activities and existing sports
complex activities with its ancillary facilities within the Gymnasium. Programmed
spaces include a Lobby, Main Court, Concession Booth, Trainers Room, Trainers’
Office, Athletic Director Office, Locker Rooms, Showers, and miscellaneous support
spaces.

2. Existing Conditions: Waimea High School is part of the Hawaii State Department of

Education West Kaua'i Complex and is the center of the Waimea community. The
West Kaua'i community is rural with
much of the economy centering on
agriculture, tourism, the military and
scientific/military research.
Established in 1881, Waimea High
School began as an elementary
school before becoming a high
@ school in 1935. Serving grades 9
= through 12, Waimea High School is
the oldest high school on the island
of Kaua'i and considered the
westernmost high school in the
United States.

The existing Waimea High School campus sits on various parcels. Much of the main
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campus buildings are on state-owned land and with a few on county-owned land,
including the existing Athletic Complex, which includes the Gymnasium and Waimea
Neighborhood Center. The state-owned parcel is bordered by Haina Road to the
north, Makeke Road to the west and Ola Road to the east. Tsuchiya Road bisects the
state and county parcels with Captain Cooks Memorial Park located between the
parcels.

B. Design Objective

1. General: The objective of the project is to provide a
modern, state-of-the-art Gymnasium that is functional,
safe, cost effective and visually appealing. The new
Gymnasium’s style will blend effortlessly with the #Y
campus and community and enhance the visual
environment of not only the immediate campus setting,
but the Waimea community in general. The
Gymnasium design shall represent a modern/up-to-
date school facility, be non-institutional in character and
respect the existing context of the campus and
community, and be exciting for the students, faculty,
and guests of Waimea High School.

2. Imagery/Aesthetics: The overall design should enhance the visual environment of the
immediate campus setting as well as the Waimea community in general. The
Gymnasium design shall represent a modern/up-to-date school facility, being non-
institutional in character, respect the existing context of the campus and community
and be exciting for the students, faculty, and guests of Waimea High School. The
Gymnasium’s main entrance design shall convey the language of hierarchy and be
easily identified as the front. Steps fronting the main entrance will also serve as
seating in the event, outdoor events occur in the existing courtyard. Appropriate
exterior signage to be provided near the main entrance and be visible from the street
to help clearly identify the function of the facility.

Interior surfaces shall be light in color to brighten the spaces and make the space feel
warm and inviting. The interior design to offer the same interest, excitement, high
energy, and professionalism that can be found in other modern high school
gymnasiums.

C. Functional and Technical Requirements

1. Program Requirements: The new Waimea High School Gymnasium to be designed
to accommodate current student enrollment and support present curriculum. The
FADS are based on the current enroliment of 600 students and is similar to the new
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Kapa’a High School Gymnasium.

The program and functional areas as outlined in the FADS was provided as guidance
for the school to conform to the standards as outlined. The authorized total (rounded)
area is 18,518 Net Gross-Feet (NSF). The FADS do not account for utility support
spaces such as Electrical, Communication or Mechanical. Rooms, and circulation
spaces and does not account for existing spaces which are not part of the current
Hawai'i State Department of Education Educational Specifications (EDSPECS) for
High Schools, such as the Stage or Weight Room. If those spaces are desired by the
school, tradeoffs with existing spaces may be executed, provided the total area is not

surpassed.
SPACE NEW EDSPECS | WAIMEA HS PROVIDED
WORK AREA GYM FADS AREA
Lobby Area '
Office/Restroom Shower 1 180 180 187
PE Equipment Room 1 100 160 117
Janitor’s Closet 1 40 80 88
Electrical Room Area by Designer
Men’s Toilet (Public) 1 324 340 320
Women'’s Toilet (Pubilic) 1 353 370 335
Concession Booth 1 240 240 248
Ticket Booth 1 50 80 -
Lobby 1 1070 900 360
Main Floor 1 11,817 12,540 11,551
General Storage 1 200 400 210

Electrical & Heater Area by Designer

Room
Janitor’s Closet 1 40 80 -
Boys’ JV Facilities v
Locker Room 1 320 320 185
Toilet 1 96 96 i
Varsity / J.V. Drying 1 128 128
Room

i 502
Varsity / J.V. Shower 1 96 96
Booth
Varsity / J.V. Shower 1 9% 96
Room
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SPACE NEW EDSPECS | WAIMEA HS PROVIDED
WORK AREA GYM FADS AREA

Trainer's Room 1 - 1,300 872

Boys’ Varsity Facilities

Locker Room 1 320 320 235

Toilet 1 96 96 *

‘Girls’ JV Facilities ,

Locker Room 1 320 320 185

Toilet 1 96 96

\éigsr:y / J.V. Drying 1 128 128 -

Varsity / J.V. Shower 1 96 96

Booth

\F/;Lsrlrt]y /J.V. Shower 1 96 96

Girls’ Varsity Facilities 4

Locker Room 1 320 320 220

Toilet 1 96 96 *

Gender Neutral Locker Rooms ' :

Locker Room A 1 150 150 180

Locker Room B 1 150 150 180

* JV and Varsity Toilet Combined into Shared Space

Bid Alternative 1:

Wrestling Room 1 1800 2,304 2,076
Multi-Purpose Room 1 900 900 875
Mechanical Area by Designer

The project includes two Bid Alternatives:
a. Bid Alternative 1: Provide air conditioning for existing Buildings ‘S’, ‘T", and ‘U’
due to its proximity to the project site and the potential for noise and dust.
b. Bid Alternative 2: Add Wrestling Room, Multi-Purpose, and Mechanical Room.

2. Site Layout: The project site to be located on the state-owned parcel closer to the
main campus thereby allowing the continued use of the existing Gymnasium for the
duration of construction, of which is of utmost importance to Waimea High School.

3. Interior Design: Construction and finishes (walls, floor, and ceiling) should support the

cohesive image and theme of the facility. The durability and maintenance of the
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interior construction and finishes are also a primary consideration in selection of
materials. Interior surfaces shall be light in color in order to brighten the spaces and
make a room feel warm and inviting. The interior design to offer the same interest,
excitement, high energy and professionalism that can be found in other modern high
school gymnasiums.

D. Design Solution

1. Site Plan: The new Gymnasium will be sited on the main campus, within the open
courtyard, south of the existing Administration Building and adjacent to the existing
Music Building. Its location is convenient and beneficial as it will allow for the functions
of the building, e.g., locker rooms, showers, etc. to be shared by the surrounding sports
field activities and permits for all physical education and sport activities to be grouped
at the southern end of campus. The proposed walkways, which surround the new
Gymnasium, will connect to existing walkways with the aid of a new set of stairs and
accessible ramp.

- BID OPTION:

WRESTLING / CHEER ROOM
~ WEIGHT ROOM
MECHANICAL ROOM

=) |
=)
=)
w
x
=
=
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The current working site plan supports the project program and function while
preserving as much of the front lawn (courtyard) as feasibly possible as requested by
Waimea High School.

Due to site constraints, parking for the new Gymnasium will be in two separate areas,
one on-site, the other off-site. The on-site parking lot, consisting of 18 parking stalls
and 2 accessible parking stalls, is located within a grassed area off Ola Road, within
the Waimea High School campus and adjacent to the existing Music Building. The
off-site parking lot, consisting of 78 parking stalls and 3 accessible parking stalls, is
located in an empty, sparsely grassed lot owned by the County of Kaua'i, south of
Tsuchiya Road and north of the existing Gymnasium. A virtual meeting was held on
February 11, 2022, with the County of Kaua'i Mayor, representatives from the
Department of Parks and Recreation, the Department of Education and Design
Partners Incorporated, to discuss the off-site parking lot, in support of the new
Gymnasium on County land. The County of Kaua'i was receptive to the parking lot
and further discussions with the DOE are ongoing.

2. Building Plan: The Gymnasium'’s “L-shaped” footprint is a result of the site constraints
and existing classroom buildings to the north and Music Building to the east. The floor
plan is organized for maximum efficiency and arranged in a functional manner with
simple circulation schemes that allow for easy wayfinding. The space and program
space requirements, building layouts were developed through a series of on-site
meeting with representatives from DOE Facilities, Waimea High School, DAGS Kaua'i,
West Kaua'i Complex ASA and the design team. Several iterations of the concept
layouts were presented to the project stakeholders. The current layout best addresses
feedback from the Waimea High School Principal, Vice Principal, and Athletic Director,
as well as other stakeholders including DOE Facilities Planner and Project Manager.

The Gymnasium’s main entry on the west end provides a direct connection to the
existing courtyard and off-site parking. Stepped seating adjacent to the main entry not
only serves as seating for courtyard events, but also provides a student hangout
space. The Lobby functions as the hub of the Gymnasium with access to the
Concession Stand, Main Court, Training Room, Athletic Director’s Office, and support
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spaces such as the public restrooms and utility spaces. The Main Court consists of
one regulation Basketball (94-feet x 50-feet) / Volleyball court, two (2) practice cross
courts with a seating capacity of 824 (includes 8 accessible seats). A motorized
vertical-acting divider curtain between the practice courts offers the flexibility to easily
divide the space into two. Locker rooms and showers are directly-accessible from the
Main Court and to hallways leading to the exterior for easy access to the sports fields
to the south. Bid Alternative 2, if exercised, will add a Wrestling/Cheer Room, Multi-
Purpose Room, and Mechanical space at the east end.

3. Enhanced Hurricane Protection: In compliance with Hawaii State Building Code
Section U103, Section 426, the project being a state-owned public high occupancy
building of Risk Category Ill, and in compliance with IBC Table 1604.5 which states
“enclosed and partially enclosed structures whose primary occupancy is public
assembly with an occupant load greater than 300" will be designed for enhanced
hurricane protection. At least 50-percent of the net square feet of a facility, excluding
spaces such as Mechanical Rooms, Electrical Rooms, and Storage spaces, will be
constructed to qualify as an enhanced protection area. In addition, toilet and hand
washing facilities will be located and accessible from within the perimeter of the
enhanced hurricane protection area.

4, Finish Materials: All interior and exterior finish materials are proposed for their
functionality, durability, cost effectiveness, and compatibility with the surrounding
context and Waimea community. The interior materials, specifically, shall be easily
maintainable and replaceable while meeting functional requirements. The following
finishes are recommended and priced:

a. Exterior: Primary exterior finish will be reinforced, painted, CMU and light metal
framing with board and batten siding.

The roofing system will be standing seam metal roof over metal decking with an
integral acoustical and insulation system.

Exterior windows will be a combination of factory-finished aluminum fixed and
awning windows with a pre-finished clear anodized finish. Exterior windows will
use an insulated glazing system with a Low-E coating meeting hurricane and
windborne debris requirements. Glazing units are selected for high visible light
transmittance for better daylighting and a low solar heat gain coefficient for energy
efficiency. The awning windows and exterior storm louvers together, will also
provide the required ventilation in compliance with Hawaii State Building Code
Section U103.

Similar to the exterior windows, the glazed entry doors will be of identical clear
anodized aluminum finish and selected for its durability, cost-effectiveness, and
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compatibility while best serving the facility’s functions while withstanding the
hot/humid and corrosive environment.

All exposed metal hardware and fasteners will be stainless steel or other extremely
rust- and corrosion-resistant material.

b. Interior: Primary wall finishes consists of painted CMU and impact resistant
gypsum wall board walls. Acoustical ceiling tiles (ACT) and painted gypsum
wallboard will be the primary ceiling finish in the occupied spaces. Some
specialized spaces will have acoustical wall treatments and other finishes with high
acoustical qualities. Most spaces will receive sealed concrete and resilient flooring
and wall base. The Lobby, restrooms, and showers will have ceramic tile flooring
and ceramic tile wainscoting where applicable. The Main Gymnasium floor to
consist of a fixed resilient athletic (maple) wood flooring system with safety wall
padding and acoustic wall panels on the surrounding walls.

Interior doors will be painted hollow metal doors and frames. Cabinets will be
constructed from solid hardwood with plastic laminate finishes and solid surface

countertops on marine-grade plywood.

E. Standards and References

International Building Code (IBC), 2012 Edition.
Hawaii State Building Code, with Amendments to the 2018 ICC International Building
Code

e |ICC 500/ NSSA Standard for the Design and Construction of Storm Shelters
Americans with Disabilities Act and Architectural Barriers Act Accessibility Guidelines
dated 23 July 2010.
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STRUCTURAL BASIS OF DESIGN

3
|
A. Enhanced Hurricane Protection Area: ‘
|
|

The gymnasium structure and attached spaces are classified as a Risk Category lll structure
as determined by the 2018 International Building Code (IBC-18). To conform to the Hawaii
State Building Code Appendix U, the gymnasium structure is to be designed as an Enhanced
Hurricane Protection Area (EHPA). The EHPA provisions of the building code establish
minimum life safety design criteria for high occupancy buildings intended to be occupied
during hurricanes up to Saffir Simpson Category 3.

emergency vehicle access, quantity of toilets and sinks, ventilation and standby electrical
system. The EHPA criteria for the design of structural elements differs primarily with the
enclosure classification of the building. For a typical Risk Category lll building not designated
as an EHPA, only the glazing needs to impact-resistant or have impact-resistant protection.
For an EHPA, the entire building envelope must not be perforated or penetrated by windborne
debris. Compliance to the impact-resistance criteria is by determined by meeting the criteria
of ASTM E1996-20 “Standard Specification for Performance of Exterior Windows, Curtain
Walls, Doors, and Impact Protective Systems Impacted by Windborne Debris in Hurricanes.”

EHPA criteria addresses many areas of the design including but not limited to siting, |
The missile level required by Appendix U of the Hawaii State Building Code is Level D.

However, based on the wind load provisions of Appendix W in the building code, the

gymnasium structure would be in Wind Zone 3 requiring a Level E missile. This increase in

large missile criteria is due to the structure being within one mile of the coastline. Being that

the provisions of Appendix W require higher impact-resistance, we will require the building

envelope to meet ASTM E1996-20, Level E missile.

B. Structural Systems:

The new gymnasium can be divided into 4 distinct areas. The following describes the |
structural systems for each area of the structure.

1. Lobby/Offices: This area consists of the lobby, concession, boys’ and girls’ restrooms,
storage, utilities, offices, training, laundry and janitorial rooms. This area is a part of
the designated EHPA. With the impact-resistant building envelope, this area is
considered an ‘“enclosed building” for determining the wind internal pressure
coefficient.

The roof at the Lobby/Offices is a hip roof which dies into the taller wall of the actual
gymnasium. The roof is pitched at 215:12 slope. The roof is framed with cold-formed
steel (CFS) trusses spaced at 2'-0" on center. The trusses are a delegated design
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system meaning the contractor will be responsible for design, fabrication and
installation of the CFS framing system. This allows different manufacturers of CFS
trusses the ability to offer a bid based on their proprietary shapes and system. Girder
trusses will be located at a 12°-0” setback from the plate line and stepdown trusses
used beyond that. Hip and jack trusses framing into the girder trusses complete the
roof framing. The roof diaphragm is 33 mil (20 ga.) steel roof decking. The trusses
extend past the plate line to frame the 4’-0” eaves. Eaves will have a soffit so that the
CFS material will not remain exposed. Fascias will be fabricated from CFS as well.

Concrete masonry units (CMU) walls will be used at the perimeter of the lobby/offices
area. The CMU walls will have reinforcement and use 8" nominal block. The CMU
blocks will be laid in a running bond pattern and will be grouted solid. A 16 inch deep
reinforced concrete collar will be at the top of the CMU wall and the trusses will bear
directly on the concrete collar. Lintels over openings in the wall will be made of CMU
or reinforced cast-in-place concrete.

Foundations will be shallow, reinforced concrete wall footings along the perimeter of
the structure and at any interior CMU bearing walls. Wall footings will have a concrete
stem extending to the finish floor elevation. Locations of relatively large concentrated
loads will have a square spread footing of reinforced concrete placed integral with the
wall footing.

Floor will be 472 inch thick reinforced concrete place over 15 mil thick vapor barrier, 4
inch gravel base and an 8 inch subbase of aggregate base course. Concrete mixture
will have a relatively low water-cementitious material ratio (w/cm) to help mitigate
problems associated with moisture level of the concrete and shrinkage cracks. Saw
cut control joints will also be used to control random cracking due to the concrete
shrinking as it dries.

2. Gymnasium: The actual gymnasium area of the structure is much taller than the other
areas with a plate height of 28'-0". The roof is a Dutch gable shape with a pitch of
2Y2:12 and a 6'-0" overhang at the eaves. Because of the open space, this area is the
main part of the EHPA. W.ith the impact-resistant building envelope, this area is
considered an “enclosed building” for determining the wind internal pressure
coefficient even with the louvers considered as openings.

Hot-dip galvanized structural steel will be used to frame the gymnasium roof.
Structural steel trusses with spans of 100 feet will be used along with girder trusses at
a setback of 28’-0" from the plate line. Hip and jack trusses frame the roof at the ends
of the gymnasium. Spacing of trusses vary but are approximately 20'-0” on center at
the side walls and 21’-4" on center at the end walls. Top and bottom chord of the
trusses are wide flange shapes and web members will be square hollow structural
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sections (HSS). Trusses will have a 4’-0” tall heel at the bearing ends along the
perimeter of the structure. The tall heel is used to increase the overall depth of the
truss in order to control deflections. The framing will remain exposed at the eaves.
Trusses will be designed and detailed for field assembly. Trusses will be supported
on reinforced concrete columns at the side walls and 12" CMU walls at the ends of the
gymnasium. A reinforced concrete collar will be cast on top of the perimeter walls.

Wide flange purlins will support the 33 mil (20 ga.) steel roof decking. Purlins will be
flush with the truss top chords and be spaced 3'-0” on center at the eaves and 5'-0" to
7'-0" elsewhere. Bottom flange bracing will be provided for stability of the purlin when
subjected to net uplift loading. Rectangular HSS sections will be used for fascias.

Side walls of the gymnasium will have reinforced concrete columns supporting the
trusses. The concrete collar will run between columns. Below the collar will be
ventilation louvers that meet the windborne debris impact-resistance criteria. Below
the louvers will be 12" reinforced CMU.

End walls will be constructed of nominal 12 inch reinforced concrete masonry blocks.
Reinforced CMU and concrete lintels will span over openings in the walls. CMU will
be laid in a running bond pattern.

Foundation for the gymnasium will be constructed with reinforced concrete. Square
spread footings will be provided at the columns and continuous wall footings
elsewhere. At the spread footings the columns will continue below grade and bear
directly on the footing. At the wall footings, the CMU will extend below grade to the
top of footing.

The gymnasium floor will be 5-inch reinforced concrete placed over 15 mil vapor
barrier, 4 inch gravel base and an 8 inch subbase of aggregate base course. At the
court area, the slab will be depressed to allow installation of an athletic flooring system.
Concrete mixture will have relatively low w/cm ratio to help mitigate problems
associated with moisture level of the concrete and shrinkage cracks. Saw cut control
joints will also be used to control random cracking due to the concrete shrinking as it
dries.

3. Locker rooms: The locker rooms are in a single-story structure located at the opposite
end of the gym from the lobby/office portion of the structure. It contains locker rooms,
showers, and toilets. Access to the gym is through interior doorways. The structures
included with Bid Alternative #2 (Wrestling/Cheer and Multi-purpose Rooms,) will
attach to the end of the locker room structure if the bid alternate is accepted. If Bid
Alternative #2 is not accepted, the roof at the end of the locker rooms will be a Dutch
gable. If Bid Alternative #2 is selected, the locker room roof will frame into the wall of
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the wrestling/cheer room. The opposite end of the roof frames into the end wall of the
gymnasium. The locker room has a 2'%:12 pitch with a ridge at the centerline and 4'-
0” overhang at the eaves. This area is a part of the designated EHPA. With the
impact-resistant building envelope, this area is considered an “enclosed building” for
determining the wind internal pressure coefficient.

The roof at the Locker Rooms is framed with CFS trusses pitched at 2'2:12 slope and
spaced at 2'-0” on center. The trusses are a delegated design system meaning the
contractor will be responsible for design, fabrication and installation of the CFS framing
system. This allows different manufacturers of CFS trusses the ability to offer a bid
based on their proprietary shapes and system. The roof diaphragm is 33 mil (20 ga.)
steel roof decking. The trusses extend past the plate line to frame the 4’-0" eaves.
Eaves will have a soffit so that the CFS material will not remain exposed. Fascias will
be fabricated from CFS as well.

Exterior bearing wall will be constructed with 8-inch nominal CMU laid in running bond.
Lintels over openings will be CMU or cast-in-place concrete. Both sides of the hallway
that runs down the middle of the structure are bearing walls and will be 8-inch CMU
was well. All of the CMU walls will be reinforced and grouted solid.

Exterior and interior CMU walls will be supported with shallow, reinforced concrete
wall footings. CMU walls will extend below grade to the top of footing.

The locker room floor will be 4% inch reinforced concrete placed over 15 mil vapor
barrier, 4-inch gravel base and an 8 inch subbase of aggregate base course. Concrete
mixture will have relatively low w/cm ratio to help mitigate problems associated with
moisture level of the concrete and shrinkage cracks. Saw cut control joints will also
be used to control random cracking due to the concrete shrinking as it dries.

4. Bid Alternative #2: If accepted, this Alternative adds a wrestling/cheer room next to
the locker rooms and a multi-purpose room at the end of the structure. An interior
hallway would separate the wrestling room from the locker rooms. The wrestling room
has a plate height of 16'-8" which is above both the locker rooms and the multi-purpose
room with plate heights of 10°’-8". The roof at the wrestling room is a gable end roof
while the roof at the multi-purpose room has a Dutch gable at the free end and flush
frames to the wrestling wall at the other end. The rooms provided with Bid Alternative
#2 are not a part of the EHPA. However, the wrestling wall supports a portion of the
locker room roof. Therefore, the design will have to consider effects on the EHPA if
the wrestling room is destroyed during the storm. For this reason, it is prudent to
design the wrestling room and multi-purpose room with the same wind provisions,
including impact resistance, of the EHPA. '
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The wrestling room roof included with Bid Alternative #2 will be framed with CFS
trusses. The roof is a gable end and will utilize a gable end truss above the plate line.
Roof overhang at the gable end is 2'-0". Overhang at the eaves is 4’-0". CFS trusses
will be spaced at 2’-0” on center and support a 33 mil (20 ga.) steel roof deck. Eaves
will have a soffit to protect the steel from direct exposure to the elements. Fascia will
be a CFS member with shape dependent on truss system incorporated in the
construction. '

The roof at the multi-purpose room is a Dutch gable also framed with CFS trusses.
The girder truss is located at a 12’-0" setback. Hip and jack trusses are used to form
the hip portion of the roof. Roof overhang at the eaves is 4’-0". Like all the other CFS
roofs, the eaves will have a soffit and the fascia will be a CFS shape.

Both the wrestling room and the multi-purpose room will use 8” nominal CMU walls.
Construction will be similar to that described for the lobby/office portion of the structure.

Foundations at both rooms in Bid Alternative #2 will be shallow, reinforced concrete
wall footings along the perimeter of the structure and at any interior CMU bearing walls.
CMU walls will extend below grade to the concrete footings.

Floor slab at the wrestling room will be 5-inch thick reinforced concrete. Floor at the
multi-purpose room will be 4% inch thick reinforced concrete. The slabs at both rooms
will be constructed over 15 mil thick vapor barrier, 4-inch gravel base and an 8-inch
subbase of aggregate base course. Concrete mixture will have relatively low w/cm
ratio to help mitigate problems associated with moisture level of the concrete and
shrinkage cracks. Saw cut control joints will also be used to control random cracking
due to the concrete shrinking as it dries.

C. Design Criteria

1. Risk Category: 1] iBC
2. Roof Live Load: 20 psf IBC

3. Wind Design Data:

Basic Wind Speed (V) 145 mph IBC

Allowable stress design wind speed (Vass) 115 mph IBC

Topographic Factor (Kx) 14 HSBC

Directionality Factor (Kq) - MWFRS 0.75 HSBC
Components & Cladding 0.75 HSBC

Exposure Category C HSBC

Enclosure Classification Enclosed ASCE 7
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Preliminary Basis of Design

Internal Pressure Coefficient (GCp:)
Gust Effect Factor (G)

4. Earthquake Design Data:
Importance Factor (/o)
Mapped Accelerations (Ss)

(S1)

Site Class

Design Accelerations  (Sps)
(Sb1)

Seismic Design Category

+0.18 ASCE7

0.85 ASCE 7
1.25 ASCE7
0.189¢g USGS Web Services
0.065¢g USGS Web Services
B Geotechnical Report
0.126 g
0.037g
A ASCE 7

Exemption from Seismic Provisions. Structures assigned to Seismic Design
Category A do not need to comply with seismic design provisions. ASCE 7-16,

Section 11.7

5. Windbormne debris missile impact for building enclosure elements:

ASTM E1996-14, Wind Zone 3, Enhanced Protection, Missile Level E

6. Foundation: From Geotechnical Report
Allowable Bearing Pressure:
Dead Load + Live Load
Dead + Live + Wind
Passive Earth Pressure
Coefficient of Friction

D. Material Properties:

3,000 psf

4,000 psf

300 pcf (3,000 pcf, maximum)
04

1. Concrete Compressive Strenath at 28-days:

Footings
Slabs-on-Grade
Columns and Walls
Lintels/Beams

2. Steel Reinforcement:
Deformed Bar

Welded Wire Reinforcement

3. Concrete Masonry Units:
Hollow Concrete Units

Mortar
Grout (compressive strength)

D Design Partners Incorporated

4,000 psi
4,500 psi
4,000 psi
4,000 psi

ASTM A615, Grade 60
ASTM A706, Grade 60
ASTM A1060, Galvanized

ASTM C90. Normal Weight
ASTM C270, Type M
ASTM C476 (3,000 psi at 28-days)
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Specified Design Strength (f;,) 2,000 psi by Unit Strength Method
3. Structural Steel:

Channels, Angles, Plates, & Bars ASTM A36

Wide Flange Sections ASTM A992

Steel Pipe ASTM A53, Grade B

Hollow Structural Sections- Rectangular ASTM A500, Grade B, F,=46 ksi
Round ASTM A500, Grade B, F,=42 ksi

Steel Roof Deck ASTM A653, Minimum F,=33 ksi

High-Strength Bolts ASTM F3125, Grade A325, Type |

Anchor Bolts ASTM F1554, Grade 36

Welding Electrodes E70XX

4, Cold-Formed Steel:
Framing Components - 54 mils and heavier = ASTM C955, Grade 50
43 mils and lighter ASTM C955, Grade 33
Finish Galvanized, G60

E. References

¢ HSBC Hawaii State Building Code, Adopted April 20, 2021

o |BC-18 International Building Code, 2018 Edition

e ASCE7-16 Minimum Design Loads and Associated Criteria for Buildings and
Other Structures, 2016 Edition

s ACI117-10 Specification for tolerances for Concrete Construction and Materials,
2010 Edition

e ACI301-10 Specifications for structural Concrete, 2010 Edition

e ACI318-14 Building Code Requirements for Structural Concrete, 2014 Edition

e AISC 303-16 Code of Standard Practice for Steel Buildings and Bridges”, 2016
Edition

e AISC 341-16 Seismic Provisions for Structural Steel Buildings, 2016 Edition

e AISC 360-16 Specification for Structural Steel Buildings, 2016 Edition

e AISIS100-16 North American Specification for the Design of Cold-Formed Steel
Structural Members, 2016 Edition

e AISIS200-07 North American Standard for Cold-Formed Steel Framing — General
Provisions, 2007 Edition

o AISI S240-15 North American Standard for Cold-Formed Steel, 2015 Edition

e AWS D1.1-15 Structural Welding Code — Steel, 2015 Edition

e AWS D1.3-18 Structural Welding Code — Sheet Steel, 2018 Edition

o AWS D1.4-18 Structural Welding Code — Reinforcing Steel, 2018 Edition

e SDIRD1.0-10 Standard for Steel Roof Deck, 2010 Edition
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o TMS 402-16 Building Code for Masonry Structures, 2016 Edition
e TMS 602-16 Specification for Masonry Structures, 2016 Edition

D Design Partners Incorporated Structural - 8
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FIRE PROTECTION / LIFE SAFETY BASIS OF DESIGN

A. Introduction and General Description

The project calls for constructing a new one-story gymnasium with locker rooms and
supporting spaces. A portion of the building will be a bid option; however, the analysis will
be based on the combined building with the bid option.

B. Building Code Analysis
1. Occupancy (IBC):
The following occupancies occur within the facility:

Description ‘ Occupancy Group
Gymnasium Group A-4 (Assembly)
Offices Group B (Business)
Training Rooms, Locker Rooms Group E (Education)
Storage, Mechanical, and Electrical Rooms | Incidental

2. Height and Area Limitations:

Frontage Increase (506.3.3):

Ir = [F/P — 0.25] W/30

F = 355 ft

P =810t

W =30ft

lr=0.188

Multiple Story Increase (506.2.3) — Not applicable
Allowable Area (506.2)

The building will be analyzed as a mixed occupancy and will comply with the
most restrictive requirements.

Aa=At+[NS X1
Occupanc Allowable Area | Allowable | Allowable Area Proposed
pancy per Floor (sf) Area (NS) with Increase Area (sf)
A-4 (1IB) 38,000 9,500 39,788 23,394
B (11B) 92,000 23,000 - —
E (lIB) 58,000 14,500 - —
B Design Partners Incorporated . Fire Protection / Life Safety - 1
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Preliminary Basis of Design

The building’s area complies.

Proposed Allowable Proposed
Occupancy A Ilpwable Height (ft) Number of Number of
Height (ft) . .
Stories Stories
A-4 (11B) 75 42 3 1
B (1IB) 75 42 4 1
E (11B) 75 42 3 1
The building's height and number of stories complies.
3. Building Construction Type: The type of construction shall meet requirements set
forth in IBC Chapter 6 and Table 601. The facility will be constructed as a Type II-
B.
Type lI-B Construction Rating Required (hr) | Rating Provided (hr)
Structural Frame 0 0
Bearing walls, Interior 0 0
Bearing walls, Exterior 0 0/1
Nonbearing walls, Exterior
. 0 0
(see section 7)
Nonbearing walls, Interior | 0 0
Floor Construction 0 0
Roof Construction 0 0
4, Building Separation and Exposure Protection: The exposures on each side of the
building is:
Exposure Frontage Distance | Fire Separation Distance
(ft) (ft)
North: | 38 ft to Studies Complex | 20 ft 10 ft
20 ft to Music Building 20 ft 10 ft
East: | 15 ft to Music Building 15 ft 51t
57 ft to Access Road 30+ ft 30 ft
West: | 30 ft to Front Lawn 30 ft 30 1t
South: | 15 ft to Tsuchiya Road | 30 ft 22 ft

Occupancy Group

Separation (ft)

Exterior Walls

A, B,E-TypellB

10> X=>5

1 hour

A, B, E-Type lIB

30> X=>10

0 hour

D Design Partners Incorporated Fire Protection / Life Safety - 2
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With a minimum of 10 ft separation, the exterior walls do not have to be rated. For
the East wall facing the Music Building, the exterior wall must be one hour rated.
From IBC 705.8.1, a sprinklered building with exterior walls that aren’t required to
be rated is permitted unlimited unprotected openings. For the East wall, Table
705.8 allows 25% unprotected openings.

5. Fire Rated Separation:

a. IBC Occupancy Separation: The building design is based on non-
separated use, therefore no occupancy separation walls are required.

b. Fire Walls: There are no fire wall requirements for this project.
c. Fire Barriers: There are no barrier requirements.
d. Fire Partitions and Smoke Partitions: There are no partition requirements.
6. Interior Finish and Insulation: (Table 803.13)
Enclosed Vertical . ' Rooms
Occupancy Exitways Other Exitways
A4 B B C
B B C Cc
E B C c
7. Fire Protection Systems (Section 9):
a. IBC 903.2.1.4 requires an automatic fire sprinkler system when the
assembly area exceeds 12,000 sf,
b. IBC 903.2.2 requires an automatic fire sprinkler system when the
educational area exceeds 12,000 sf.
c. IBC 906 requires portable fire extinguishers for the A-4, B and E
occupancies.
d. IBC 907.2.1 requires a fire alarm system in an assembly occupancy. IBC

907.2.3 requires a voice evacuation type fire alarm system.
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Preliminary Basis of Design

8. Means of Egress: (Section 10)
a. Occupant Load Factors (Table 1004.5)

1) Assembly - 15 sf/person

2) Assembly Bleachers — 18"/person

3) Locker Room — 50 sf/person

4) Office - 100 ft¥/person

5) Mechanical, Storage Rooms — 300 sf/person
Location

Area Occupant Load Factor Occupant
1st Floor (SF) (SF/person) Load
Concession Stand 248 100 2
Janitor/Mechanical 278 300 1
Womens/Mens Restrooms 651 100 6
PE Storage 315 300 1
Office 240 100 2
AD Office 240 100 2
Training Room 871 15 53
Telecom/Electric Room 260 300 1
Gymnasium (fixed seats) 800 NA 800
“Gymnasium Open Floor 6250 15 416
Storage/Mechanical 173 300 1
Locker Room A 1063 50 21
Locker Room B 1059 50 21
Wrestling/Cheer Room 2036 15 135
Multi-Purpose Room 874 15 58
Mechanical Room 304 300 1
Total 1%t Floor 1,521

b. Egress Width, Table 1005.1

1)

2)

D Design Partners Incorporated

Horizontal - 0.15 inches/person
Vertical - 0.20 inches/person
Exit capacity provided:

Single Door — 34"/ 0.15 = 226 persons
Double Door — 68"/ 0.15 = 453 persons
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Preliminary Basis of Design

Main Entrance:

2 X Double Doors =2 X 453 = 906 persons
Hall #1:

1 X Single Door =1x226 =226 persons
Gymnasium:

3 X Double Doors = 3 X453 = 1,359 persons
1 X Single Door=1x226 =226 persons

Corridor:
2 X Single Door =2 X226 =452 persons
Multipurpose:
2 X Single Door=2 X226 =452 persons
Total = 3,621 persons
Exit Discharge:
Stair 1 - 60"/ 0.20 = 300 persons
Stair2-72"7/0.20 = 360 persons

c. Means of Eqress Components:

1)

2)

3)

4)

1005.7.1 requires the door to not obstruct more than half of the
required egress width during its swing and not more than 7 inches
when it is fully open.

1010.1.2.1 requires exit doors to swing in the direction of egress for
occupant loads of 50 and greater.

1011.1 requires stairs to be a minimum of 44 inches. Stairs are a
minimum of 60 inches wide.

1020.2 requires exit access corridors to be a minimum of 44 inches.
The exit access corridors are a minimum of 72 inches wide.

d. Exit Access, Common Path of Travel, 1006.2.1

1)

The maximum common path of travel permitted is 75 feet.

e. Number of Exits, Table 1006.2.1:

Two exits are to be provided if the occupant load exceeds the following:

Assembly 49 persons
Educational 49 persons

‘ ,) Design Partners Incorporated
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f. Arrangement of Exits, Section 1007.1.1:

Where two exits are required, the exits or exit access doors shall be
separated by one half the diagonal of the area being considered. Allrooms,
combined rooms and the floors comply.

g. . Travel Distance, Table 1017.1

For sprinklered assembly and educational occupancies, the maximum
travel distance is 250 feet.

h. Corridors, Section 1020.1:

Corridors for A and E occupancies are not required to be rated when the
building is sprinklered.

i. Dead End Corridors, Section 1020.4

Dead ends in corridors are limited to 20 feet.

i Hlumination and Exit Signs:

Section 1008 requires the means of egress to be provided with lighting.

Section 1013.1 requires illuminated exit signs. No point shall be more than
100 feet from an exit sign.

k. Vertical Exit Enclosures, Section 1023:

Not applicable.

1. Assembly Occupancies, Section 1029:

Section 1029.2 requires the main entrance to an assembly be able to
accommodate half of the occupant load.

Section 1029.9.1 requires a minimum of 48" for stepped aisle with seating
on both sides. For seating on one side the aisle can be 36".

C. Fire Department Access

1. Building Access, Section 18.2.3.2:

Kauai Fire Code requires at least one door to be within 50 feet of the fire
department access road, 18.2.3.2.1.

All portions of the exterior of the building shall be within 450 feet of the fire

department access and water supply, 18.2.3.2.2 when the building is fully
sprinklered.
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D. Fire Sprinkler System

1. Design Criteria:
State Building Code, IBC 2018
Kauai Fire Code, NFPA 1-2012
NFPA 13, Installation of Sprinkler Systems, 2016
2. IBC Section 903: Requires sprinklers in assembly or educational occupancies
greater than 12,000 sf.
3. Sprinkler Hazard Classification: The office, locker rooms and gymnasium will be
classified as light hazard occupancy. The storage and mechanical spaces shall
be classified as Ordinary Hazard Group 2.
4. Sprinklers: Sprinklers shall be quick response, semi-recessed type in finished
spaces and quick response uprights or pendents in rooms without a finished ceiling.
5. Design Criteria: Sprinkler design criteria will be as follows:
Gymnasium, Locker Rooms
Occupancy Classification: Light Hazard
Design Density: 0.10 gpm/sf
Design Area: 1,500 sf
Hose Stream Allowance: 100 gpm
Storage, Mechanical Spaces
Occupancy Classification: Ordinary Hazard Group 2
Design Density: 0.20 gpm/sf
Design Area: Part of light hazard calculation
6. Fire Sprinkler System Water Supply: The fire protection water supply will be
connected to the existing line. A flow test will be conducted next submittal:
Static Pressure: XX psi
Residual Flow and Pressure: x,xxx gpm @ 20 psi
D Design Partners Incorporated Fire Protection / Life Safety - 7
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E. Portable Fire Extinguishers
1. Portable fire extinguishers shall be provided. Extinguishers shall be a minimum
2A:40B:C classification and shall be located in cabinets.
F. Fire Alarm System
1. Design Criteria:

State Building Code, IBC 2018
Kauai Fire Code, NFPA 1-2012
NFPA 72, National Fire Alarm Code, 2016

2, IBC 907.2.1 requires a fire alarm system in an assembly occupancy. IBC 907.2.3
requires a voice evacuation type fire alarm system.

3. A new fire alarm panel will be provided in the Gymnasium. This panel will report
to the main panel in the school office. The panel is also required to be remotely
monitored by Section 907.6.6.

4, The system will have manual initiation and automatic initiation. The system will
feature manual pull stations, smoke detector at the panel and sprinkler monitoring.

5. Audio and visual notification will be provided throughout the building.
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ECHANICAL BASIS OF DESIGN

A. Project Background

1. General Description: This project involves the new construction of a campus Gymnasium
building. Mechanical and Plumbing systems for this scope of work will be based upon the
requirements set forth in the proposed improvements for Waimea High School
Gymnasium Due Diligence report. The design will conform to the 2018 Uniform
Mechanical and Plumbing Codes, ASHRAE Standards, and DOE requirements.
Ventilation systems will be provided in a majority of the Facility, with air conditioning
provided in a few selected spaces. Exhaust systems will be provided for the locker rooms,
restrooms, janitor closets, mechanical and electrical rooms. New plumbing systems,
including waste, vent, hot and cold water and condensate systems, will be provided as
required by programming. In addition, the building will be provided design features due to
it being classified as a “shelter in place” facility.

This section will summarize the mechanical and plumbing concepts and the criteria for
which the project will be designed. The resulting mechanical and plumbing systems
design is intended to provide energy efficient, environmentally responsible, maintainable,
and long-lasting systems for Waimea High School.

B. Technical Requirements

1. HVAC Systems and Equipment: VRF and Standard Split DX Systems will be provided for
the air conditioning for this project and are highly efficient and maintenance friendly
systems. All Fan Coil Units will be provided with filtered outside air.

a. Training Room, Athletic Directors Office, and Multi-Purpose Team Room: These
spaces will be provided with a dedicated cooling only fan coil units with dedicated OA.

b. Main Gym, Locker Rooms, and the Wrestling Cheer Room: These spaces will be
provided with ventilation systems that will include outside air supply fans and exhaust
fans. Ceiling fans will also be provided in the Gymnasium Main Floor.

c. Restrooms, Janitors Closets, Mechanical and Electrical Rooms: These spaces will be
provided exhaust systems and with operational control as programmed.

d. Outside air (OA) for each conditioned space shall be provided through the louvers with
direct connection to FCU’s. Outside for ventilated spaces will be provided with
ventilation fans connected to louvers. OA supplied to the facility shall be equal to or
greater than the minimum required by the ASHRAE 62.1.
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e. The project shall include special design requirements for design in tropical
environments, such as coated coils and no roof mounted equipment.

2. Design Calculations: Cooling load calculations shall be performed using Trane Trace,
which is in compliance with the current edition of the ASHRAE Handbook of Fundamentals
and ASHRAE 90.1. Equipment shall be sized to meet the total load determined by the
calculations. Weather data used for the analysis shall be based on weather data provided
below in accordance with ASHRAE weather data. Room air flow requirements shall be
computed based on the individual room load. Values for internal cooling loads shall be
included in the computerized load calculations in accordance with ASHRAE
recommendations and user input.

e Latitude = 20.0231°N

¢ Longitude = 155.6717°W

s Elevation = 13 feet

e 1.0% Summer Design Dry Bulb Temperature = 88.7°F
e 1.0% Wet Bulb Temperature = 73.5

¢ 99.0% Winter Design Dry Bulb Temperature = 66.7°F
* Inside Temperatures:

Faculty and Student Activities: 74°F (ad;.).

Faculty and Administration Spaces: 74°F (adj.).
Concessions: 74°F (adj.).

Telecomm Room: 78°F (adj.).

Outside air requirements will be based on the requirements of ASHRAE 62.1-2007,
Table 6-1, Educational Facilities.

3. Ductwork: All supply and return air ductwork (except as otherwise noted) shall be
galvanized steel, 26 gauge or as recommended by SMACNA Duct Construction Standards
and shall be properly insulated to prevent condensation. All OA ductwork and dampers
shall be stainless steel considering the corrosive conditions of Hawaii.

4. Exhaust and Ventilation System: The ventilated and exhausted spaces shall be by inline
fan systems, with outside air intake and exhaust at wall louvers. Ventilation and exhaust
shall be continuous except during unoccupied periods in accordance with minimum flow
rates of ASHRAE 62.1. The building shall be ventilated and exhausted as follows:

a. Men's and Women's Toilets and Shower Rooms: Minimum of 50 cfm per toilet fixture
in accordance with ASHRAE Standard 62 or 10 ACH, whichever is greater.

b. Janitor's Closet: Minimum of 1.0 cfm/ft? in accordance with ASHRAE Standard 62 or
10 ACH, whichever is greater.
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c. Mechanical and Electrical Rooms: The mechanical and electrical rooms shall be
ventilated at 4 ACH.

d. Gymnasium Main Floor: This space is ventilated at a minimum of 2.5 ACH, with
ventilation fans and exhaust fans to ensure effective air change and air quality.

5. Energy Management System: The HVAC system shall be monitored by an electronic
direct digital control (DDC) Energy Management and Control System (EMCS) with the
capability of real time monitoring, trending, and controlling. The communications protocol
shall be compatible with Hawaii DOE design standards and shall be LonWorks or Bacnet.
The project shall provide advance water metering with remote recording and monitoring
capability for energy consumption.

6. Commissioning and Testing, Adjusting, and Balancing: Testing, adjusting, and balancing
of each system shall by the Contractor’s responsibility. Prior to testing, adjusting, and
balancing, the Contractor shall verify that the systems have been properly installed and
are operating as specified. Testing of individual items of equipment shall be performed
by a person authorized to perform such testing and startup by the equipment
manufacturer. The Contractor shall correct all systems and equipment found not in
compliance and shall be responsible for all labor and materials required for this effort.
AABC MN-1 or NEBB-01 shall be used as the standard for providing testing of air system.
Testing, adjusting, and balancing shall be performed in accordance with UFGS which
requires a qualified TAB agency. The selected standard shall be used throughout the
entire project. All recommendations and suggested practices contained in the selected
standard shall be considered mandatory. Instrumentation accuracy shall be in accordance
with selected standard.

7. Natural Ventilation Strategy: The typical requirement for natural ventilation will not be
applied to this project.

8. Existing Buildings S, T, and U will be provided with Packaged Terminal Air Conditioners
(PTAC) for each Classroom and Faculty space due to windows being closed for
construction dust and noise. In addition, ventilation fans with filtered inlets will be provided
for outside air.

9. Shelter-In-Place Design Features: For hurricane shelters,sper 2018 State Building Code,
mechanical ventilation shall be provided per the IMC and HVAC equipment mounted on
the exterior will have heavy duty anchorage.

C. Plumbing
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1. General: The plumbing system shall be designed and installed in accordance with the
2018 Uniform Plumbing Code. Inspection, sterilization, chlorination, and testing of the
plumbing system shall be performed as prescribed in the 2018 UPC. Specified materials
and equipment shall be standard products of a manufacturer regularly engaged in the
manufacture of such products. Specified equipment shall be equipment that has
performed satisfactory at least two years prior to bid opening.

2. Shelter-In-Place Requirements: Plumbing facilities shall be provided for Community
Shelters per 2018 State Building Code. and plumbing facilities that include toilets and hand
washing facilities, shall be provided.

3. Design Calculations: The plumbing design shall be based on the 2018 edition of the UPC
for domestic water, sanitary waste, and vent piping. All water piping shall be sized in
accordance with methods outlined in the 2018 UPC, to limit water velocity in the pipe to 8
ft/sec unless a lower velocity is recommended by the plumbing fixture manufacturer(s).

4. Equipment: Domestic hot water will be provided using electric tank type systems with
recirculation pumps. Hot water will be provided to showers, lav’'s and sinks.

5. Efficiency: Though this project is nota HCHPS project, the building domestic water system
shall be designed to use a minimum of 20% less water than the HCHPS water usage
baseline for the building. Calculations shall be based on estimated occupant usage and
shall include the following fixtures:

e Water closets, flush valve - 1.28 gallons per flush (gpf).
e Urinals - 0.125 gallons per flush.

o Lavatory faucets - 0.5 gallons per minute (gpm).

s Showers 1.5 GPM

o Kitchen sinks - 1.5 gpm.

¢ Drinking Fountains.

D. Standards and References

e NFPA 30, Flammable and Combustible Liquids Code, 2008.

e NFPA 90A, Installation of Air Conditioning and Ventilation Systems.

¢ Uniform Mechanical Code (UMC), 2018.

e Uniform Plumbing Code (IPC), 2018.

e ASHRAE 62.1-2007, Ventilation for Acceptable Indoor Air Quality.

o ASHRAE 90.1-2007, Energy Standard for Buildings Except Low-Rise Residential
Buildings.

+ ASHRAE Handbooks (Fundamentals, Systems and Equipment, Applications).

e Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractors’ National Association (SMACNA), HVAC
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Duct Construction Standards.
¢ 2014 I1CC 500/NSA Standard for the Design and Construction of Storm Shelters.
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ELECTRICAL / COMMUNICATIONS BASIS OF DESIGN

A. General Parameters

1. Existing Conditions:

a. Existing Power Distribution: The Waimea High School (WHS) receives electrical
power from Kauai Island Utility Cooperative (KIUC) utility pole: primary circuits
(4.16kV, 3-phase) are routed to KIUC's 750KVA pad-mounted transformer located
near the WHS's utility building. Secondary circuits, serve the existing Main Switch
Board ‘MSB' rated at 800A at 480Y/277V 3@. The ‘MSB' is integrated with a 400A PV
system, power factor correction capacitor and an external transfer switching scheme
to accommodate a portable generator. There is ample physical space within the
enclosure for new facility’s dedicated circuit breaker and the switchboard appears to
be in good condition.

Building S, T, and U are supported by a single 2P250A breaker located in the existing
MSB. Existing feeder is routed through electrical handhole ‘EHHG-1’, electrical
handhole ‘EHH-2', spliced inside EHH-2, then provide individual feeders to each
building.

b. Existing Program Bell System: The existing program bell system consists of a panel
located in the Library’s Telecom Room. The current system will be extended to the
new gymnasium building via underground infrastructure.

c. Existing Communication System: Existing communication system consist of an MDF
in the Telecom room of the existing Library Building. The new gymnasium building will
consist of a telecom backboard and IDF rack at the Telecom room and will be routed
to the existing MDF rack. All new communication outlets in the new building will be
routed back to the new IDF rack located in the Telecom Room. The existing ‘MDF’ has
adequate capacity to support and terminate the new fiber optic and cooper cables in
the new existing equipment rack,

B. Functional and Technical Requirements

1. The electrical design will include complete power, signal, and lighting systems for the new
Gymnasium. In addition, electrical improvements to support Building S, T, and U’s new

AC equipment.

2. Electrical Site Work:
Design purposes for the new gymnasium shall provide a new breaker and circuit in the
available space of the ‘MSB'. New circuits will utilize the existing spare underground
pathways from ‘MSB’ to ‘HHG-1' then 'HHG-3". New underground infrastructure shall be
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extended from ‘HHG-3' (via new electrical handholes) to support the new Gymnasium’s
electrical distribution system.

Existing building S, T, and U existing feeder shall be removed from each 480Y/277V
panel up to Main Switch Board. The existing conduit supporting the existing feeders will
remain and to be reused.

The three existing buildings shall be provided each with a new 3P150A breaker in MSB.
From MSB, a dedicated feeder for each building (3) shall be routed through EHH-1,
EHH-2, then to each respective building. Two new feeders shall be provided new conduit
and one feeder will utilize the 3" existing conduit.

The communication system shall provide a new 8"x8"x6 NEMA 4X SS rated pull-box on
the exterior wall of the existing Library building and new underground pathways from the
pull-box to the new Gymnasium telecom backboard utilizing ‘HHG-1’ then ‘HHG-3'.

3. Secondary Power Distribution:

a. New Gymnasium

vi.

The Electrical Room located will house distribution equipment including
panelboards, transformers, and manual transfer switch.

400A,480Y/277V incoming power from the Main Switch Board.

112.5 KVA transformer 480Y/277V to 208Y/120V shall be provided for general
purposes circuits.

75 KVA transformer 480Y/277V to°208Y/120V shall be provided for emergency
purposes circuits

A dedicated 480Y/277V and 208Y/120V panel will be used to serve emergency
loads.

208Y/120V,3PH service will be distributed throughout the new gymnasium to
receptacles and applicable mechanical equipment, 480Y/277V,3PH service will
be distributed throughout the new gymnasium to light fixtures and applicable
mechanical equipment.

b. Buildings S, T, U

The existing 100A,480Y/277V panels located in each building will be upgraded
to a 225A,480Y/277V Panel.

All existing circuits to be reconnected similarly as the previous existing
conditions.

45KVA transformer 480Y/277V to 208Y/120V shall be provided in each building
for new AC equipment panel.

A 208Y/120V panel will be installed to serve as a dedicated panel for AC
equipment.

4. Communications:

a. The Telecom Room shall house the distribution equipment including IDF rack and

D Design Partners Incorporated Electrical / Communications - 2



Waimea High School Preliminary Basis of Design
New Gymnasium
Waimea, Kaua'i, Hawaii

telecom backboards.

b. The IDF rack will be connected to the existing MDF in the library’s Telecom room.

c. Cable tray systems will be provided at the communication room to distribute data
cables.

d. Servers: Requirements will be coordinated with the School Tech Coordinator.

5. Lighting:

a. lllumination (footcandle) levels will comply with the latest IESNA Lighting Handbook,
and the lighting power densities will adhere to ASHRAE 90.1.

b. Lighting throughout the gymnasium will be designed to have a lighting automation
system to comply with the HI-CHPS EQ.C8 requirements. Light automation is not
required in Locker/Shower but will be provided.

c. Lighting automation system will include the following components:

i.  0-10 Volt Dimming Controllers
ii. Daylight Sensor
iii. Occupancy Sensors
iv.  Digital 5-Button Scene Switches with dimming option
d. Lighting automation system sequence of operations is as follows:
i.  General lllumination — All lights will illuminate at the recommended foot-candle
value per room type.
ii. A/V mode — All lights dim down to average 20 foot-candles.
ii. Daylight Zone Only — Lights closest to the window will dim accordingly to the
amount of sunlight is present. -

e. Interior lighting will be LED type, 3500-5000K color temperature.

f. Interior lighting will be controlled with occupancy sensors equipped with a manual
override. Occupancy sensors in the restrooms will be the ultrasonic sensor type to
help minimize lights turning off while restrooms are occupied.

g. Exterior lighting will be full-cutoff, LED type, controlled by a lighting control panel with
an integrated time clock for night light.

h. Emergency lighting utilizing integral battery packs will be provided to illuminate exit

paths. Integral battery packs will be connected to the un-switched leg of associated
lighting branch circuits serving the area. The Main Gym floor will use backup inverters
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to provide power to a limited amount high-bay fixtures at full capacity.

i. llluminated exit signs with integral battery packs will be provided for all emergency
exits and passageways as required by NFPA 101, Life Safety Code. LED type exit
signs will be utilized for energy efficiency.

6. Circuit Breakers: Branch circuits feeding receptacles and lighting fixtures will be protected
by thermal-magnetic, molded-case circuit breakers. All circuit breakers will be of the bolt-
on type. Sizing of protective devices will be made in accordance with the National Electric
Code (NEC).

7. Receptacles:

a. Receptacles located in classrooms will be UL Listed tamper resistant.

b. Receptacles adjacent to sinks, utility rooms, locker rooms, bathrooms. and at building
exteriors will be of the ground fault circuit interrupting (GFCI) type for personnel safety.
Weatherproof GFCI receptacles with cast while-in-use covers will be provided at
exterior locations. Weatherproof covers will be provided in the Main Gym Floor.

8. Electrical Enclosures: Electrical equipment enclosures will be NEMA Type 1 for interior
locations and NEMA type 4X 316 stainless steel for exterior locations.

9. Interior Wiring System: The electrical wiring system will consist of insulated copper
conductors in conduits or surface metal raceways. A separate, insulated, green
equipment grounding conductor will be provided for each feeder and branch circuit. PVC
conduit will be utilized underground or under floor slab.

10. Grounding: The existing neutral to ground bound is located at the Main Distribution Panel
and is to remain. The gymnasium building grounding systems will consist of a main
equipment ground bus in the electric room and telecommunication rooms. Equipment
ground busses will be connected to each other and to the main equipment ground bus.
The ground grid will have copper-clad ground rods driven to a depth of 10 feet. A code-
sized or larger ground conductor will be included in all raceways.

11. Emergency System: An emergency system consisting of 480Y/277V panel, 75KVA step
down transformer, 208Y/120V panel and manual transfer switch will be provided. The
emergency panel shall consist of all critical loads and shall adhere to ICC 500/NSSA. A
generator interlock box will be located at the exterior of the gymnasium for provision for a
portable generator.

12. Excluded Services:

a. Security system design.

D Design Partners Incorporated Electrical / Communications - 4



Waimea High School Preliminary Basis of Design
New Gymnasium
Waimea, Kaua’i, Hawaii

b. Provision for a Photovoltaic system design.

C. Standards and References

o American National Standards Institute (ANSI)

+ National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA)

« NFPA 70, National Electrical Code, 2008 edition

e 2006 NFPA1, Uniform Fire Code

e NFPA 72, National Fire Alarm Code, 2002 edition

* NFPA 101, Life Safety Code, 2006 edition

e 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design

o |ESNA Lighting Handbook Reference and Application, Ninth Edition
o Underwriters Laboratories (UL)

¢ Educational Specifications (EDSPECS) for High Schools

') Design Partners Incorporated Electrical / Communications - 5



Waimea High School Preliminary Basis of Design
New Gymnasium
Waimea, Kaua'i, Hawaii

APPENDICES

D Design Partners Incorporated



Waimea High School Preliminary Basis of Design
New Gymnasium
Waimea, Kaua'i, Hawaii

Appendices

GEOTECHNICAL
INVESTIGATION

D Design Partners Incorporated




GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION
WAIMEA HIGH SCHOOL

NEW GYMNASIUM

WAIMEA, KAUAI, HAWAII

DOE PROJECT NO.: Q43201-18

for

DESIGN PARTNERS, INC.

HIRATA & ASSOCIATES, INC.
W.0. 21-6528.1
January 20, 2022



January 20, 2022 Hirata & Associates
W.0.21-6528.1 i
Engincering

Mr. Kendall Ellingwood ITI

Hirata & Associates, Inc.

Design Partners Incorporated 99.1433 Koaha Pl
1580 Makaloa Street, Suite 1100 :I\“;"«,\'*'\f;('[')"_‘\‘m
Honolulu, Hawaii 96814 fax 808.486.0870

Dear Mr. Ellingwood:

Our report, "Geotechnical Investigation, Waimea High School, New Gymnasium, Waimea,
Kauai, Hawaii, DOE Project No.: Q43201-18," dated January 20, 2022, our Work Order 21-
6528.1 is enclosed. This investigation was conducted in general conformance with the scope of
services presented in our proposal dated May 6, 2021.

Borings B1, B3, B4, B7, and B9 encountered surface soil classified as tan and dark brown to
light brown silty sand in a loose to medium dense condition, extending to depths ranging from
about 1.5 to 5 feet. Beneath the silty sand, and from the surface in the remaining borings, was
brown to reddish brown clayey silt in a firm to stiff condition, extending to depths ranging from
about 3.5 to 13.5 feet. Boulders with maximum dimensions of about 1 to 2 feet were encountered
in borings B1, B2, B5, B7, and B9 between depths of about 2 and 12.5 feet. Thin seams of gray
silty clay in a stiff condition were encountered in borings B1, BS, B6, and B8, at depths ranging
between about 3.5 to 13 feet, respectively. Underlying the clayey silt was brown to gray
completely to slightly weathered basalt. The weathered basalt was in a medium hard to hard
condition and extended to the maximum depths drilled. Neither groundwater nor seepage water
was encountered in the borings.

Based on the finish floor elevation of the proposed gymnasium, site grading will generally
consist of maximum cuts of about 3.5 feet on the northeastern side and fill placements of about 2
to 3 feet on the southwestern side. Footing excavations are therefore expected to expose newly
placed fill and the insitu soils. To provide more uniform support, we recommend that all footings
and slabs-on-grade be underlain by 12 inches of imported granular structural fill.

Additional geotechnical recommendations for the design of foundations, slabs-on-grade,
retaining walls, and site grading are presented in this report.

We appreciate this opportunity to be of service. Should you have any questions concerning this
report, please feel free to call on us.

Very truly yours,
HIRATA & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Rick I.K. Yoshidsl,/P.E. Vice President

RIKY:JC
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GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION
WAIMEA HIGH SCHOOL
NEW GYMNASIUM
WAIMEA, KAUAI, HAWAII
DOE PROJECT NO.: Q43201-18

INTRODUCTION

This report presents the results of our geotechnical investigation performed for the
new gymnasium at Waimea High School in Waimea, Kauai, Hawaii. Our scope of

services for this study included the following:

e A visual reconnaissance of the site and its vicinity to observe existing conditions
which may affect the project. The general location of the project site is shown on
the enclosed Location Map, Plate A2.1.

e A review of available in-house soils information pertinent to the site and the
proposed project.

e Drilling and sampling nine exploratory borings to depths ranging from about 14.5
to 20 feet. A description of our field investigation is summarized on Plates Al.1
through A1.3. The approximate exploratory boring locations are shown on the
enclosed Boring Location Plans, Plates A2.2 and A2.3, and the soils encountered
in the borings are described on the Boring Logs, Plates A4.1 through A4.9.

e Drilling four percolation test holes to depths of approximately 5 feet. The
approximate test hole locations are shown on Plates A2.2 and A2.3. Falling head
percolation tests were performed in the test holes in general accordance with
Department of Health guidelines and results are presented on the Department of
Health Site Evaluation/Percolation Test forms, Plates AS.1 through A5.4.

e Laboratory testing of selected soil samples. Testing procedures are presented in
the Description of Laboratory Testing, Plates B1.1 through B1.3. Test results are
presented in the Description of Laboratory Testing, and on the Boring Logs
(Plates A4.1 through A4.9), Consolidation Test reports (Plates B2.1 through
B2.3), Direct Shear Test reports (Plates B3.1 and B3.2), Modified Proctor Test
reports (Plates B4.1 and B4.2), CBR Test report (Plate B5.1), and Sieve Analysis
Test report (Plate B6.1).
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Engineering analyses of the field and laboratory data.

Preparation of this report presenting the results of our exploratory fieldwork and
laboratory testing, and geotechnical recommendations for the design of
foundations, including seismic considerations, resistance to lateral pressures,
retaining walls, slabs-on-grade, flexible pavement, and site grading.

PROJECT CONSIDERATIONS

Information regarding the proposed project was provided by personnel from your

office.

The proposed gymnasium will be a one-story structure located on the southeastern
side of the school’s campus and will have a footprint area of approximately
24,596 square feet. Based on a finish floor elevation of about +42.5, site grading -
will generally consist of maximum cuts of about 3.5 feet on the northeastern side
of the site and fill placements of about 2 to 3 feet on the southwestern side.
Demolition of existing walkways, trees, and grassed lawn areas will be required to
accommodate the new gymnasium. Structural loads were not available at the time

of this report.

Parking Lots A and B are proposed on the northeast side of the existing Music
Building and on the northeast side of the existing gymnasium, respectively.
Parking Lot A will accommodate 19 parking stalls and 2 ADA stalls, while
Parking Lot B will accommodate 42 parking stalls and 4 ADA stalls.

Underground detention chambers are also planned for this project. Chambers are
proposed on the north and south sides of the new gymnasium, as well as beneath

the proposed parking lots.

SITE CONDITIONS

Waimea High School is located on both the north and south sides of Tsuchiya
Road, and is bounded by Ola Road on the southeast, Kaumualii Highway on the
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southwest, Makeke Road on the northwest, and Haina Road on the northeast in
Waimea, Kauai. The site of the proposed gymnasium is located on the southeast
side of the school’s campus, southwest of Buildings U and B, and northeast of
Tsuchiya Road. The site is generally occupied by trees, grass fields, and concrete

walkways connecting Tsuchiya Road and the classroom buildings.

The site of proposed Parking Lot A is generally covered by trees, grassed lawn,
and moderate growth of vegetation. At the time of our fieldwork, trees, boulders,
two shipping containers, and a detachable utility trailer occupied the site of

proposed Parking Lot B.

Based on the topographic survey map provided by your office, total relief over the
site of the proposed gymnasium is about 6 feet, with ground elevations ranging
from about +46 northeastern side to about +40 on the southwestern side. The site

is sloped such that drainage flows in a southwesternly direction.

SOIL CONDITIONS
Borings B1, B3, B4, B7, and B9 encountered surface soil classified as tan and
dark brown to light brown silty sand in a loose to medium dense condition,
extending to depths ranging from about 1.5 to 5 feet. Beneath the silty sand, and
from the surface in the remaining borings, was brown to reddish brown clayey silt
in a firm to stiff condition, extending to depths ranging from about 3.5 to 13.5
feet. Laboratory testing on the clayey silt indicates that the soil has a low

potential.

Boulders with maximum dimensions of about 1 to 2 feet were encountered in
borings B1, B2, B5, B7, and B9 between depths of about 2 and 12.5 feet. Thin
seams of gray silty clay in a stiff condition were encountered in borings B1, BS,

B6, and B8, at depths ranging between about 3.5 to 13 feet, respectively.
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Laboratory testing on the silty clay indicates that the soil has a moderate to high

expansion potential.

Underlying the clayey silt was brown to gray completely to slightly weathered
basalt. The weathered basalt was in a medium hard to hard condition and

extended to the maximum depths drilled.

Neither groundwater nor seecpage water was encountered in the borings.
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CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on the finish floor elevation of about +42.5, site grading will generally

consist of maximum cuts of about 3.5 feet on the northeastern side of the site and
fill placement of about 2 to 3 feet on the southwestern side. Therefore, footing
excavations are expected to expose newly placed fill, silty sand, and clayey silt.
To provide more uniform support, we recommend that all footings and slabs-on-
grade be underlain by 12 inches of compacted granular structural fill.
Overexcavation of the insitu soils will be required to accommodate placement of
the 12-inch granular structural fill section. If cobbles or boulders are exposed at
the bottom of overexcavations, they should be removed and replaced with

compacted granular structural fill.

Foundations

Conventional spread footings founded on a minimum 12 inches of imported
granular structural fill may be used to support the proposed gymnasium. The
granular fill should conform to and be placed in accordance‘ with
recommendations in the Site Grading section of this report. Overexcavation of the
insitu soils will be required to accommodate placement of the 12-inch granulair
structural fill section. If gray silty clay is encountered at the bottom of
overexcavations, the silty clay should be completely removed or excavated to a

depth of at least 24 inches below the bottom of footing elevation, whichever is

shallower.

Foundations founded on a minimum 12 inches of imported granular structural fill
may be designed for an allowable bearing value of 3,000 pounds per square foot.
The recommended allowable bearing value is for the total of dead and frequently
applied live loads and may be increased by one-third for short duration loading

which includes the effects of wind and seismic forces.
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Spread footings should be a minimum 16 inches in width and embedded at least
18 inches below finish adjacent grade. The bottom of footing excavations should
be thoroughly tamped and cleaned of loose material prior to placement of
reinforcing steel and concrete. If cobbles or boulders are exposed at the bottom of
structural excavations, they should be removed and replaced with compacted

granular structural fill.

The imported granular structural fill should also extend laterally, a minimum 12
inches beyond the edge of footings. Imported granular structural fill should
conform to and be placed in accordance with recommendations presented in the

Site Grading section of this report.

In areas where granular structural fill is placed outside the building area and is
open to the environment, we recommend that the granular material be capped
with a minimum 12 inches of low permeability soil, such as the onsite clayey silt.
The intent of this recommendation is to reduce intrusion of the surface runoff into
the granular fill below footings. The capping layer should be compacted in lifts to
a minimum 90 percent compaction as determined by ASTM D 1557. In addition,
we recommend that areas adjacent to the building be graded to allow surface
water to drain away from the structure. Downspouts connect to rain gutters should

discharge water away from the structure.

Seismic Design
Based on the borings drilled as part of this study and our knowledge of the deep
soil conditions in the area, the subsurface soils can be characterized as a rock

profile. Therefore, based on the 2012 International Building Code, Site Class B is

recommended for this site.
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Lateral Design

Resistance to lateral loading may be provided by friction acting at the base of
foundations, and by passive earth pressure acting on the buried portions of
foundations. A coefficient of friction of 0.4 may be used with the dead load
forces. Passive earth pressure may be computed as an equivalent fluid having a
density of 300 pounds per cubic foot with a maximum earth pressure 3,000
pounds per square foot. Unless covered by pavement or concrete slabs, the upper

12 inches of soil should not be considered in computing lateral resistance.

Retaining Walls
Retaining wall foundations may be designed using recommendations in the

Foundations, Seismic Design, and Lateral Design sections of this report.

For active earth pressure considerations, equivalent fluid pressures of 40 and 50
pounds per cubic foot may be used for level and sloping backfill conditions,
respectively. An equivalent fluid pressure of 55 pounds per cubic foot may be
used for restrained conditions. To prevent buildup of hydrostatic pressures,
retaining walls should be well-drained. The standard of practice consists of
placing an approximately 12-inch thick layer of free-draining gravel at the back of
the wall. The gravel should extend from the base of the wall, around subdrains

and/or weepholes, and up to within 12 inches of finish grade.

Alternatively, prefabricated drainage geocomposites, such as Miradrain or J-drain,
may be used in lieu of the free-draining gravel. As with the free-draining gravel,
the drainage geocomposites should be placed at the back of the wall, be connected
with the weepholes and/or subdrains (in accordance with manufacturers
specifications), and extend to within 12 inches of finish grade. For freestanding
walls, the drainage system should be covered by at least 12 inches of low

permeability soil, such as the onsite clayey silt. If the backfill is covered by
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interior or exterior concrete slabs, the gravel fill should extend to the bottom of

slab cushion elevation.

Foundation Settlement

Structural loads were not available at the time of this report. However, neither
excessive total nor differential settlement is anticipated for foundations bearing on
12 inches of imported granular structural fill overlying the clayey silt. When

available, final loads should be submitted to our office for review.

Slabs-on-Grade

To provide uniform support, all buildfng slabs-on-grade should be underlain by a
minimum 12 inches of imported granular fill. The upper 4 inches of granular fill
should consist of a cushion of clean gravel, such as #3 Fine (ASTM C 33, No.67).
The remainder of the granular fill section should consist of imported granular

structural fill. All building slabs should also be protected by a vapor barrier.

Prior to placement of granular fill, the exposed subgrade should be scarified to a
minimum depth of 6 inches, moisture conditioned to about 2 percent above
optimum moisture content, and compacted to a minimum 95 percent compaction
as determined by ASTM D 1557. The granular structural fill should be
compacted in lifts to a minimum 95 percent compaction as determined by ASTM
D 1557. The gravel cushion should be compacted to a level surface using a

vibratory compactor.

In terms of serving as a slab cushion, basaltic termite barrier (BTB) may be used
in place of the 4 inches of clean gravel. The recommended minimum thickness of
BTB material should be compacted as indicated by the manufacturer

specifications.
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Slabs-on-grade, particularly those which will receive floor covering, should
include control joints saw-cut into the concrete slab. The purpose of this is to help
reduce the potential for reflective cracking of the floor covering due to shrinkage
cracks in the concrete slab. Proper curing of the concrete slabs will help reduce

shrinkage cracking.

Concrete walkways should be underlain by a minimum 12 inches of imported
granular structural fill with the upper 6 inches consisting of aggregate base course
in lieu of the gravel cushion. The base course should be compacted to a minimum

95 percent compaction as determined by ASTM D 1557.

Pavement Design
We assume that the pavement areas will generally be limited to passenger
vehicles and light trucks. Based on the results of our laboratory testing, flexible

pavemént may be designed on the following sections.

Flexible Pavement
2.0”  Asphalt Concrete
6.0” Base Course (CBR = 85 minimum)
8.0” Total Thickness

The exposed subgrade should be sacrificed to a minimum depth of 6 inches,
moisture conditioned to about 2 percent above optimum moisture content, and
compacted to a minimum 95 percent compaction as determined by ASTM D
1557. The base course should also be compacted to a minimum 95 percent

compaction as determined as ASTM D 1557.

Site Grading

Site Preparation - The project site should be cleared of all vegetation, including
large roots, concrete footings, demolition debris, and other deleterious material.
In areas requiring fill placement, the exposed subgrade should be scarified to a

minimum depth of 6 inches, moisture conditioned to about 2 percent above the
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optimum moisture content and compacted to a minimum 95 percent compaction
as determined by ASTM D 1557. If cobbles or boulders are exposed at the bottom
of overexcavations, they should be removed and replaced with compacted

granular structural fill.

Structural Excavations - Based on our exploratory borings, we believe that
excavations into the surface and near surface soils can generally be accomplished
using conventional excavating equipment. Temporary cuts into the clayey silt
should be stable at slope gradients of 1H:1V or flatter. Excavations into the basalt
and sections where cobbles and boulders are encountered may require hydraulic
hoe ramming equipment. It should be the Contractor’s responsibility to conform

to all OSHA safety standards for excavations.

Onsite Fill Material — The onsite clayey silt will be acceptable for reuse in
compacted fills and babkﬁlls, except in the granular structural fill section
recommended below foundations and slabs-on-grade. Rock fragments larger than
3 inches in maximum dimension should be removed prior to reuse. Excavated
cobbles and boulders may be reused in structural fills and backfills provided the
material is crushed to a well-graded consistency with a maximum particle size of

3 inches.

Imported Fill Material - Imported structural fill should be well-graded, non-
expansive granular material. Specifications for imported granular structural fill
should indicate a maximum particle size of 3 inches, and state that between 8 and
20 percent of soil by weight shall pass the #200 sieve. In addition, the plasticity
index (P.1.) of that portion of the soil passing the #40 sieve shall not be greater
than 10. Imported structural fill should have a CBR expansion value no greater
than 1.0 percent and a minimum CBR value of 15 percent, when tested in

accordance with ASTM D 1883.
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Compaction — Cohesive soils, such as the onsite clayey silt, should be placed in
horizontal lifts restricted to eight inches in loose thickness and compacted to a
minimum 95 percent compaction as determined by ASTM D 1557. Granular fill,
such as imported granular structural fill, should be placed in horizontal lifts
restricted to eight inches in loose thickness and compacted to a minimum 95
percent compaction as determined by ASTM D 1557. Fill placed in areas which
slope steeper than SH:1V should be continually benched as the fill is brought up

in lifts.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES
We recommend that we perform a general review of the final design plans and
specifications. This will allow us to verify that the foundation design and
earthwork recommendations have been properly interpreted and implemented in

the design plans and construction specifications.

For continuity, we recommend that we be retained during construction to (1)
observe structural excavations prior to placement of granular structural fill,
reinforcing steel, and concrete, (2) review and/or perform laboratory testing on
import borrow to determine its acceptability for use in compacted fills, (3)
observe structural fill placement and perform compaction testing, and (4) provide

geotechnical consultation as required.

Our services during construction will allow us to verify that our recommendations
are properly interpreted and included in construction, and if necessary, to make
modifications to those recommendations, thereby reducing construction delays in

the event subsurface conditions differ from those anticipated.

LIMITATIONS
The boring logs indicate the approximate subsurface soil conditions encountered

only at those times and locations where our borings were made and may not
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represent conditions at other times and locations. This report was prepared
specifically for Design Partners, Inc. and their sub-consultants for the design of
the proposed gymnasium at Waimea High School in Waimea, Kauai, Hawaii.
The boring logs, laboratory test results, and recommendations presented in this
report are for design purposes only, and are not intended for use in developing

cost estimates by the contractor.

Our recommendations and conclusions are based upon the site materials observed,
the preliminary design information made available, the data obtained from our site
exploration, our engineering analyses, and our experience and engineering

judgment.

The conclusions and recommendations in this report are professional opinions
which we have strived to develop in a manner consistent with that level of care,
skill, and competence ordinarily exercised by members of the profession in good
standing, currently practicing under similar conditions in the same locality. We
will be responsible for those recommendations and conclusions, but will not be
responsible for the interpretation by others of the information developed. No

warranty is made regarding the services performed, either expressed or implied.

Respectfully submitted,

LICENSED
PROFESSICNAL

HIRATA & ASSOCIATES, INC. |
ENGINEER

(Ait (Lo

Juadfito Cajimat, Projéct Engineer

This work was prepared by

me or under my supervision.
% Expiration Date of License:

Rick Yoshida, P.E(.,/Project Manager el 50, 2022
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DESCRIPTION OF FIELD INVESTIGATION

GENERAL )
The site was explored from October 10 to 15, 2021, by performing a visual
reconnaissance of the site and drilling nine test borings to depths ranging from
about 14.5 to 20 feet with a Mobile L-22 truck-mounted drill rig. In addition, four
percolation test holes were drilled to depths of about 5 feet.

During drilling operations, the soils were continuously logged by our field
engineer and classified by visual examination in accordance with the Unified Soil
Classification System. The boring logs indicate the depths at which the soils or
their characteristics change, although the change could actually be gradual. If the
change occurred between sample locations, the depth was interpreted based on
field observations. Classifications and sampling intervals are shown on the boring
logs. A Boring Log Legend is presented on Plate A3.1, while the Unified Soil
Classification and Rock Weathering Classification Systems are shown on Plates
A3.2 and A3.3, respectively. The soils encountered are logged on Plates A4.1
through A4.9. .

Borings were located in the field by measuring/taping offsets from existing site
features shown on the plans provided by your office. Surface elevations at boring
locations were estimated based on the Grading Plan provided by Design Partners,
Inc. on April 30, 2021. The accuracy of the boring locations shown on Plates A2.2
and A2.3, and the surface elevations shown on the boring logs are therefore

approximate, in accordance with the field methods used.

SOIL SAMPLING
Representative, disturbed, and bulk soil samples, as well as core samples of rock,
were recovered from the borings for selected laboratory testing and analyses.
Representative samples were recovered by driving a 3-inch O.D. split tube

sampler a total of 18 inches with a 140-pound hammer dropped from a height of
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30 inches. Disturbed samples were obtained by driving a 2-inch O.D. standard
split spoon sampler a total of 18 inches with a 140-pound hammer dropped from a
height of 30 inches. The number of blows required to drive the samplers the final
12 inches are recorded at the appropriate depths on the boring logs, unless noted
otherwise. Bulk soil samples were recovered from percolation tests holes P3 and

P4 at depths of about 1 foot.

ROCK SAMPLING
Core samples of rock were obtained with an NX core barrel having an inside
diameter of 2.5 inches. Recovery percentages for each core run are shown on the
enclosed Boring Logs. Photos of selected rock core samples are presented on

Plates A6.1 and A6.2.

The rock quality designation (RQD) for the core runs are also shown on the
boring logs. This is a modified core recovery percentage which takes into account
the number of fractures observed in the core samples. Only pieces of core 4
inches in length or longer, as measured along the centerline, were included in the
determination of this modified core. recovery percentage. Fractures caused by

drilling or handling were ignored.

The following is a general correlation between RQD percentages and rock quality.

ROD (%) Description of Rock Quality
0-25 Very Poor

25-50 Poor

50-175 Fair

75 - 90 Good

90 - 100 Excellent

Reference: Tunnel Engineering Handbook, Second Edition,
edited by J.O. Bickel, T.R. Kuesel, and E.H. King, 1996
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PERCOLATION TESTING

Four percolation test holes were drilled to depths of about 5 feet. The approximate

percolation test locations are shown on Plates A2.2 and A2.3.

Falling head

percolation tests were performed in the test holes in general accordance with

Department of Health guidelines. Test results are presented on the Department of

Health Site Evaluation/Percolation Test forms, Plates A5.1 through A5.4. The

following table presents the results of our falling head percolation tests and the

estimated infiltration rates. The infiltration rates were estimated using the Porchet

Method.
‘Test Hole Percolation Rate Inﬁlt{'ation Rate
(min./in.) (in./hr.)
Pl 6.0 0.5
P2 16.6 0.3
P3 26.7 0.2
P4 53.3 0.1
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GROUP

MAJOR DIVISIONS DIVISIONS TYPICAL NAMES
PO, ©408_ G 9"
-%‘é::pq‘.’; x . .
—— CLEAN g low X\éefl:n%r:ded gravels, gravel-sand mixtures, little or
GRAVELS C
(More than ; AT
50% of (Little or no  [:5, %85, 3 Poorly graded gravels or gravel-sand mixtures, little
flneS) 0 0,00 Q,0 GP .
coarse . 05 200 or no fines.
fraction is PRRSR
COARSE LARGER than| GRAVELS "ct:"’D GM | Silty gravels, gravel-sand-silt mixtures.
GRAINED the No. 4 WITH FINES  [-d54fo} 4
SOILS sieve size.) | (Appreciable P&z
amt. of fines.) <44 GC | Clayey gravels, gravel-sand-clay mixtures.
(More than ),94
50% of the 9
material is CLEAN | grad i i
LARGER than (,\?OArschs gkl Well graded sands, gravelly sands, little or no fines.
No. 200 an i
sie\?e size.) 50% of (Little or no Poorly graded sands or gravelly sands, little or no
: fines.) ;
coarse fines.
fraction is
SMALLER SANDS ; Silty sands, sand-silt mixtures.
thﬁn tge WITH FINES [t \\
0. (Appreciable R\
sieve size.) t. of fines.) K SC | Clayey sands, sand-clay mixtures.
amt. of fines )J§\\\_ .
ML Inorganic silts and very fine sands, rock flour, silty or
clayey fine sands or clayey silts with slight plasticity.
FINE SILTS AND CLAYS CL | Inorganic clays of high plasticity, lean clays
GRAINED | (Liquid limit LESS than 50.) 9 e PR IIEE PSR ¥
SOILS i i i i i
(More than ilililili] ©L | Organic silts and organic silty clays of low plasticity.
50% of the L
material is i ; ; ;
Inorganic silts, micaceous or diatomaceous fine
SMALLER than MH T e i i
No. 200 sandy or silty soils, elastic silts.
sieve size.) SILTS AND CLAYS : ; -
(Liquid limit GREATER CH | Inorganic clays of high plasticity, fat clays.
than 50.) A ] . i :
OH Organic clays of medium to high plasticity, organic
silts.

HIGHLY ORGANIC SOILS

PT

Peat and other highly organic silts.

FORMATIONS

| FRESH TO MODERATELY WEATHERED BASALT

VOLCANIC TUFF / HIGHLY TO COMPLETELY
| WEATHERED BASALT

CORAL

SAMPLE DEFINITION

E 2" 0.D. Standard Split Spoon Sampler

[] 3" 0.D. split Tube Sampler

| Shelby Tube
[I] Core Sample

RQD: Rock Quality Designation
! Water Table

Waimea High School - New Gymnasium
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BORING LOG LEGEND

Plate
A3.1




PLASTICITY CHART

W.0. 21-6528.1

60 [ [ I
LEGEND: /
50 || ® Boring B2 at 4 feet s
m Boring B9 at 4 feet /
CH
40 A Percolation test hole P3 at 1 feet /
g * Percolation test hole P4 at 0.5 feet /
2 /
% 30 7
5 >
S CL ) MH or OH
o
20 /
P
10 *
ZAML-CLY 7 | ML or OL
0
0 20 40 60 80 100
LIQUID LIMIT
GRADATION CHART
COMPONENT DEFINITIONS BY GRADATION
COMPONENT SIZE RANGE
Boulders Above 12 in.
Cobbles 3in.to 12in.
Gravel 3in. to No. 4 (4.76 mm)
Coarse 3in.to 3/4 in.
Fine Gravel 3/4 in. to No. 4 (4.76 mm)
Sand No. 4 (4.76 mm) to No. 200 (0.074mm)
Coarse Sand No. 4 (4.76 mm) to No. 10 (2.0 mm)
Medium Sand No. 10 (2.0 mm) to No. 40 (0.42 mm)
Fine Sand No. 40 (0.42 mm) to No. 200 (0.074 mm)
Silt and Clay Smaller than No. 200 (0.074 mm)
Waimea High School - New Gymnasium
Lk UNIFIED SOIL CLASSIFICATION Plate
Geotechnical Engineering
SYSTEM A3.2




Grade Symbol

Fresh F
Slightly WS
Weathered

Moderately WM
Weathered

Highly WH
Weathered

Completely wC
Weathered

Residual RS
Soll

Description

No visible signs of decomposition or discoloration.
Rings under hammer impact.

Slight discoloration inwards from open fractures,
otherwise similar to F.

Discoloration throughout. Weaker minerals such
as feldspar decomposed. Strength somewhat less
than fresh rock but cores cannot be broken by
hand or scraped by knife. Texture preserved.

Most minerals somewhat decomposed. Specimens
can be broken by hand with effort or shaved with
knife. Core stones present in rock mass. Texture
becoming indistinct but fabric preserved.

Minerals decomposed to soil but fabric and structure
preserved (Saprolite). Specimens easily crumbled or
penetrated.

Advance state of decomposition resulting in plastic

soils. Rock fabric and structure completely destroyed.

Large volume change.

Reference: Soil Mechanics, NAVFAC DM-7.1, Department of the Navy, Naval Facilities
Engineering Command, September, 1986.

Waimea High School - New Gymnasium

HIRATA & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Geotechnical Engineering
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ROCK WEATHERING CLASSIFICATION

SYSTEM

Plate
A3.3




Boring No.

Hirata & Associates, Inc. B1
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING
BORING LOG
PROJECT NAME___Waimea High School - New Gymnasium
WORK ORDER NO. 21-6528.1 DRIVING WT. 140 |b, START DATE 10/14/21
SURFACE ELEV. 431+ DROP. 30in, END DATE 10/14/21
_o = ELE ,
25 Sl =] 8|2 |z& o |y MATERIAL DESCRIPTION
[T >|  {wo | W Pl I |
<o wo| T |s=x |9 (hel|lE o a
iE 521 § |05 5|05 |4 22 |2
X v or| @ |ma |[aL|S0|0E| 02 |v
SHEEE] | Silty SAND (SM) - Tan, slightly moist, loose.
16/121 70 | S RN .
Pd r11 g{g?io 91| 24 1 L' Clayey SILT (ML) - Reddish brown, moist, stiff. 1
. Boulder from 2 to 3.5 feet. .
& / g Gray silty clay seam from 3.5 to 4.5 feet. X
5 —_lT,,f' 4 MODERATELY WEATHERED BASALT (WM) - Gray, -
73 | 61 "TI*‘TI*{ hard, vesicular, slightly fractured. J
-
i |
Rt
1017 13 5 -
68 | 68 Pading
Tertarts ]
St .
e
o |
82 | 69 LT 1
4 -l'+'|"+l
1

[3,]

End boring at 15.0 feet.

Neither groundwater nor seepage water encountered.

20— .
1 *Elevations based on Grading Plans provided by 1
1 Design Partners, Inc. on April 30, 2021. T
25— .
] |
30— i

Plate A4.1

w
(3]
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GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING

BORING LOG

PROJECT NAME__ Waimea High School - New Gymnasium

Boring No.

B2

WORK ORDER NO. 21-6528.1 DRIVING WT. 140 Ib. START DATE 10/13/21
SURFACE ELEV. 459+ DROP 30.in. END DATE 10/13/21
g= x| 5|2 |zt O MATERIAL DESCRIPTION
[11] L
X >| ® |00 |W Pl x T r
<o wo| T | 0o |BE|F o o
5= |85 5|3k |x588|he| 283
o or| & | ma 62|30 |aE| 6l |6
]:”; Clayey SILT (ML) - Reddish brown, moist, stiff.
T Cobble at 0.5 feet. 1
Direct Shear " 1 1
27/7"| 89 | 12
Test 10/No, AL )
Pgnetration » Boulder from 3 to 4 feet. |
Consolidation | |
ol 22 21| 5
80/9" 29 = COMPLETELY WEATHERED BASALT (WC) - Tannish 1
10/No 10T Tt gray, moist, medium hard. i
Penetration 7579 | MODERATELY WEATHERED BASALT (WM) - Gray, .
7 A7, hard, vesicular, slightly fractured.
83 | 39 AT Highly fractured from 9.5 to 10.5 feet. ]
i —
i -
(aliballt
151717 =
i
T 1
77 50 ——lT+iT+r 7l
Ji ]
i
=yt i
20— End boring at 19.5 feet. =
1 Neither groundwater nor seepage water encountered. -
25— —
30 -
a5 Plate A4.2
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GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING

BORING LOG

PROJECT NAME__ Waimea High School - New Gymnasium

Boring No.

B3

WORK ORDER NO. 21-6528.1 DRIVING WT. 140 Ib. START DATE 10/12/21
SURFACE ELEV. 43.0 + DROP 30in. END DATE 10/12/21
o = | 8

NZ r = | u =

) Wl —~ oz x- o w MATERIAL DESCRIPTION

x >| & |wOo | W P« T _x

<o wo| T | |9 |HE|EF o o

T 52| & | 8% 25|08 |k~ 28 |2

v or| ¥ |moa |oZ|=0|oE|0a|wn

Silty SAND (SM) - Brown, slightly moist, loose, with

Sleve_l_ér;talysrs 7 69 | 16 : gravel.
. —| Clayey SILT (ML) - Reddish brown, moist, firm.
5 77 | 14 i
5 |5 —= Cobble at 4.5 feet. _
8 83 | 18 i

I
|

57/12" 86 | 27 | o |
T0/No

1

HIGHLY WEATHERED BASALT (WH) - Brown, moist,
1  medium hard.

Penetration S LAE

‘I
) =
ol
e

92 | 87

1 1
o
TAT AT b
ity
IR
ol el ol

T
T

|
|
|

N
o
II vI T
I
o
+ +|'
b

&
+

T
T

+*
+

91 | 74

T
4+
+
T

|
|
|

1
1y
¥

[
|
|

'+
'+

20—

MODERATELY WEATHERED BASALT (WM) - Gray to
brownish gray, hard, vesicular, slightly fractured.

End boring at 20.0 feet.

Neither groundwater nor seepage water encountered.

Plate A4.3




Boring No.

Hirata & Associates, Inc. B 4
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING ’
BORING LOG
PROJECT NAME__ Waimea High School - New Gymnasium
WORK ORDER NO. 21-6528.1 DRIVING WT., 1401b, START DATE 10/15/21
SURFACE ELEV. 411+ DROP 30in END DATE 10/15/21
S N E L8
B= x =g (we
¥u wl| ~ o|Z - (&} w MATERIAL DESCRIPTION
3 >| & [0 W Pl T _1
<o wo| r|lsw|o [(HEe|E o o
5z 5381 5 |8% 25|08 |48 |2
X o ox| ¥ |ma |[0&|=0|0E| 03 |u
Lk Silty SAND (SM) - Dark brown, slightly moist, medium
dense. T
56" | 97 | 26 MREET ’
8/6" | 75 | 33 . | | Clayey SILT (ML) - Reddish brown, moist, medium stiff.
. . 7 [ ] .
Cons_lgllalgtatlon 18 | 90 | 33 5 | ]
T4 SLIGHTLY WEATHERED BASALT (WS) - Gray, hard,
1 —:}f}{ vesicular, slightly fractured.
99 | 89 o '_1}:1}:1. 1
-
I ]
i
95 | 72 Ty ]
1= 1="14 .
.5 I}*}ﬂ Moderately weathered from 14.5 feet.
AT, -
7 494
| End boring at 16.0 feet. 1
20_- Neither groundwater nor seepage water encountered. _-
25— -
30 -
a5 ] Plate A4.4
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GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING

Boring No.

B5

BORING LOG
PROJECT NAME___Waimea High School - New Gymnasium
WORK ORDER NO. 21-6528.1 DRIVING WT. 140 Ib. START DATE 10/13/21
SURFACE ELEV. 39.7 + DROP 30.in. END DATE 10/14/21
g s E|LE
gz = glz |g& o |y MATERIAL DESCRIPTION
o > R |90 |W 2L | |
<o wo| — | 2w |0 nE|F o o
=2 32|95 |5% 25|85 |ke|58 2
xx?/t; ox| & |ma |o2|30|0E 09 %)
) Clayey SILT (ML) - Reddish brown, moist, medium stiff.
Consolidation 1 [ ]
Test 15 96 | 28 i | ]
56/8"| 86 | 19 |
1 O/NO 5 JJ-JJ D N
Penetration 1r
} Boulder from 5.5 to 7.5 feet.
Gray silty clay seam from 7.5 to 9 feet.
: HIGHLY WEATHERED BASALT (WH) - Gray, medium
— —— [l _hard, highly fractured. p
F ] MODERATELY WEATHERED BASALT (WM) - Gray, |
- | hard, vesicular, moderately fractured.
85 | 50 ]
100 | 85 i ]

End boring at 20.0 feet.

Neither groundwater nor seepage water encountered.

Plate A4.5
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Boring No.

B6

BORING LOG
PROJECT NAME__ Waimea High School - New Gymnasium
WORK ORDER NO. 21-6528.1 DRIVING WT. 140 Ib. START DATE 10/13/21
SURFACE ELEV. 439 + DROP 30in. END DATE 10/13/21
g > | 2
=2 . e |wS
g l ~|. ol|z |zt 0 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION
Ll Z L
o >| X |w@Oo | W Pl T =
<o wo| T | s |9 |HhEe|E o o
Dz 62| & | 9% 25| |hio| 28 |2
o Oox| ¥ |mo |o&(=0|0E| 03 |w
Clayey SILT (ML) - Brown to reddish brown, moist, stiff. |
34 | 83 | 20 _ J
Direct Shear 1 [ ] 1
Test 65 | 92 | 23 _ i 4
5 — S —]
54 | 98 | 19 1 Gray silty clay seam from 5.5 to 6.5 feet. ]
— COMPLETELY WEATHERED BASALT (WC) - Gray,
13(())//l\51 76 | 20 II_? slightly moist, medium hard. i
Pdnetratbn 10—-}@5 MODERATELY WEATHERED BASALT (WM) - Gray, |
y it hard, vesicular, slightly fractured. .
86 | 73 e -
Elib ik _
—Lh%*_l-
T ]
151717 .
Nt
e e e .
'lT+lT+_"
85 | 82 T 4
Tt £
17 4
=t
20— End boring at 19.5 feet. =
1 Neither groundwater nor seepage water encountered.
25— o
30— -
35 Plate A4.6




Boring No.
Hirata & Associates, Inc. B7

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING

BORING LOG
PROJECT NAME__ Waimea High School - New Gymnasium
WORK ORDER NO. 21-6528.1 DRIVING WT. 140 Ib. START DATE 10/14/21
SURFACE ELEV. 451+ DROP 30.in. END DATE 10/14/21
3 > | 2
=90 > sl lwe
2 - glz |k o MATERIAL DESCRIPTION
L Q) =) 1]
o > X wO | W Wl E _
<o wo| - | (0 |GE|F o o
k- 531 8 |8% %508 || 28 |2
xXov Ooxr| ¥ |ma |aZ|=0|(0E|0a|un
Silty SAND (SM) - Dark brown to light brown, slightly
moist, loose.
: ; ] §
Sieve Analysis
Test Y 7 96 6 S ]
17/6"1 105 6 s PELER
26/6"| 98 | 14 | —| Clayey SILT (ML) - Reddish brown, moist, stiff. |
67 | 87 | 33 : 1 Brown in color at 8 feet. —
10— —
T [J Boulder from 11.5 to 12.5 feet. y
79 | 88 | 26 +—=—1 [ HIGHLY WEATHERED BASALT (WH) - Gray, slightly -
15 |  moist, medium hard. T
4 End boring at 14.5 feet. g
| Neither groundwater nor seepage water encountered. |
20— —
25— —
_{ -
30— -
o Plate A4.7
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GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING

BORING LOG

PROJECT NAME___ Waimea High School - New Gymnasium

Boring No.

B8

WORK ORDER NO. 21-6528.1 DRIVING WT. 140 Ib. START DATE 10/14/21
SURFACE ELEV. 404 + DROP 30in. END DATE 10/14/21
e = E|LE
o= Bl = 6|2 |k o) MATERIAL DESCRIPTION
L L
[ra| >| X | wOo | W E w| T T -
<o wo| T |2 |9 HEEF o o
5z 53| 8 | 9% 25|08 |hi| 28 |2
X o or| ¥ |mo |OL|=0|0E| 03 |n
| Clayey SILT (ML) - Reddish brown, moist, stiff.
53 |78 | 2 y Gray silty clay seam from 1.5 to 2.5 feet.
95/11" 93 | 20 1 ,
= 10{th>. 5 <1747 MODERATELY WEATHERED BASALT (WM) - Gray,
grneiraton _:Eiﬁ‘ hard, vesicular, highly fractured.
Fif
it
48 | 13 T
gl o'
il
1017 Moderately fractured from 9.5 feet. -
100 75 1T+l_+l-
1361/1\710, 55 % Gray silty clay seam from 11 to 13 feet.
Pgnetration o
P
94 | 35 g gl

End boring at 15.0 feet.

Neither groundwater nor seepage water encountered.
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Hirata & Associates, Inc.

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING

BORING LOG

PROJECT NAME___Waimea High School - New Gymnasium

Boring No.

B9

WORK ORDER NO. 21-6528.1 DRIVING WT. 140 Ib. START DATE 10/14/21
SURFACE ELEV. 411+ DROP 30in. END DATE 10/14/21
g B £ | &
e x| 6|2 |zt o |y MATERIAL DESCRIPTION
[V >| f |0 | W 2| T % _
<o wo| T |2 |90 |BE|E o |z
ik 53| 8 | 8% |&%|08 |48 |2
& & or| & |ma |6e|20|0E| 6l |6
: Silty SAND (SM) - Dark brown, dry, medium dense.
Cobble at 0.5 feet. )
Direct Shear i
Tost 12 [ 113 4 4
14/6"| 99 | 6 i
Consgggtatlon 83/12" 84 | 19 | || Clayey SILT (ML) - Reddish brown, moist, stiff. .
54/9"| 92 | 23 i ] Very stiff at 8.5 feet. il
10/No| . J
Penetration 10— [LLILLLS B
i P__r. Boulder from 10 to 11 feet. i

74 MODERATELY WEATEHRED BASALT (WM) - Gray,
hard, vesicular, slightly fractured.

End boring at 15.0 feet.

Neither groundwater nor seepage water encountered.
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SITE EVALUATION/PERCOLATION TEST

Date/Time: October 12, 2021 | 11:20 A.M.

Test performed by: Hirata & Associates, Inc.

Project Name: Waimea High School - New Gymnasium
Tax Map Key: (4) 1-6-010: 004

Test Number: P1

Elevation: +41.3 ft.

Depth to Groundwater Table: >16 _ ft. below grade (Based on boring B4)
Depth to Bedrock (if observed): +7 ft. below grade (Based on boring B4)
Diameter of Hole: 4 in.

Depth to Hole Bottom: 5 ft. below grade

Depth Soil Profile
(inches) (Color, texture, other)
0-12 Dark brown to light brown clayey silt
12 -60 Reddish brown clayey silt

PERCOLATION READINGS

Time 12 inches of water to seep away: >30 min.
Time 12 inches of water to seep away: >30 min.

For percolation tests in sandy soils, record time intervals and water drops every 10 minutes for at

least 1 hour.

v For percolation tests in non-sandy soils, presoak the test hole for at least 4 hours. Record time
intervals and water drops at least every 10 minutes for 1 hour; or if the time for the first 6 inches to
seep away is greater than 30 minutes, record time intervals and water drops at least every 30 minutes

for 4 hours or until 2 successive drops do not vary by more than 1/16 inch.

Time interval Drop in inches Time interval Drop in inches
* 30 5-9/16 N 30 4-1/8
* 30 3-15/16 * 30 5-5/16
u 30 5-7/16 * 30 6-3/4
= 30 5-5/8 K 30 5

Percolation Rate (time/final water level drop): __ 6 min/in

* Added water to test hole.

As the engineer responsible for gathering and providing site information and percolation test results, | attest
to the fact that above site information is accurate and that the site evaluation was conducted in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 11-62, "Wastewater Systems" and the results were acceptable.

PRGFESSICNAL

ENGINEER

Engineer's
No. 11118-C

ignaturdiBtamp
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SITE EVALUATION/PERCOLATION TEST

Date/Time: October 12, 2021 | 11:45 A.M.

Test performed by: Hirata & Associates, Inc.

Project Name: Waimea High School - New Gymnasium
Tax Map Key: (4) 1-6-010: 004

Test Number: P2

Elevation: +41.5 ft

Depth to Groundwater Table: >15  ft. below grade (Based on boring B9)
Depth to Bedrock (if observed): +13 ft. below grade (Based on boring B9)
Diameter of Hole: 4 in.

Depth to Hole Bottom: 5 ft. below grade

Depth Soil Profile
(inches) (Color, texture, other)
0-—24 Brown silty sand
24 —60 Reddish brown clayey silt

PERCOLATION READINGS

Time 12 inches of water to seep away: >30 min.
Time 12 inches of water to seep away: >30 min.

For percolation tests in sandy soils, record time intervals and water drops every 10 minutes for at
least 1 hour.

v For percolation tests in non-sandy soils, presoak the test hole for at least 4 hours. Record time
intervals and water drops at least every 10 minutes for 1 hour; or if the time for the first 6 inches to
seep away is greater than 30 minutes, record time intervals and water drops at least every 30 minutes
for 4 hours or until 2 successive drops do not vary by more than 1/16 inch.

Time interval Drop in inches Time interval Drop in inches
* 30 1-11/16 * 30 1-3/4
* 30 2 * 30 1-3/4
* 30 1-15/16 * 30 1-13/16
* 30 1-7/8

Percolation Rate (time/final water level drop): __16.6  min/in

* Added water to test hole.

As the engineer responsible for gathering and providing site information and percolation test results, | attest
to the fact that above site information is accurate and that the site evaluation was conducted in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 11-62, "Wastewater Systems" and the results were acceptable.

PRGFESSICNAL ; % !'LA‘ L 2
ENGINEER )

Engineer's Signaturé&tamp

No. 11118-C
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SITE EVALUATION/PERCOLATION TEST

Date/Time: October 12, 2021 ] 9:00 A.M.

Test performed by: Hirata & Associates, Inc.

Project Name: Waimea High School - New Gymnasium
Tax Map Key: (4) 1-6-010: 004

Test Number: P3

Elevation: 479 ft

Depth to Groundwater Table: N/A __ ft. below grade
Depth to Bedrock (if observed): N/A __ft. below grade
Diameter of Hole: 4 in.

Depth to Hole Bottom: 5 ft. below grade

Depth Soil Profile
(inches) (Color, texture, other)
0-—18 Brown clayey silt with gravel
18 — 60 Reddish brown clayey silt

PERCOLATION READINGS

Time 12 inches of water to seep away: >30 min.
Time 12 inches of water to seep away: >30 min.

For percolation tests in sandy soils, record time intervals and water drops every 10 minutes for at
least 1 hour.

v__ For percolation tests in non-sandy soils, presoak the test hole for at least 4 hours. Record time
intervals and water drops at least every 10 minutes for 1 hour; or if the time for the first 6 inches to
seep away is greater than 30 minutes, record time intervals and water drops at least every 30 minutes
for 4 hours or until 2 successive drops do not vary by more than 1/16 inch.

Time interval Drop in inches Time interval Drop in inches
* 30 7/8 % 30 1
i 30 2 * 30 1-1/16
M 30 1116 * 30 1-1/8
* 30 15/16 s 30 1-1/8

Percolation Rate (time/final water level drop): __ 26.7  min/in
* Added water to test hole.
As the engineer responsible for gathering and providing site information and percolation test results, | attest

to the fact that above site information is accurate and that the site evaluation was conducted in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 11-62, "Wastewater Systems" and the results were acceptable.

PRGFESSICNAL ﬁa( J % ‘ 4!4 A
ENGINEER :

Engineer's Signatur&Stamp

No. 11118-C
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SITE EVALUATION/PERCOLATION TEST

Date/Time: October 12, 2021 | 9:00 A.M.

Test performed by: Hirata & Associates, Inc.

Project Name: Waimea High School - New Gymnasium
Tax Map Key: (4) 1-6-009: 023

Test Number: P4

Elevation: N/A _ ft.

Depth to Groundwater Table: N/A __ ft. below grade
Depth to Bedrock (if observed): N/A __ft. below grade
Diameter of Hole: 4 in.

Depth to Hole Bottom: 5 ft. below grade

Depth Soil Profile
(inches) (Color, texture, other)
0-12 Brown clayey silt
12 -60 Reddish brown clayey silt

PERCOLATION READINGS

Time 12 inches of water to seep away: >30 min.
Time 12 inches of water to seep away: >30 min.

For percolation tests in sandy soils, record time intervals and water drops every 10 minutes for at
least 1 hour.

v For percolation tests in non-sandy soils, presoak the test hole for at least 4 hours. Record time
intervals and water drops at least every 10 minutes for 1 hour; or if the time for <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>